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Financial Highlights

TSR

2017 2016 2015 2014 2013
—E-tF —E-RF —Z-0F —Z-mF —2-=F
HKS$'million HK$'million HK$'million HK$'million HK$'million
BEATL BEAET BEAT BEAT BEAT
Revenue g
— Semiconductor distribution —EESE 1,304.9 992.4 1,893.1 2,677.7 2,230.1
— Consumer electronic product sales - HERETERHE 36.8 417 62.8 69.7 100.8
- Others —Efth 0.7 29 18 25 36
13424 1,037.0 1,957.7 2,749.9 2,3345
Profit/(loss) before interest, tax, depreciation, B 7|5 BB 37 &
amortisation and non-cash items BERIERSERR
w5,/ (B8)
- Corporate — 7 (22.2) (25.9) (4.5 (8.5) 24.1
— Venture capital —Al% 14.0 (23.4) (383) 26.1 15.2
— Semiconductor distribution —¥EENH 2272 118.0 104.6 765 473
— Consumer electronic product sales - HEHETEREE (7.6) (3.9) (7.9) (7.8) (2.5)
- Others —EAfth (6.4) (6.9) (12.9) (5.6) 29
205.0 57.9 41.0 80.7 81.2
Depreciation and amortisation WEREH 3.0 (6.8) (10.8) (13.8) (14.9)
Profit/(loss) for the year attributable to NTATEEREE
w5,/ (E8)
— Owners of the Company —ARRAEEA 276.1 2.1 (94.2) 34 92
— Non-controlling interests — IR - - 293 (9.7) (16.1)
276.1 2.1 (64.9) 6.3) (6.9)
Dividend &)
— Proposed final —BERH 15.5 - - - 6.0
Dividend per share (HK cents) SRR E GBI
— Proposed final —EERH 2,0 - - - 1.0
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Financial Highlights
BITSE A

2017 2016 2015 2014 2013
“E-t% —E-R¥  CZE-1F —E-mE  ZE-=F
HK$'million HK$'million HK$'million HK$'million HK$ ' million
BEAR BEAT BEAT BEAT BEAT
Total assets BEBE 1,280.9 884.5 1,140.1 1,3355 1,482.8
Total assets less current liabilities BEERRDEE 1,094.0 681.0 679.3 694.1 674.8
Total equity BmEH 1,078.3 657.6 654.2 668.7 647.2
Borrowings and finance lease payables ERRENRERERE 118.4 137.2 3508 5114 536.3
Cash and cash equivalents RekZERRLIEE 116 69.6 131.7 87.8 87.0
Equity investments at fair value through EREREATERYER
profit or loss BRARE 102.1 73.0 89.2 199.1 186.2
Cash and cash equivalents and RekZERREEER
equity investments BRARE 2137 142.6 2209 286.9 2732
Total debt to total equity BERABRRREE  LE 1% 21% 54% 76% 83%
Current assets to current liabilities MBEELRRBAFELE 335% 147% 138% 152% 122%
Cash and cash equivalents and equity BRESRERAASEE R
investments per share (HK$) BARE (BT) 0.28 0.18 029 040 0.45
Total equity per share (HKS) BlkE=EE (BL) 1.40 0.85 0.85 0.94 1.07
Revenue to property, plant and equipment (x) LW E  BE &
RELE () 34.2 255 46.1 51.9 196
Revenue to inventories (x) WaRErRLE (1) 17.2 15.0 133 105 6.7
Revenue to trade receivables (x) Yras RPEWE S8R
P () 212 162 93 125 104
Revenue to trade payables, deposits received U7 B fE B B ER -
and accrued expenses (x) BlRe R
e EALE (fF) 24.2 16.6 187 20.9 8.1
Revenue to borrowings (x) W B ER L (1) 11.6 7.6 56 5.4 4.4
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nNEER
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Chairman’s Statement
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Chairman &

On behalf of the Board of Directors, | am honored to present the annual
results of AV Concept Holdings Limited (“AV Concept” or the “Company”)
together with its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) for the
year ended 31 March 2017 (the "year under review”).

During the year under review, profit attributable to owners of the Company
recorded a profit of HKD276.1 million (2016: HKD 2.1 million), the significant
increase in profit was primarily due to the increase in share of profits from
a joint venture that is engaged in trading of Samsung electronics product,
gain in fair value of equity investments at fair value through profit or loss and
gain on deemed disposal of an associate with the successful listing of Me20n
Co., Ltd.. During the year under review, tremendous effort was spent on cost
control, resulting in a 23.2% decrease in administrative expenses. We wiill
continue adopting prudent and stringent cost control measures in the future.
We are hoping to reallocate and centralise resources on our semiconductor
distribution business in the joint venture and a subsidiary operating in
Singapore for better returns.

Continuing its upward trend, China semiconductor industry is still expanding
in current year. In our view, the year 2017 will be another year of steady
growth for China semiconductor distribution industry given the pickup in
business momentum and domestic spending. China will continue playing
an increasingly influential role in the global industry and all signs point to
continue moderate but sustainable growth over the next few years. Other
than the market in China, we decided to put more resources in Singapore,
India and other Asia Pacific regions market for better development prospect.
We believe our semiconductor business will maintain healthy growth in the
mid-long run.

Chairman’s Statemth

Dr. So Yuk Kwan & /285 E +

AAEREREZEEEMAMBRRIZZAV Concept Holdings
Limited ([AV Concept | sk [ARRQA]) R EH E A A
(B AEEHEE_T—+F=A=+—ALFE
(TEEHA]) 22 FEE-

REBESHARN A2 REEGEEFNESRETA
276,100,000 7T ( =T — /<4 : &7F2,100,000% 7T ) -
BINBEERIERARAARNR —HHE=EE
FTEHEBNELERENTBEOENER BREAT
BEINEZBRARENDFEEBEIAN NN 18
EH & —RIM B A R 2 W zk X Me20n Co., Ltd.HIA L)
W REERA RARERNZEH A ELERERS
N EBITRE H KR TR23.2% 5% BFGEE
FREEE B REFEGE RATSEZEH DA
REFEREASLEMMMBEAOLEEHHER U
ERETHEER-

TERYERTEEETAERBS ESNERER
o HPIRA EXNPEFEEITENHEDBMEAN
HEMBE 2017982 BFE@ITERTREN
—FohEHEEERRTERRERRTRAETED
A MARTSRBRE RRLFHEBESRTR
FERENER - BP BTSN BIVREE KT
SRARZERUNBGEHMERAS - HMABRE A
SENFEREB KA RABFRRER
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Chairrrlan's Statement

The Group is also putting efforts in developing other digital businesses
including digital marketing and mobile games. We are working on developing
casual games as well as exploring and expanding digital advertising customer
base. Our team is focusing on further enriching games content, enhancing
gamers' experience and promoting engagement in making mobile application
business the Group’s another important income driver. Whereas for consumer
electronic products, continuous effort has been spent on fine-tuning the
product mix and the Group is currently covering a broad spectrum of
traditional household white goods and high-tech personal gadgets. We have
good faith towards the steadily growing consumer electronics market.

For the past years, we have always been engaging in semiconductor
distribution, design, development and sale of consumer electronics product,
as well as introduces and distributes well-known overseas electronic products.
Our prudent and practical development strategies have been rewarded by
satisfactory operating results. Looking ahead, | hope the Group will continue
improving and growing healthily, to become a credible partner for our
customers and suppliers, and to bring rewarding returns to our shareholders.

Lastly, | would like to extend my gratitude to the Board, the management
team and our staffs for their enthusiasm, commitment and diligence. My
appreciation also goes to our shareholders, customers, suppliers and business
partners for their ongoing trust and support.

So Yuk Kwan
Chairman

Hong Kong
26 June 2017

AV Concept Holdings Limited
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEENWmN O

BUSINESS REVIEW AND PROSPECTS

The following sets out the financial highlights for the year ended 31 March
2017, with the comparative figures for the corresponding financial year of

EBEEBERATR
TRUIBE-B—tF=A=+—BILFE2HH
Y% ERA T AFHRFERBI BT

2016.
2017 2016
—E—tfF —E—XF
HK$'million HK$ million
BEAER BEET
Revenue by segment &5 EZ W
Semiconductor distribution FEEH 1,304.9 992.4
Consumer electronic product sales BEBHETERES 36.8 41.7
Venture capital Al 18.1 (18.8)
Others Hpth 0.7 2.9
1,360.5 1,018.2
Profit/(loss) before interest, tax, depreciation, BFE B B #ER
amortisation and non-cash items HEHEIEH FEF S (E1E)
Corporate NS (22.2) (25.9)
Venture capital Al 14.0 (23.4)
Semiconductor distribution FEEHH 227.2 118.0
Consumer electronic product sales HEREFEREE (7.6) (3.9)
Others HAith (6.4) (6.9)
205.0 57.9
Depreciation and amortisation TEREY
Corporate NS (0.0) (0.0)
Venture capital Al (0.4) (0.5)
Semiconductor distribution FEEH (2.5) (4.4)
Consumer electronic product sales BERETEREE (0.1) (0.0)
Others Hth (0.0) (1.9)
Total depreciation and amortisation E KBRS (3.0) (6.8)
Profit before interest and tax B )2 Be A5 T8 A A 279.1 6.1
Interest expenses FIEMx (3.2) (5.8)
Bank interest income RITHAEWA 0.5 0.4
Profit before tax W 355 B g A 276.4 0.7
Income tax TS (0.3) 1.4
Profit for the year FE WA 276.1 2.1
Profit for the year attributable to: AR AT A R 7 :
Owners of the Company ZAN/NECTE RSN 276.1 2.1
Non-controlling interests FEFE IR M A - -
276.1 2.1

AV Concept Holdings Limited
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BUSINESS REVIEW

After a lackluster outturn in 2016, economic activity slowly picked up pace
in the first quarter in 2017, especially in emerging market and developing
economies. However, there is a wide dispersion of possible outcomes around
the projections, given uncertainty surrounding the policy stance of the
incoming United States of America (“U.S.”) administration and its global
ramifications. However, China’s economy grew 6.9 percent in the first quarter
of 2017, beating expectations in the latest sign of stabilization in the world's
second-largest economy. Positive changes kept emerging and major indicators
performed better than expected.

During the year under review, the Group’s revenue by segment was
HK$1,360.5 million (2016: HK$1,018.2 million), increased by 33.6%. Among
which semiconductor distribution business recorded a revenue of HK$1,304.9
million (2016: HK$992.4 million), consumer electronic product business
recorded a revenue of HK$36.8 million (2016: HK$41.7 million), venture
capital business recorded a revenue of HK$18.1 million (2016: HK$(18.8)
million) and mobile application business recorded a revenue of HK$0.7 million
(2016: HK$2.9 million).

Semiconductor Distribution Business

Worldwide semiconductor revenue is forecast to total $386 billion in 2017, an
increase of 12.3% from 2016, according to Gartner, Inc., the world’s leading
research and advisory company. Favourable market conditions that gained
momentum in the second half of 2016, have accelerated and raised the
outlook for the market in 2017 and 2018.

During the year under review, semiconductor distribution business recorded
a turnover of HK$1,304.9 million (2016: HK$992.4 million). Among which
Singapore remains the Group's major market contributing approximately
HK$937.4 million, followed by Hong Kong and Korea with turnover of
approximately HK$215.0 million and HK$152.5 million respectively. Key
products selling to Singapore market include memory chips and thin-film
transistor liquid-crystal display. Going forward Singapore will be the core hub
covering businesses in Singapore, India and other Asia Pacific regions.

During the year under review, the joint venture of the Group, AVP Electronics
Limited and its subsidiaries (“AVPEL Group”), continued to record satisfactory
results. Its turnover, though not being consolidated into the Group’s
consolidated financial statements, recorded a 30.5% surge to HK$20,039
million (2016: HK$15,357 million). The revenue growth is mainly contributed
by Samsung electronics products under distribution, including multi-chip
packages and CMOS images sensors. With the increase in share of profits
from AVPEL Group during the year, profit attributable to owners of the
Company of HK$276.1 million (2016: HK$2.1 million) was recorded in the
year.

BEENWwN O

£ A

2016 (8 BER BRI IS EEHIE2017F BT EHE R
BlIF EHRFETSMERETLEE AT ZEE
ERBFNBER LS REEREROTET Y M5
HIEEBEHEMARE - BE WL PEEAE20175 Y
FEERT69% =R mGHERE - REEENTE
H- BB EAMNCETBECTEER RNSEZIER
TRBETEE -

BESHAN AEENRSIBED>ZEEELA
1,360,500,000/8 7T ( =& — 7<% : 1,018,200,000/7%
To) r EFA33.6%  HRFBES HERISE LT
1,304,900,000/ 70 ( == —754F : 992,400,000/ 7T )
THEBESFEMEBES & ¥ A36,800,0008 T (=
TN 141,700,000 7T) - BIIREBEBEEREA
18,100,000/ 7T ( =& — /<4 : (18,800,000)% T ) A F
HETE A TS5 2 25 A700,0008 T (Z T — < F:
2,900,000/ ) °

R B I R A A E GartnerR BIR R 20174
PR BRI ATE B EFI3,8601E 5 T [L2016%F 1%
£12.3% - ARHER2016F T FEFSHERMREER
FroniR  #E TR S T H2017F F2018FE M5 E L
JEER -

EIEEERAY - ¥ E 88 5 85 T 8) & 3£ %8 /21,304,900,000
It (ZZ — 734 1 992,400,000 7T ) o E AT N
NAKREBFEZE M5 EE 4937,400,0000%8 7T+ H X
BEBRES EX£BEH 54 /5215,000,000% 5T &
152,500,000/ 7T e SHAEFTME IS =B E R BEF
REROCATEERBERRABE RS - AKRFMBEAEXA
BEFME  DESEAMEZOELD -

EEHAN AEENEGECEXRARBRARD A REM
BAR (BBIARDSGSERNXE HEXHE
HEESHIAAKREM B RE FBE305%EREN
20,039,000,0007% T ( =% — 7N 4 : 15,357,000,000/8
L) BEREERIBERENOH-_ETTZZRHESY
KERAREGERE -EERNREHARERENHF
ANENER AFREZARREE ARMERMNESG
276,100,000/ 7T, ( = F —7X4 : 2,100,000/ 7T ) °
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEENWmN D

According to International Data Corporation, approximately 347 million
smartphones were shipped worldwide in the first quarter of 2017, a 4.3%
jump from the previous year. As the smartphone market gradually matures,
most of the future growth will come from more affordable models in a variety
of markets, which provides growth momentum for the Group's semiconductor
distribution business. Further, despite the stabilizing demand for liquid-
crystal display televisions and intensified competition within tablet sector,
the Group is hoping that new technologies and changes in consumption
habits may continue bringing new opportunities to market players. In view
of the satisfactory segment results, in particular the decent contribution from
AVPEL, the Group will focus more resources on the semiconductor distribution
business in the mid-long run.

Consumer Electronic Product Business

During the year under review, consumer electronic product business recorded
a turnover of HK$36.8 million (2016: HK$41.7 million). With the mission
to improve the quality of life of our customers, the Group is focusing on
fine-tuning the product mix to include a broader spectrum of goods that
accommodate all aspects of life. The Group is currently carrying a wide
range of products from durable traditional household white goods, to
personal gadgets, high-tech products and lifestyle goods. Among which Akai,
Nakamichi and Crazybaby are the most popular and reputable brands. For
getting more timely information and updated trends in the world’s electronic
products, the Group actively involves in e-Expo and product fairs every year
to bring the trendiest products to Asian consumers. In view of the satisfactory
development of the Group’s consumer electronics business, the Group will
focus on increasing the introduction of high-tech products to capture the
growing market.

Mobile Application Business

During the year under review, the turnover for mobile application business
was HK$0.7 million (2016: HK$2.9 million) with contributions from the
steadily developing Koocell Limited (“Koocell”). After the rearrangement of
business into two separate lines and entities in the prior year, namely online
advertising and game development, Koocell continued to grow healthily.
For game development, the Group is now focusing the resources to develop
the casual games that require shorter period of time to develop than the
traditional game. Also, the Group considers casual game will be a trend
in game industry in the future. The Group has published the casual game,
namely “Blocky Run”, in the market during the year under review. For online
advertising, the Group is still trying to increase the market share by finding
more customers who are interested in digital advertising.

AV Concept Holdings Limited
12 Annual Report 2017 &%

E WIS International Data Corp’ 7201745
—ZE PRERTFHRIEEEFILEDR L EFER
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Venture Capital Business

During the year under review, the turnover for venture capital business
was HK$18.1 million (2016: HK$(18.8) million) that is mainly for the fair
value gain/(losses) on equity investments in the current period. As of 31
March 2017, various funds, investments in an associate and a joint venture,
convertible bonds, equity investments and debt securities were held at fair
market value of HK$102.1 million (31 March 2016: HK$73.0 million) in the
Group. During the year under review, as compared to same period in last year,
the venture capital business of the Group recorded a fair value gain on equity
investments of HK$16.4 million (2016: fair value loss of HK$18.3 million). In
view of the rapid development of hi-tech industry during recent years, the
Group has made relevant investments including investment in Korean-listed
companies, IE Limited and Me20n Co., Ltd. (“Me20n"). IE Limited mainly
engages in game development and influencer marketing platform. IE Limited
is the mobile game developer which currently owned Korea’s most popular
webtoon licenses, and acquired Korea's number one influence marketing
platform, SmartPosting, in 2016. Me20n is a mobile game developer and
publisher with headquarter in Korea.

Venture capital business has always been a good income source for the
Group. The Group's recent investment in Korea's innovative technology sector
also achieved satisfactory results. Korea ranked the first in the year 2015 to
2017 out of 200 economies in Bloomberg Innovation Index, their research
and development intensity, industrial added-value and the number of patents
granted also topped the charts. The Group is targeting this world’s innovation
powerhouse, investing in its network services, mobile game development and
distribution business, hoping to catch up with unprecedented opportunities
for broader income source.

Prospects

The continued recovery in global semiconductors demand helped pull in
the segment’s strong performance as demand in key end markets like
smartphone and other home applications remained healthy. Electronics cluster
continued to drive growth momentum in the semiconductor sector, the
growth is expected to sustain for the rest of the year. And yet, in view of the
considerable downside risks and certain headwinds in the macro-environment,
the Group is cautiously optimistic about the business and industry outlook.

The fast-pace development of the global electronic information industry
created a promising prospect for the upstream electronic component
industry. The takeoff and the rapid growth of automobile electronics,
smart phones, laptops and set-top boxes enabled the development of
the electronic component industry. Among telecommunications products,
mobile telecommunications require largest quantities of components. In
addition, strong demand also arises from computer-related products as well
as consumer electronic products. Further, as China embarks on the “Made in
China 2025" plan with electronics and semiconductor technology as one of
the Top 10 focus areas, China’s semiconductor industry has an unprecedented
growth opportunity. The Group is therefore confident in maintaining healthy
growth in semiconductor distribution business segment.

BEENWmN O

B 5

EIEEHAN - BlIE ¥ B M & £ 88 /518,100,00008 T (= F
— 7<% : (18,800,000 7T ) T EHRAHINFEET
BRZBRAZREESRE, (BR) BEZT—tF=
A=+—H A%£EHFSEES R—EBEQF K
—HAEEARZIRE  FIEBRES  BRAREMERE
H AR FH{EAAE02,100,0008 7T (ZE—NFE=ZA
=-+—H :73,000,000/& 7T ) ° [C B EAA + EL A 4F [F] B4R
o NEBERAIRESK RS ATFEENRZBRAKE S
16,400,0007% 7© (20164 : A F & & /&5 1818,300,000/%
T cBRAFEFEERERAR NEBINEL T
FARIRE  BIERE TAEE ETAYIE Limited 2 Me20n
Co., Ltd. (Me20n) ° IE Limited = BH E 5B £
NEHFE B ARAREZTED A webtoonE 1
BB ERER S AR2016FWIE T BEEERE —
982 1 4 35 & SmartPosting ° Me20n Bl 2 — K458
BREBNF R A METE-

BIREB—EAEBEFRABIRA -HPAREFERLFX
B EREE B EHR R SRR IR AR 4R - 1T A
#1581 (Bloomberg Innovation Index)#t st T #2:E2001E
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BEENWmN O

After the business realignment of Koocell in the prior year, the Group has
been focusing resources on game development and digital advertising to seize
the unprecedented opportunities. From the latest report issued by Bloomberg,
the 600 million gamers in China generated $24.6 billion of the industry’s
$101.1 billion global market value over 2016, just ahead of the U.S.'s $24.1
billion. Moreover, China accounted for 31 percent of the total $18 billion
generated by mobile games, compared with just 3 percent of the $2.4 billion
total in 2012. With mobile devices staking an increasingly significant claim on
the overall digital market in China for several years, mobile gaming and digital
advertising will be the Group’s two core focus. The Group is working on
further enriching games content, enhancing gamers’ experience, promoting
engagement as well as scaling up its targeted mobile advertising for making
mobile applications business a good revenue driver in the future.

For consumer electronic products, the growing convergence of information,
communication and entertainment is bringing a new era of the global
consumer electronics industry. With increasing household income, more active
launching of innovative technological products and rising awareness of quality
living, the prospect of global consumer electronic products market remains
positive. The Group is continuously working on broadening the product
category with focus on lifestyle products and high-tech gadgets to capture the
latest market trend.

Given the continued success of the Group’s business as a comprehensive
distributor for semiconductors, consumer electronic products and mobile
applications, the Group will, by leveraging its leading position, goodwill and
competitive advantage, continue adopting prudent development strategies for
achieving sustainable growth and bringing satisfactory returns to shareholders.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

The total debt position as at 31 March 2017 and the corresponding gearing
ratio are shown as follows:

B A FKoocel WK EME AEB—HEFERRVIE
GEESMBEEEE UWRBERATRANKE - Figdt
BMNBETMEBER BE20165F 2 HEBEEXLK
A1L0VEET B ENeEEEIIR S k24683
TEW SR ERM241EETT BIN016FE 2K
BB A A180EE L FRME LR T31% Lt
2T 2B EBEEA20124 REE T 24EBETL U
REFBENBEEEA3% HBEEHRFEBHRELESD
EEEETHE LNERURES BHEEMETE
LEEEAEENMEZOES - AEEEE N BiBE
—SUFHEBAD BRAEEIRNERMAKEE -
MIEREABEUNBHREEBRE FRERE
BRARKEFHS —EEZHWARR -

ENHERESER E5 BANMRENHERAE
EMNEEETEREANT2FHR - BERELAN
BN - AR R EE G 9 HEBR BT DA R A PIET B A )E Y
BERMOES EMHERETEMT SN RIMAL
Bl-AEBEBRNNBREREN CEEINERE
mARRMMSHREFER W& T 5B -

BAAKBIEALER HERETERNTRERE
ek a 5 M R EIGRY - A KBS IR
il RENEERAFES ARFREANYE
HE L ERAREER LAREETHEHER -

R E SRS BER
R-B—t#= A=+ B EBLEKRRARE
AEELEMT :

2017 2016

—E—tF A

HK$'million HK$ million

BEER BEATT

Cash and cash equivalents ReRkERBELIER 111.6 69.6

Equity investments at fair value through BREBEREAFEBYIEZ

profit or loss A& 102.1 73.0
Cash and cash equivalents and ReRERBELELR RRAKRE

equity investments 213.7 142.6

Borrowings and finance lease payables ERRENRERERIA 118.4 137.2

Total equity R ARER 1,078.3 657.6

Total debt to total equity BB ER AT 2 & 1% 21%
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As at 31 March 2017, the Group had cash and cash equivalents (i.e., cash
and bank balances and deposits with other financial institutions) of HK$111.6
million (2016: HK$69.6 million), while the Group's equity investments at fair
value through profit or loss amounted to HK$102.1 million (2016: HK$73.0
million). The equity investments included a balanced mix of fixed income,
equity and alternative investments and such amount represented the cash
reserves held for the Group’s medium to long term business development and
would form an integral part of the Group's treasury.

The total debt to total equity ratio as at 31 March 2017 was 11% (2016:
21%), while the Group's total equity as at 31 March 2017 was HK$1,078.3
million (2016: HK$657.6 million), with the total balances of cash and cash
equivalents and equity investments as at 31 March 2017 of HK$213.7 million
(2016: HK$142.6 million).

The working capital position of the Group remains healthy. As at 31 March

BEENWwN O

R-B—tF=ZA=+t—H FAEEZRERERR
SEE (MRS RIRTEFARREMPBEEE 27
) /111,600,000 7T ( = F — 7N 4 : 69,600,000/8
L) MASEEBESREATEBEIIEZRARER
102,100,000/ 7T ( =& — 7<% : 73,000,000/ 7T.) ° I
AREBEEERA BARZEREZ FEHESG T
MSW%E?E'ZJSEIHW‘EEPﬁﬂiéﬂﬁiﬁ%%ﬁf@z&é
- YR AAREES 2 3D

R-TE—+HF ==+ BrzESEEEESAEY
HEAE1M% (ZE—RF:21%)  ANEBE 2 HEREE
R—Z—t&F=HA=+—HA1,078,300,000/%& 7t ( =
T — /N4 :1657,600,00087L) MRS EERKRSER
FRARER - E—+E =A==+ —RAZREBEES
213,700,000 7T ( == — /N4 : 142,600,000/ 7T )

AEBz2EE2MRDARR - R_F—tF=

2017, the liquidity ratio was 335% (2016: 147 %). R=+—H RBHESHLER3Z% (ZT—RF:
147% ) °
2017 2016
—E—tF A
HKS$'million HK$ million
BEATT BEAT
Current assets mENEE 625.5 298.2
Current liabilities mEEE (186.8) (203.5)
Net current assets mENEEFE 438.7 94.7
Current assets to current liabilities mEBEERRBABLE 335% 147%
Management is confident that the Group follows a prudent policy in EBIREEEE AEEXRBERIEBCRERELMEKT I
managing its treasury position, and maintains a high level of liquidity to ensure 4 ®ERENE © - AR & B 5L MBE S 1L 12 X 7518
that the Group is well placed to take advantage of growth opportunities for ~ &H#& o
the business.
SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS BEAKRE

As at 31 March 2017, the Group recorded equity investments at fair value
through profit or loss of approximately HK$102.1 million (31 March 2016:
approximately HK$73.0 million) and available-for-sale investments of
approximately HK$282.9 million (31 March 2016: approximately HK$20.9
million). For a detailed breakdown of equity investments at fair value through
profit or loss, please refer to note 22 in consolidated financial statements. For
the performance during the year and future prospects of equity investments at
fair value through profit or loss, please refer to the section “Business Review —
Venture Capital Business” on page 13 of this annual report.

RZTZ—tF=A=+—H AEEHBERERZ A
FEEYIE 2 AL A %102,100,0008 7T (=T — X
F=RA=+—8: 2773000000,%75)&7 ﬁ%&
& #9282,900,000 T (ZE—REF=A=+—H: 4
20,900,000 7T) - EEFEBEBERIEAFEEVEKR 2K
AIEEPM  F2MHRAMEMEMNT22 - BHEEHRE

e Tz’/}¥1 BEIRZBARENFA 2RI LAKRKE
E2HAFIREI3E [EBEIE - AIRE ] —fhe

AV Concept Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2017 &%

15



Management Discussion and Analysis

BB WmN D

For the available-for-sale investments, it comprised carrying amount of
HK$261.3 million (31 March 2016: nil) investment in a Korean-listed
company, Me20n and HK$21.6 million (31 March 2016: HK$20.9 million)
for key management insurance contracts. For the key management insurance
contracts, it is insignificant when compared to the total assets of the Group.
During the year ended 31 March 2017, the Group's equity interest in Me20n
has been diluted and the Group no longer had significant influence over it. As
such, the Group's investment in Me20n was reclassified from investments in
associates to available-for-sale investments, and the Group ceased to account
for Me20n using the equity method.

As at both 31 March 2016 and 2017, the Group held 4,288,212 shares in
the issued capital of Me20n, which represented approximately 14.2% of the
issued capital of Me20n as at 31 March 2017. The Group did not receive
any dividend from Me20n during the year. During the year ended 31 March
2017, the Group recorded a fair value gain for investment in Me20n of
approximately HK$147.3 million that was recognised in other comprehensive
income. As disclosed in the annual report of Me20n for the year ended 31
December 2016, Me20n recorded a consolidated net profit attributable to
owners of approximately KRW3,217.9 million (equivalent to approximately
HK$20.7 million) for the year ended 31 December 2016. With regards to the
future prospects of Me20n, based on published information, the directors of
the Company noted that Me20n would continue to focus on mobile game
development and being a mobile game publisher with headquarters in Korea.

EMPLOYEES

As at 31 March 2017, the Group employed a total of approximately 194 (31
March 2016: approximately 192) full-time employees. The Group recruits and
promotes individuals based on merit and their development potentials for
the positions offered. Remuneration package is determined with reference to
their performance and the prevailing salary levels in the market. In addition,
the Group operates share option schemes for eligible employees to provide
incentive to the participants for their contribution and continuing efforts to
promote the interests of the Group. Share options and discretionary bonuses
are granted based on the Group's and individual’s performances.
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ESENSHEEERBE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Dr. So Yuk Kwan (“Dr. So”), aged 67, is the founder, Chairman and Executive
Director of the Company. Dr. So is the father of Mr. So Chi On, Mr. So Kevin Chi
Heng and Mr. So Chi Sun Sunny. In the early 1980's, he founded AV Concept
Limited. Dr. So is primarily responsible for overall business strategies and
business development to the Company. Dr. So has over 41 years of experience
in the electronics industry. Under his leadership, AV Concept achieved
remarkable results in the sales and marketing of semiconductors contributing
to the appointment by Samsung Electronics as its distributor since 1982. In
1989, AV Concept Singapore Pte. Ltd. was established to develop its electronic
business in Singapore, South-east Asia countries and subsequently expanded
to the market in the People’s Republic of China through vertical integration
in early 90’s. In April 1996, AV Concept Holdings Limited listed on the Main
Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. The Group continuously
received numerous awards, including Samsung Electronics’s “Best Performance
Award" in recognition of the excellent sales and marketing performance as well
as contribution to cultivate strong customers relationship in the semiconductors
market.

Dr. So holds an honorary degree, Doctor of Philosophy in Business
Administration from the International American University and a Master
Degree in Business Administration from the University of East Asia (now
known as University of Macau) and he is also a Fellow Member of the
British Institute of Management. Presently, he is the Vice Chairman of the
Executive Committee of the Hong Kong Electronic Industries Association
Limited (“HKEIA") and the Chairman of Education Fund of HKEIA. Dr. So is
also the Vice President of The Hong Kong Semiconductor Industry Council.
Further, Dr. So is a Fellow Member of The Hong Kong Institute of Directors
and the Honorary Chairman of Advisory Committee (Industry) of Cooperative
Education Centre of City University of Hong Kong.

Mr. So Chi On (“Mr. So”), aged 40, is the Chief Executive Officer and
Executive Director of the Company. Mr. So is responsible for the overall
corporate strategies and operation of the Group. Mr. So joined the Group in
1999 and was appointed as an Executive Director of the Company in March
2001. Mr. So has over 18 years of experience in corporate and financial
management. Mr. So holds a Bachelor Degree of Business Administration from
the University of Wisconsin Madison. Mr. So is the son of Dr. So, Chairman
and an Executive Director of the Company and the brother of Mr. So Kevin Chi
Heng and Mr. So Chi Sun Sunny, Executive Directors of the Company.

Mr. So Kevin Chi Heng (“Mr. Kevin So”), aged 31, is the Chief Operation
Officer and Executive Director of the Company responsible for operation
of the Group and AV Concept Singapore Pte. Ltd.. Mr. Kevin So joined the
Group in 2011 and was appointed as an Executive Director of the Company
in November 2015. Mr. Kevin So obtained a Bachelor of Science degree
(major in Management) from Bentley College in May 2008 and a Master of
Business Administration degree from Bentley University in February 2010.
Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Kevin So had pursued a career in corporate
finance in an international financial institution. Mr. Kevin So is the son of Dr.
So, Chairman and an Executive Director of the Company, the brother of Mr.
So , Chief Executive Officer and an Executive Director of the Company and the
brother of Mr. So Chi Sun Sunny, an Executive Director of the Company.
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Mr. So Chi Sun Sunny (“Mr. Sunny So”), aged 29, is the Executive Director
of the Company, the vice president and chief executive officer of Koocell
Limited, an indirectly wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, which is
principally engaged in mobile applications business and online advertising.
Mr. Sunny So joined the Group in 2011 and was appointed as an Executive
Director of the Company in November 2015. Mr. Sunny So obtained a
Bachelor of Science degree (major in Graphic Design) from Northeastern
University in January 2011. Mr. Sunny So is the son of Dr. So, Chairman and
an Executive Director of the Company, the brother of Mr. So, Chief Executive
Officer and an Executive Director of the Company and the brother of Mr.
Kevin So, an Executive Director of the Company.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Dr. Lui Ming Wah (“Dr. Lui”), SBS, JP, aged 79, has been an Independent
Non-executive Director of the Company since 1996. Dr. Lui is an established
industrialist. Dr. Lui was a member of the Legislative Council of the HKSAR
between 1998 — 2008 and also a member of the Chinese People’s Political
Consultative Conference. He is now an Honorary Chairman of The Chinese
Manufacturers Association of Hong Kong, The HKEIA and The Hong Kong
Shandong Chamber of Commerce. In addition, he is also an Advisor of the
Hong Kong International Arbitration Centre and a member of the Hong Kong
Economic Development Commission. Dr. Lui obtained a Master Degree in
Applied Science from the University of New South Wales in Australia and a
Doctorate in Engineering from the University of Saskatchewan in Canada. He
is currently the Managing Director of Keystone Electronics Co. Ltd..

Mr. Charles Edward Chapman (“Mr. Chapman”), aged 68, has been
an Independent Non-executive Director of the Company since 2000. He
was Executive Director of the HKEIA and Managing Director of the HKEIA's
subsidiary publishing company, the Hong Kong Electronics Promotions Ltd.
from May 1988 to June 2007 when he retired. Currently, Mr. Chapman is
an Independent Non-executive Director of Mobicon Group Limited and he is
also a Senior Industry Consultant for a number of overseas-based trade fair
organisers. Prior to joining the HKEIA, Mr. Chapman worked for 12 years as
Economics Editor at the Hong Kong Trade Development Council and for 8
years as Business Editor in a local English-language newspaper.

Mr. Wong Ka Kit (“Mr. Wong”), aged 40, has been an Independent Non-
executive Director of the Company since September 2004. Mr. Wong is
the Senior Vice President, Mergers and Acquisitions of a Hong Kong listed
property company. Mr. Wong holds a Bachelor Degree in Accounting, Finance
and Economics from the University of Wisconsin Madison.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Choi Joon Yun (“Mr. Choi”), aged 53, was appointed as the President
and Chief Executive Officer of AV Concept Limited, a subsidiary of the
Company from 2006 — 2011. Mr. Choi currently is the President and Chief
Executive Officer of AVP Electronics Limited, a joint venture of the Group
since January 2012. Mr. Choi has over 28 years of experience in Sales and
Marketing. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Choi was the Sales and Marketing
Director of Samsung Electronics Co., Ltd. (Shanghai), and the Sales and
Marketing Senior Manager of Samsung Electronics Co., Ltd. (Hong Kong
and Shenzhen). He had also been working for Samsung Electronics Co., Ltd.
(Semiconductor Business) as Sales and Marketing Manager for Asian market.

Mr. Chan Chi Hang (“Mr. Chan”), aged 40, was appointed as the Company
Secretary and the Chief Financial Officer of the Company since August 2015.
Mr. Chan has extensive experience in accounting and auditing, and is a
member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and a
fellow member of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants.
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The Directors of the Company present their report and the audited
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2017.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND BUSINESS REVIEW

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The principal
activities of the Group consist of the marketing and distribution of electronic
components, the design, development and sale of electronic products, and
venture capital investment.

Further discussion and analysis of business review as required by Schedule
5 to the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, including a discussion of the
principal risks and uncertainties facing the Group and an indication of likely
future developments in the Group's business, can be found in the Chairman'’s
Statement and Management Discussion and Analysis set out on pages 6 to 16
of this annual report. The above discussion forms part of this directors’ report.

Principal risks and uncertainties

The management of the Company, as assisted by the audit committee of the
Company, oversees the Group's internal control and risk management system,
and conducts periodic reviews of such system to ensure good corporate
governance practice. The supervision process and outcome of the latest review
is set out in more detail in the section headed “Internal Control” in corporate
governance report in this annual report. The following is a discussion of the
principal risks and uncertainties facing by the Group. The management of the
Company meets periodically to discuss these risks, and where appropriate,
will monitor the situation closely and adopt any necessary risk mitigation
measures.

Industry risk

The sale and distribution of electronic components and design, development
and sales of electronic products are sensitive to technology change. The
industry is also subject to rapidly changing market trends and intense
competition amongst different players. This may materially and adversely
affect the Group's business performance. To maintain competitiveness, the
management of the Company will meet regularly to update the technology
change and the industry environment.

Economy risk

The performance of the Group is affected by the overall economy growth,
especially in the electronic components market. If the economy slows down,
it is highly likely that the demand for electronic components may be reduced.
Any continued economic slowdown or recession may result in a decrease in
sales, and may lead to a material adverse effect on the Group's business and
results of operations.
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Financial risk

Credit risk

To minimise credit risk, the Group has monitoring procedures to ensure there
is follow-up action to recover overdue debts. The Group also reviews the
recoverable amount of each individual debt at the end of each reporting
period to ensure that adequate impairment losses are made for irrecoverable
amounts. The Board therefore considers that the Group's credit risk is
significantly reduced.

Liquidity risk

The Group monitors and maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents which
it deems adequate to finance the Group's operations and mitigate the effects
of cash flow fluctuations.

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to risk of changes in market interest rates related
primarily to the Group's interest-bearing bank borrowings with floating
interest rates. It does not currently has any interest rate hedging policy, but
closely monitors its exposure to interest rate risk due to changes in market
rates and will consider hedging changes should the need arise.

Market price risk

The Group is exposed to the risk that the fair values of equity securities
decrease as a result of changes in the levels of equity indices and the value of
individual securities. The management of the Company monitors the changes
of securities prices and may change the investment portfolio held if needed.

Environmental policies and performance

The Group is committed to the long term sustainability of the environment
and communities in which it engages. The Group strives to minimise its
impact on the environment by reducing its use of electricity and water and
encouraging recycle of office supplies and other materials. The Group has
complied with all relevant laws and regulations regarding environmental
protection, health and safety, workplace conditions and employment.

Compliance with the laws and regulations

The Group recognises the importance of compliance with regulatory
requirements and the risks of non-compliance with the applicable laws and
regulations. During the year under review, the Group has complied in material
respects with the relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact
on the business and operation of the Group. There was no material breach or
non-compliance with the applicable laws and regulations by the Group during
the year under review.
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Relationship with employees, clients, suppliers and other
stakeholders

The Group understands the success of the Group’s business depends on the
support from its key stakeholders, including employees, clients, suppliers,
banks, regulators and shareholders. During the year under review, there
were no material and significant disputes between the Group and its key
stakeholders. The Group will continue to ensure effective communication and
maintain good relationship with each of its key stakeholders.

RESULTS AND DIVIDEND

The Group's profit for the year ended 31 March 2017 and the Group's
financial position at that date are set out in the consolidated financial
statements on pages 62 to 179 of this annual report.

The Board has recommended the payment of a final dividend of HK$0.02
(2016: Nil) per share for the year ended 31 March 2017.

The proposed final dividend, if approved at the forthcoming annual general
meeting to be held on Monday, 28 August 2017, will be payable on Tuesday,
19 September 2017 to shareholders whose names appear on the registrar
of members of the Company on Tuesday, 5 September 2017. Based on
772,944,419 shares in issue as of the date of this report, the total dividend
will amount to approximately HK$15.5 million.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The Annual General Meeting of the Company is scheduled on Monday, 28
August 2017. For determining the entitlement to attend and vote at the
Annual General Meeting, the register of members of the Company will be
closed from Wednesday, 23 August 2017 to Monday, 28 August 2017, both
days inclusive, during which period no transfer of shares will be effected.
In order to be eligible to attend and vote at the Annual General Meeting,
all transfers of shares, accompanied by the relevant share certificates, must
be lodged with the Company’s share registrar in Hong Kong, Tricor Tengis
Limited, at Level 22, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong,
for registration not later than 4:30 p.m. on Tuesday, 22 August 2017.

In order to determine the list of shareholders who are entitled to receive the
proposed final dividend for the year ended 31 March 2017, the Company's
register of members will be closed from Monday, 4 September 2017 to
Tuesday, 5 September 2017, both days inclusive. Shareholders are reminded
that in order to qualify for the proposed final dividend, all transfers of shares,
accompanied by the relevant share certificates, must be lodged with the
Company'’s share registrar in Hong Kong, Tricor Tengis Limited at the above
address for registration not later than 4:30 p.m. on Friday, 1 September 2017.
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SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE OPTIONS

Details of the Company's share capital and share options are set out in notes
29 and 30 to the consolidated financial statements, respectively.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s articles of
association (the “Articles of Association”) or the laws of the Cayman Islands
which would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro rata basis to
existing shareholders.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'S LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the year.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

At 31 March 2017, the Company’s reserves available for distribution,
calculated in accordance with the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands,
amounted to approximately HK$351,750,000. The share premium of the
Company is available for distribution or paying dividends to the shareholders
provided that immediately following the distribution or the payment of
dividends, the Company is able to pay its debts as they fall due in the ordinary
course of business.
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SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

A summary of the published results and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years, as extracted from the published audited

financial statements, is set out below.

MBENBE

TXHEHIINAKERZAE EEERRZWBRER 2 &0

LA BFEE 2O AMEEAREERBEMRE -

RESULTS E4
Year ended 31 March
BE=A=t-HILEE
2017 2016 2015 2014 2013
—E—tF ZE-RE “Z-1F “T-mF “E-=f
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FRL FAL THL FAET THL
CONTINUING OPERATIONS FELSEER
REVENUE Wi 1,342,399 1,037,023 1,957,690 2,749,902 2,334,475
PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE TAX BRBATRE (B8E) 276,396 757 (49,839) 53,888 52,301
Income tax FEH (274) 1,389 (564) (210) (3,368)
PROFIT/(LOSS) FOR THE YEAR ERER/ (HB) 276,122 2,146 (50,403) 53,678 48,933
DISCONTINUED OPERATION DRIEREER
Loss for the year from BRIEBEEK L
a discontinued operation FRER - - (14,538) (60,023) (55,811)
276,122 2,146 (64,941) (6,345) (6,878)
Attributable to: MTALRENR:
Owners of the Company ZAYNGIE 2PN 276,122 2,147 (94,287) 3,353 9,237
Non-controlling interests FERIER - (1) 29,346 (9,698) (16,115)
276,122 2,146 (64,941) (6,345) (6,878)
Assets and liabilities EERERE
As at 31 March
R=B=1+-H
2017 2016 2015 2014 2013
“E-tf NS —Z-1% —E-mE —Z-=F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAL FAEL THL FET THL
TOTAL ASSETS BEHE 1,280,877 884,514 1,140,104 1,335,459 1,482,833
TOTAL LIABILITIES BEAE (202,583) (226,952) (485,938) (666,806) (835,606)
1,078,294 657,562 654,166 668,653 647,227
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DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company during the year were:

Executive Directors:
Dr. So Yuk Kwan (Chairman)
Mr. So Chi On (Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. So Kevin Chi Heng
(Chief Operation Officer)
Mr. So Chi Sun Sunny

Independent Non-executive Directors:
Dr. Lui Ming Wah, SBS, JP

Mr. Charles Edward Chapman

Mr. Wong Ka Kit

The Company has received annual written confirmation from each of the
Independent Non-executive Directors, namely Dr. Lui Ming Wah (“Dr. Lui”),
SBS, JP, Mr. Charles Edward Chapman and Mr. Wong Ka Kit, confirming their
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”),
and considers the Independent Non-executive Directors to be independent.

Profiles of the Directors and senior management of the Group as at the date
of this annual report are set out on pages 17 to 20 of this annual report.

REMUNERATION POLICY

The remuneration of the Directors is recommended by the Remuneration
Committee, and approved by the board of Directors (the “Board”), as
authorised by shareholders in the annual general meeting of the Company,
having regard to their skills, knowledge and involvement in the Company'’s
affairs. No Directors are involved in deciding their own remuneration.

We offer competitive remuneration package, including medical and retirement
benefits, to eligible employees. Apart from basic salary, executive Directors
and employees are eligible to receive a discretionary bonus taking into
account factors such as market conditions as well as corporate and individual's
performance during the year.

In order to attract, retain and motivate the eligible employees, including the
Directors, the Company and a subsidiary have adopted share option schemes.
The schemes enable the eligible persons to obtain an ownership interest in the
Company and that subsidiary and thus will motivate them to optimise their
continuing contributions to the Group.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS

No Director nor a connected entity of Director had a material interest,
either directly or indirectly, in any transactions, arrangements or contracts
of significance to the business of the Group to which any of the Company's
subsidiaries was a party during the year.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S INTERESTS IN
SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 March 2017, the interests of the Directors and chief executive of
the Company in the shares and underlying shares of the Company or its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and
Futures Ordinance (the “SFO")), as recorded in the register required to be
kept by the Company pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise
notified to the Company and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”) pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code"”) contained in the Listing Rules,
are as follows:

Long position in shares of the Company
(a) Interests in shares of the Company

EERRESTRABRKRG RAERN
2R

RoZ—+E=A=+—0 ARABEERESTRA
ERAA TR A AE (R 5 BES R IEHI B XV
) 2 IR A RABRIAR 3 A AL TR BB RIS
BlEE35216 2 R AT R 2 BRMA e 5 %
R L TRAIFTER E T RTA B ERITEER SIS
#FR| ((EEFA ) ARTAEAATNREBBA R
SHAERAT (XA 2 EsmT

RERXTARGZHFR
(@) REQARMDzER

Number of Approximate
ordinary percentage of
Nature of interest shares of interest in the
Name of Director and chief executive and capacity the Company issued shares
ERTROERS
BEERBRITHRABHE ERMERSH AREEBRHE BABE DL
Dr. So Corporate interest 249,894,189
e NGIE 3
Beneficial owner 17,782,000 34.63%
EmEA A (Note 1)
(PFEET)
Dr. Lui, SBS, JP Beneficial owner 5,100,000 0.66%
BiEL s AFat EmAA (Note 2)
Interest of spouse (HMi=%2)
Bic 18 2 #E
Notes: Bt 3 -
1. These shares include (i) 169,254,300 shares held by B.K.S. Company Limited 1. ZER DA HEG)AB.K.S. Company Limited

("BKS"); (i) 80,639,889 shares held by Jade Concept Limited (“Jade Concept”);
and (iii) 17,782,000 shares held by Dr. So as beneficial owner. Dr. So is deemed
to be interested in 249,894,189 shares by virtue of his interests in BKS and
Jade Concept, the particulars are more fully described in the section headed
“Interests of Substantial Shareholders” below.

2. This represents the total number of shares held by the spouse of Dr. Lui, SBS,
JP. By virtue of the SFO, Dr. Lui, SBS, JP is deemed to be interested in 5,100,000
shares of the Company.
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(b) Interests in underlying shares of the Company (b) RAELQTEERGZER
Approximate
Number of percentage of
Name of Director Nature of interest ordinary shares of interest in
and chief executive and capacity the Company the Company
AT AR ER
EERBRTHRABHE ERMERSH ZBEREE BRBED
Dr. So Yuk Kwan Beneficial owner 600,000 (Note) 0.08%
FEHELT BB A (HF3E)
Note: B 3 -
These underlying shares in the Company represent interest in the share options granted RN B 2% ERBR G EBREA R R AR 2 BT
to Dr. So pursuant to the share option scheme adopted by the Company. BIR TERIE L 2 R -

(c) Interests in underlying shares of associated corporations of the () REALTEBELIEEBRNZER

Company
Approximate
Name of Number of percentage of
Name of Director Nature of interest associated ordinary shares of interest in
and chief executive and capacity corporations associated corporations associated corporations
HEEE e ZEER
ESRBRTRARKESR BRUEERSH R B £ EBRHE BHOES
Mr. So Chi Sun Sunny Beneficial owner Koocell Limited 220,000 (Note) 30.98%
HELxE ERBEBA (BzE)
Note: BsE -
These underlying shares in Koocell Limited, a subsidiary of the Company, represent Koocell Limited (Z’SZ\ajﬁﬁﬁW%’/}i)ZEZ%*H@W@
interest in the share options granted to Mr. Sunny So pursuant to the share option R ARI& Koocell Limited P £ 4 2 F A it 15 T 8678 42 0%
scheme adopted by Koocell Limited. HEZ R A o

The interests of the Directors in the share options of the Company and §$75A235Aﬂ&4‘ Ghli=PNGE e vk
a subsidiary of the Company are separately disclosed in note 30 to the &R MK HIFE30HEE -
consolidated financial statements.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2017, none of the Directors and M EMXPIREEN R-ZE—tF=A=+—H #E
chief executive of the Company had registered any interests or short positions AR A& F k& TEABR AR A AT AR
in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any of B (B &% KB RGIEXVEL) 2 B fn - 186 R
its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as ~ HEFF ELREAREER KPR GEHFE352 'KZ%EE
recorded in the register required to be kept under section 352 of the SFO, or B THREFZELMARLERIRIFTETRERITHNE
as otherwise notified to the Company pursuant to the Model Code. ARB TR SORA
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DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Directors’ and Chief Executive’s
Interests in Shares and Underlying Shares” and in the share option schemes
disclosed in note 30 to the consolidated financial statements, at no time
during the year were rights to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition
of shares in or debentures of the Company granted to any Directors or
their respective spouses or minor children, or were any such rights exercised
by them; or was the Company or any of its subsidiaries a party to any
arrangement to enable the Directors to acquire such rights in any other body
corporate.

INTERESTS OF SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31 March 2017, the following substantial shareholders (other than the
Directors and chief executive of the Company) had interests of 5% or more
in the shares of the Company as recorded in the register required to be kept
under section 336 of the SFO:

EESBEROIES ZEF

BIEERETHRABSRBRO RAABAN 2 #as] —
BRI R & AR & B 7 R I FE30PT 4 B8 2 8 Ak A T
O BENFAEARRARENERRARESE 2R
BHARKRFFRLETAEBEARRABRMD KEHTE
SRlE@ BN FETRETEZSEN: MARAR
HAEMKNE QR IS ST M 2 B EEA
PR EAE AN B B ESZ SR -

FERRZ2ER

R-B—t#=A=+—8 UTZEERR(AAT
B RBBTHABBIN) NAR AR A R E
% R RDIF33616 2 MEATRE 2 B M
25%IA 2%

Long position in the shares of the Company REQBRRBZER
Approximate
percentage of
Number of interest in the
Name of shareholder Nature of capacity shares held issued shares
ERITROER
BRRAEHE S HE RO EE BMAOBDE
BKS Benechial owner 169,254,300 (Note 1) 21.90%
EmfEBA (PH3EET)
Jade Concept Beneficial owner 80,639,889 (Note 2) 10.43%
BRERA (KEE2)
Central Investments Limited Beneficial owner 61,836,000 8.00%
BERERA
Madam Yeung Kit Ling (“Madam Yeung”) Interest of spouse 268,276,189 (Note 3) 34.71%
BRB L ([Hat]) BB 2 #E s (M3E3)
Notes: B 5
1. BKS is beneficially owned by Dr. So. By virtue of the SFO, Dr. So is deemed to be 1. BKSH#EH B L EHEA - RIBEFHHF R BERD - #ig %

interested in 169,254,300 shares of the Company held by BKS.

2. Jade Concept is beneficially owned by Dr. So. By virtue of the SFO, Dr. So is deemed to
be interested in 80,639,889 shares of the Company held by Jade Concept.

3. As Madam Yeung is the spouse of Dr. So, by virtue of the SFO, she is deemed to be
interested in the shares of the Company held by BKS and Jade Concept in which Dr. So
has interest and 17,782,000 shares and 600,000 share options held by Dr. So.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2017, the Company has not been
notified by any person or corporation (other than the Directors and chief
executive of the Company whose interests are set out above) having interests
in the shares and underlying shares of the Company which were required
to be notified to the Company pursuant to Part XV of the SFO or which are
recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company under section
336 of the SFO.

AV Concept Holdings Limited
30 Annual Report 2017 &%

B ARBKSHEA 2169,254,30008 AN R RIRAD R A #E2s o
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R HEE R -
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RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Details of the significant related party transactions undertaken in the
normal course of business are provided under note 35 to the consolidated
financial statements. None of the related party transactions as disclosed in
note 35 to the consolidated financial statements is subject to the reporting,
announcement and independent shareholders’ approval requirements of the
Listing Rules.

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

The Company and a subsidiary of the Company operate share option schemes
(the “Schemes”) for the purpose of providing incentives and rewards to
eligible participants who contribute to the success of the Group’s operation.
Further details of the Schemes are disclosed in note 30 to the consolidated
financial statements.

CHARITABLE CONTRIBUTIONS

During the year, the Group made charitable contributions amounting to
HK$231,000 (2016: HK$365,000).

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

In the year under review, sales to the Group's five largest customers accounted
for approximately 32% of the Group’s total sales for the year and sales
to the largest customer included therein amounted to approximately 9%.
Purchases from the Group's five largest suppliers for the year accounted for
approximately 97% of the Group's total purchases and purchases from the
largest supplier included therein amounted to approximately 87%.

None of the Directors or any of their associates (as defined in the Listing
Rules), or any shareholders (which, to the best knowledge of the Directors,
own more than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital) had any beneficial
interest in the Group's five largest customers or suppliers.

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN COMPETING BUSINESSES

During the year, none of the Directors or their respective associates (as defined
in the Listing Rules) were considered to have an interest in a business which
competes or is likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the business
of the Group, other than those businesses of which the Directors were
appointed as directors to represent the interests of the Company and/or the
Group.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and within the
knowledge of the Directors, at least 25% of the Company’s total number of
issued shares were held by the public during the year ended 31 March 2017
and as at the date of this report.
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MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the whole
or any substantial part of the business of the Company were entered into or
existing during the year.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

During the year under review and as at the date of this report, an indemnity
provision was in force. The Company has arranged appropriate directors’
liability insurance coverage for the Directors during the year under review.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Particulars of the Company's corporate governance practices are set out on
pages 34 to 43 of this annual report.

DISCLOSURE PURSUANT TO RULE 13.22 OF THE
LISTING RULES

As at 31 March 2017, the aggregate amount of financial assistance to, and
(where applicable) guarantee given for the loan facilities granted to, affiliated
companies of the Company, exceeds 8% under the assets ratio as defined
under Rule 14.07 (1) of the Listing Rules. In compliance with the requirement
of Rule 13.22 of the Listing Rules, the combined statement of financial
position of the affiliated companies (with attributable interest of the Group in
the affiliated companies) as at the latest applicable date is set out below:

EEEH
ERBBTIRFEARAR NEBRETEASS
B ERRARAN-

e ERTRIEMRI
REBSERAARE B8 5 AR EECER &
RAERBEFEAEF LR EF R TRBRR -

=]
ARRCEERERZHFE SN AFREIMVEEE4L3
"

BELEHHEANEB2GIEE2HE

REB—tF=ZA=+—0 ARABERFTESZHY
BEPR (MER) REERERBERT ZERZL
REERA E AR BIE14.07(MIEM A EZ BEELLE 28% °
RETE EWRE13. 21628 E  RELER B B
BRRZattMBiRAR (BREARENEB R B TE
i) BT

Group’s

Combined statement attributable

of financial position interest

EHMBRRE AEBEELER

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHET FAET

Non-current assets IERBEE 26,346 19,759
Current assets MBEE 3,621,497 2,716,123
Current liabilities mEEE (3,040,008) (2,280,006)
Non-current liabilities ERBEE (142) (106)
607,693 455,770

Share capital [ 120,000 90,000
Reserves ] 487,693 365,770
607,693 455,770

AV Concept Holdings Limited
32 Annual Report 2017 &%



AUDITOR

Ernst & Young retire and a resolution for their re-appointment as auditor of
the Company will be proposed at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

On Behalf of the Board

So Yuk Kwan
Chairman
Hong Kong, 26 June 2017

Directors’ Report
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Corporate Governance Report

The Group is committed to maintain a high standard of corporate governance
and enhance its transparency and corporate value. The Group believes that
good corporate governance provides a framework between the Board and the
shareholders so as to enhancing shareholders’ interest and value as a whole.
The Board continually reviews and improves its corporate governance practices
to ensure the Company keeps abreast of the expectation of shareholders of
the Company (“Shareholders”).

The purpose of this report is to provide Shareholders with information on
the major principles and corporate governance practices adopted by the
Company.

Throughout the year ended 31 March 2017, the Company has applied the
major principles with the code provisions set out in the Code on Corporate
Governance and Corporate Governance Report (the “Corporate Governance
Code”) contained in Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”).
Further details of the Company's corporate governance practices will be
described in the following sections.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board should assure responsibility for leadership and control of the
Company and its subsidiaries, and is collectively responsible for directing and
supervising the Company and its subsidiaries affairs.

The Board, led by the Chairman, is responsible for the formulation of the
Group's business objectives and strategies. Matters reserved for the Board
are those affecting the Group's overall strategic policies, finance and risk
management. The senior management is responsible for the day-to-day
operations of the Group directed by leadership of the Executive Directors. To
this end, the senior management has to implement, manage and monitor
the business plans, internal controls and corporate governance practices
developed by the Board.
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Board Composition
The composition of the Board ensures a balance of skills and experience
appropriate for the requirements of the business of the Company.

As at 31 March 2017, the Board comprised four Executive Directors and
three Independent Non-executive Directors (“INEDs”). One of the INEDs has
appropriate professional qualifications, or accounting or related financial
management expertise as required under the Listing Rules.

Each of the INEDs has made an annual confirmation of independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers the INEDs
to be independent. Having the INEDs in the Board ensure that independent
judgment is exercised and that a proper balance of power is maintained
for full and effective control of the Group and its executive management.
The Directors believe that the existing Board composition reflects the
Company’s respect for high standards of business conduct commonly
adopted by multinational enterprises. The INEDs perform an important role in
safeguarding the Shareholders’ interests.

The Board as a whole is responsible for reviewing the Board composition
(which include an assessment of the skills, knowledge and experience of the
existing Directors and suitable candidates) and for formulating procedures
for appointment of its own members and for nominating them for election
by the Shareholders on the first appointment and thereafter at regular
intervals through the retirement by rotation process pursuant to the Articles of
Association of the Company.

Each of the INEDs has been appointed for specific term and has entered
into a service agreement with the Company for a term of one year, which
shall continue thereafter unless and until terminated by either party giving
the other not less than three months’ notice in writing. All the Directors
are subjected to retirement by rotation in accordance with the Articles of
Association of the Company.

In accordance with article 112 of the Articles of Association of the Company,
Mr. Wong Ka Kit (“Mr. Wong”) will retire from the office by rotation and
is being eligible to offer himself for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting. Mr. Wong has served as an independent non-executive
director for more than 9 years. The Board has assessed the independence
of Mr. Wong who has met the independence guidelines set out in rule 3.13
of the Listing Rules. He has given an annual confirmation concerning his
independence to the Company. The Board, therefore, considers him to be
independent.
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Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

The position of the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer (the “CEQ") are
held by separate individuals. Such division of responsibilities helps to reinforce
their independence and accountability and responsibility.

The Chairman is responsible for providing leadership to, and overseeing the
functioning of the Board to ensure that the Board acts in the best interest of
the Company and the Shareholders as a whole. The Chairman determines
that the Board is provided with direction and sufficient consultation for the
Directors in effectively discharging their responsibilities for different aspects of
the business.

The CEO, supported by senior management, are responsible for
implementation of corporate goals, business strategies and policies resolved by
the Board from time to time. The CEO assumes full accountability to the Board
in respect of the Group's operations and development.

Save as Dr. So, the Chairman, is the father of Mr. So, the CEO, Mr. Kevin So,
the Chief Operation Officer, and Mr. Sunny So, there is no relationship among
members of the Board.

Board Meetings

Board meetings are scheduled to be held at about quarterly interval. The
senior management of the Group from time to time reports to the Directors
information on the activities and development of the Group’s business. In
addition, the Directors have full access to information on the Group and
independent professional advice whenever deemed necessary by the Directors.

The attendance record of regular four board meetings held during the year is
set out below:

TEERRE

IRERTHRAR
ERERTBEE 2B ATAALEE - LBERD A
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ExEEs
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FABTZOREREFTG G A 2 HELHEHINNT

Attendance/ gBHES
Name of Directors Number of meetings EZ# S BITRY
Executive Directors HITEE
Dr. So Yuk Kwan (Chairman) 44 HEAHEL (FE) 4/4
Mr. So Chi On (Chief Executive Officer) 44 BRBRSHE (TTEAE) 4/4
Mr. So Kevin Chi Heng (Chief Operation Officer) 44 BRBIESLAE (EEER) 4/4
Mr. So Chi Sun Sunny 44 ERELEE 4/4
Independent Non-executive Directors BUHHTEEF
Dr. Lui Ming Wah, SBS, JP 4/4  EFAEE L sBS AFa+ 4/4
Mr. Charles Edward Chapman 4/4  Charles Edward Chapman?%t 4 4/4
Mr. Wong Ka Kit 34 EBERGGAE 3/4
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Board Committees

As at the date of the report, there were four Board Committees, namely, the
Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee, the Nomination Committee
and the Corporate Governance Committee in operation and each one of
them was established with specific terms of references to assist the Board
discharging its responsibilities and maintaining proper internal controls and to
promote good corporate governance as a whole.

Audit Committee

As at 31 March 2017, the Audit Committee comprises three Independent
Non-executive Directors, namely Dr. Lui Ming Wah, SBS, JP (the Chairman of
the Audit Committee), Mr. Charles Edward Chapman and Mr. Wong Ka Kit.

The principal duties of the Audit Committee include (i) to discuss with the
external auditor before the audit commence, the nature and scope of the
audit and confirm their independence and objectivity; (ii) to review the
Group'’s financial information before submission to the Board; (iii) to review
the Group's financial reporting system and the effectiveness of the audit
process with internal control procedure; and (iv) to review external auditor’s
management letter and the relationship with the Group.

In accordance with the terms of reference of the Audit Committee, the Audit
Committee meets at least twice a year to review the interim results and the
final results of the Company.

During the year, two Audit Committee meetings were held. The Audit
Committee had reviewed the Group's audited consolidated financial
statements for the year ended 31 March 2016 and the interim results for
the six months ended 30 September 2016. The Audit Committee had also
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reviewed and discussed with the management the accounting principles and @AM 2 S 51 R B R AEH) - I 5 s T A% - AEEESIE
practices adopted by the Group, and discussed auditing, internal control and MM EEHEE EEHEE2_T—tF=-A=+—81t
financial reporting matters including the consolidated financial statements for ~ FE Z A B EHRE -

the year ended 31 March 2017.

The attendance record of the Audit Committee meetings held during the year FRBITZBERLZESeZ 2 HFELHEEIIMOT -

is set out below.

Name of Attendance/ gBHE
Audit Committee Members Number of meetings BRZEGHEH A BITRE
Dr. Lui Ming Wah, SBS, JP (Chairman) 22 BPAZEEL B AT (F/EFE) 2/2
Mr. Charles Edward Chapman 2/2  Charles Edward Chapman?%t 4 2/2
Mr. Wong Ka Kit 12 &EFREEE 1/2
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Remuneration Committee

As at 31 March 2017, the Remuneration Committee consists of three
Independent Non-executive Directors. The Remuneration Committee is chaired
by Dr. Lui Ming Wah, SBS, JP and the other members include Mr. Charles
Edward Chapman and Mr. Wong Ka Kit. One Remuneration Committee
meeting was held during the year to consider the salary increment of the
Directors and all members had attended the meeting.

The principal responsibilities of the Remuneration Committee include making
recommendations to the Board on the Company's policy and structure
for the remuneration of Directors and senior management and reviewing
the specific remuneration packages of all executive Directors and senior
management by reference to the Company’s performance and profitability as
well as remuneration benchmarks in the industry and the prevailing market
conditions. No Director or any of his associates shall be involved in deciding his
own remuneration. The Remuneration Committee normally meets once a year
and at other times as required. The Remuneration Committee had reviewed
the Directors’ remuneration for the year ended 31 March 2017.

The attendance record of the Remuneration Committee meeting held during
the year is set out below.

TEERRE
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HITESEK -FTNEEG 2 FFEARAERL - sBs:
K@t mE A S B IECharles Edward Chapmanit
ERERGEE -FTHEEERFREITT —RGHEMN
EEREENF TRKEBHBELE-

FHEZEEg I ERERERARAEETRSRER
BzHMBRRABRESTSRMHERSE Y2REAQF
ZRIBRAFEEN  ARERFHELRBRITHR &
AAERTEEREREREZ ARFIES - EF X
HEMBEAGTS2RETEAG 2 HM-FHES
E-REFRT-REE UNEFERHFRITEE-
FHZEgCRTEBE-_T—tF=A=1T—HLLHF
BZEEHM-

FRBTZHFHEZRGeR 2HELCHEHIIMT -

Name of Attendance/ gBHES
Remuneration Committee Members Number of meetings HMZEESEREH S BIRY
Dr. Lui Ming Wah, SBS, JP (Chairman) 1717 EREEL B AFa+ (FE) 11
Mr. Charles Edward Chapman 1/1  Charles Edward Chapman?%t 4 171
Mr. Wong Ka Kit 171 EREEA 11
Nomination Committee REZES

As at 31 March 2017, the Nomination Committee comprises three
Independent Non-executive Directors. The members of the Nomination
Committee are Dr. Lui Ming Wah, SBS, JP, Mr. Charles Edward Chapman and
Mr. Wong Ka Kit, all are the Independent Non-executive Directors. Dr. Lui
Ming Wah, SBS, JP is the chairman of the Nomination Committee.

The principal responsibilities of the Nomination Committee include (i) review
the structure, size and composition (including the skills, knowledge and
experience) of the Board at least annually and make recommendations
on any proposed changes to the Board to complement the Company's
corporate strategy; (i) identify individuals suitably qualified to become Board
members and select or make recommendations to the Board on the selection
of individuals nominated for directorships; (iii) assess the independence of
Independent Non-executive Directors; and (iv) make recommendations to the
Board on the appointment or re-appointment of directors and succession
planning for directors, in particular the Chairman and the CEO.
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The Nomination Committee meeting held at least once a year and additional
meeting may be held as required. During the year, the Nomination Committee
held a meeting and reviewed the structure, size and composition of the Board.

The attendance record of the Nomination Committee meeting held during the
year is set out below:

REZEEEVBFRT RS INAREHFE
TEH-FRN REZEGCLET-REH RELR
HEEGZRE ABEAK-

FRARTZRAZBEEER 2HFECEHIIMT -

Name of Attendance/ gBLE
Nomination Committee Members Number of meetings REZEEREHE BITRE
Dr. Lui Ming Wah, SBS, JP (Chairman) 11 BEREE L s APt (FE) 11
Mr. Charles Edward Chapman 1/1  Charles Edward Chapman?%t 4 11
Mr. Wong Ka Kit 11 BEREXE 11
Corporate Governance Committee TtEEREES

As at 31 March 2017, the Corporate Governance Committee comprises
three Independent Non-executive Directors. The members of the Corporate
Governance Committee are Dr. Lui Ming Wah, SBS, JP, Mr. Charles Edward
Chapman and Mr. Wong Ka Kit, all are the Independent Non-executive
Directors. Dr. Lui Ming Wah, SBS, JP is the Chairman of the Corporate
Governance Committee.

The Corporate Governance Committee is primarily responsible for developing
and reviewing the Company'’s policies and practices on corporate governance
and making recommendations to the Board and reviewing the Company’s
compliance with the Corporate Governance Code.

The Corporate Governance Committee meeting held at least once a year.
During the year, the Corporate Governance Committee held a meeting and
reviewed the Company’s policies and practices on compliance with legal and
regulatory requirements.

The attendance record of the Corporate Governance Committee meeting held
during the year is set out below:
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Name of Attendance/ gBHES
Corporate Governance Committee Members Number of meetings ©HEERZEEREHSA BITRE
Dr. Lui Ming Wah, SBS, JP (Chairman) 1717 BREEL s KTt (Z/E) 1/1
Mr. Charles Edward Chapman 1/1  Charles Edward Chapman?t & 1/1
Mr. Wong Ka Kit 11 EREEAE 11
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INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board reviews the Group’s internal control system from time to time
and will take any necessary and appropriate action to maintain an adequate
internal control system to safeguard Shareholders’ interests. An internal
audit function which is internally resourced and forms part of the Group’s
permanent establishment is in charge for overall review on the effectiveness
of the internal control system and will be discussed annually with the Audit
Committee.

During the financial year under review, the internal audit function had
arranged to conduct reviews over the effectiveness of the Group’s internal
control system to provide reasonable assurance on the effectiveness and
efficiency of operations in achieving the established corporate objectives,
safeguarding Group's assets, providing reliable financial reporting, and
complying with applicable laws and regulations.

The Board has also reviewed the adequacy of resources, qualifications and
experience of staff for the Company's accounting and financial reporting
function and their training programmes and budget. Both the Audit
Committee and the Board were satisfied that the internal control system of
the Group has been functioned effectively during the year and no material
internal control aspects of any significant problems were noted.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY
DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code as set out in Appendix 10 of the
Listing Rules. Having made specific enquiry with the Directors, all Directors
confirmed that they have complied with the required standard as set out in
the Model Code throughout the year ended 31 March 2017.
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AUDITOR'S REMUNERATION

The remuneration paid/payable to the Company’s independent auditor during
the year, is set out as follows:

R BRET BN <
Py B R A R TB M 2 MG HIImT

Services rendered FriR AR % Fee paid/payable
BN ENER

HK$'000

FET

Audit of financial statements BV BmE 1,850

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the consolidated
financial statements of the Group.

With the assistance of the Finance Department which is under the supervision
of the Chief Financial Officer, the Directors ensure the preparation and
publication of the Group's consolidated financial statements in a timely
manner in accordance with the applicable laws, rules, regulations and
accounting standards. The Directors, having made appropriate enquiries,
consider that the Group has adequate resources to continue in operational
existence for the foreseeable future and that, for this reason, it is appropriate
to adopt the going concern basis in preparing the Group's consolidated
financial statements.

A statement by the Company’s auditor about their reporting responsibilities
on the Group’s consolidated financial statements is set out in the Independent
Auditor’s Report on pages 54 to 61 of this report.

INVESTORS RELATIONS

The Company established a dedicated investor relations section in order
to provide timely information to the investors as well as Shareholders and
institutional investors. The Company also conducts a meeting with institutional
investors and analysts from time to time and to maintain updated information
opened to the public regarding recent development of the Company. Relevant
information of investor relations is available on the Company’s website
(http://www.avconcept.com/html/en/investor_relations.html).
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SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

The Company recognises the rights of Shareholders and their opinions are
valuable to the Company. The Shareholders are encouraged to participate
in general meetings or to appoint proxies or corporate representatives to
attend and vote at meetings for and on their behalf if they are unable to
attend the meetings. The Shareholders are encouraged to raise their enquiries
on the operations, corporate governance, corporate strategy and further
development of the Company during the meeting by way of shareholders’
rights. The process of the Company’s general meeting will be monitored
and reviewed on a regular basis, and, if necessary, changes will be made
to ensure that Shareholders’ needs are best served. The Board members, in
particular, either the chairmen or deputy chairmen of Board Committees or
their delegates, appropriate management executives and external auditor will
attend annual general meetings to answer Shareholders’ questions.

SHAREHOLDERS COMMUNICATION POLICY

The Company has established Shareholders Communication Policy in providing
a communication platform to the Shareholders of the Company with
information about the Company and enabling them to engage actively with
the Company and exercise their rights as shareholders in an informed manner.
Effective and timely dissemination of information to Shareholders shall be
ensured at all times. Any question regarding this policy shall be directed to the
company secretary of the Company or the board of directors of the Company.
Appropriate arrangements for the annual general meeting shall be in place
to encourage Shareholders’ participation and all corporate communication
will be provided to Shareholders in plain language and in both English
and Chinese version to facilitate Shareholders’ understanding, including
but not limited to interim reports, annual reports, results announcements,
notice of general meeting, circulars, and associated explanatory documents,
other announcements and monthly return on movements in the
Company'’s securities for each month and next day disclosure returns in
relation to the Company, which are available on the Company’s website
(http://www.avconcept.com).
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

INTRODUCTION

AV Concept Holdings Limited and its subsidiaries’ (refer to as the “Group”)
specialty areas include the sales and distribution of electronic components,
especially semiconductors, and consumer electronic products in Hong Kong,
the People’s Republic of China (refer to as the “PRC"”) and the Asia Pacific
region; design and development of electronic products; and the Group's
mobile application development business as well.

With the semiconductor distribution segment remaining as the Group's core
business, and the new market-focused businesses driving future growth, we
are dedicated to building an environmentally-friendly corporation. Meanwhile
we consider social and environmental responsibilities as one of the core values
in our business operation, we strive for greater sustainability and transparency,
as well as to actively searching for potential products that could foster a
sustainable environment for future generation.

This report summarizes the environmental, social and governance issues the
Group views as among the most important to our business and our relevant
implemented policies and strategies in relation to the Group’s operational
practices and environmental protection.

REPORTING FRAMEWORK AND SCOPE

This is the Group's first Environmental, Social and Governance (“ESG”) report.
The ESG Report is prepared based on “Environmental, Social and Governance
Reporting Guide” under Appendix 27 of the Listing Rules. The reporting
period is from 1 April 2016 to 31 March 2017.

The report content is focused largely on the Group's operations, including the
headquarter office in Hong Kong (refer to as the “Company”) and all of its
subsidiaries in Hong Kong, the PRC, and the South East Asia, unless stated
otherwise.

MATERIALITY ASSESSMENT

We have maintained close communication with our stakeholders since
our listing. Through multiple discussions and direct communications, we
understand the issues that matter most to our stakeholders.

The recognition of sustainable development and environmental reform are
the most fundamental elements to the operation of the Group; as well as
the relationship and happiness of all our stakeholders play an undeniably
important role in our Group’s operation.
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The Group is dedicated to fair and equal treatment in all areas of human
resources, including recruitment and promotion, compensation and dismissal,
working hours, benefits and welfare.

ENVIRONMENTAL SUSTAINABILITY

The Group is committed to fulfill sustainable development and promote
preservation of resources with its environmental responsibility. We strictly
comply with all appropriate laws and regulations of Environmental Protection
Department, and always uphold the principle of equal emphasis on operation
and environmental protection.

Environmental Protection

As a distributor of electronic products that does not own any production
facilities, the Group relies on external suppliers to manufacture products.
We understand that all stages generate wastes for the environment and, if
not treated responsibly, much pollution would be generated for our future
generation. Thus, the Group is fully devoted to the implementation of all kind
of measures and policies to better control the adverse impact of the business
on the ecological environment.

The Group is committed to protecting and sustaining the environment
through reduced consumption of electrical power and paper use at the office.

Emission
The Group's major greenhouse gas emissions come from the use of electricity,
including lighting system, air-conditioning and office equipments.

In order to reduce our collective carbon footprint and toxic emission in
the atmosphere, we have installed energy-efficient lighting system in our
headquarter office; our lights are shut off during non-working hours by
automatic controls, it reduces both electrical consumption and as well as
maintenance expenses. Our employees are highly encouraged to switch off
their computers and other office equipments when not utilized which fosters a
culture of energy awareness.

Use of Resources

The Group has actively practicing green management in the office; our
objectives are to use resources efficiently and to cultivate an environmental
awareness among office workers, who consume large amounts of paper daily.
We encourage our employees to print only when necessary to reduce paper
wastage and to help cut energy required to run printer, as well as promote
double-sided printing. Used paper constitutes the majority of waste in our
headquarter office, which comprised of office paper and poster. Waste papers
are generally collected from the office by recyclers, who will process and
directly recycle at paper mills.
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In addition, the Group's transportation fleets in Hong Kong use environmental
friendly trucks that meet the emission and noise control standards issued by
the local government.

Waste Management

We aim to minimize the impact of our business operation on the environment,
the Group implements measures for environmental protection, including
using energy efficient appliances and equipment to achieve additional
energy savings and reduce gas emissions, operating lighting control systems
for regional power supply based on actual need and recycling used papers
regularly.

The waste produced by the Group's operation is mainly generated in the daily
life and by the operation of the office, including paper, plastic, glass, and
kitchen waste. The Group assigned an administrative staff to manage and
transport the wastes and recyclables for both garbage and recycled waste
pick-ups.

The staff duties include but not limited to the following:

o Organizing, maintaining and cleaning the garbage and recycled waste
holding areas.

o Sorting recycled waste into appropriate receptacles, educating
employees on sorting methods if needed.

o Placing appropriate signage on walls and bins, stating what type of
waste or recyclable should be placed in the bin.

o Ensure that no garbage is to be placed on building colonnade areas.

SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

We believe building strong and lasting relationship with our employees and
suppliers is essential to our on-going commitment as a socially responsible
company. Besides, maintaining an honest and authentic dialogue with our
consumers is indispensable to be a responsible organization and partner to our
stakeholders.
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Employment and Remuneration Policies

In order to maintain the best people in our Group, we retain and invest in our
employees. We implemented job relocation as one of our employee retention
strategies to strengthen our employee’s commitment to the Group. Employees
are expected to retire from work upon reaching the age of 65. Nevertheless, if
they wish to stay with the Group after the normal retirement date, it is at the
discretion of the Group whether or not to extend the employment.

The employees of the Group are remunerated at a competitive level and are
rewarded according to their performance and experience. The promotion and

remuneration of the Group’s employees are subject to review regularly.

Our employee’s remuneration package for our employees includes the
following:

o 13 months payment;
o Overtime payment with management approval;

o Annual leave, and compensation leave for employees who are under
Hong Kong employment;

o Compensation leave for overtime work on the rest day or Government
Gazette Holidays;

o Our female employees are entitled to maternity leave pay, while male
employees are entitled to paternity leave pay.

Our insurance benefits also include the following:

. Medical insurance;

. Life insurance;

° Employee compensation insurance;

. Business travel insurance;

o Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes is offered for the retirement of

employees in Hong Kong.

During the reporting period, the Group did not find significant violations of
laws and regulations relating to human resources.
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Employment

The Group is an equal opportunity employer and does not discriminate on
the basis of personal characteristics. The Employee Handbook outlines the
terms and conditions of employment, expectation for employees’ conducts
and behaviors, employees’ rights and benefits. We establish and implement
policies that promote a harmony and respectful workplace. With the aim
of ensuring fair and equal protection for all employees, the Group has zero
tolerance on sexual harassment or abuse in the workplace in any form, which
is a violation of Hong Kong law. We discourage and disallow any behavior that
violates the regulations under the Employee Handbook and Code of Business
Conduct (refer to as the “Code”), and Anti-Bribery and Corruption policy
in Hong Kong. The Group reserves the right to terminate an employment
without notice or payment in lieu of notice in case of misconduct or material
breach of employment contract.

The chart represents the distribution of the workforce population for five
different age groups. During the reporting period, the two younger working-
age groups are ages 21 to 30 and 31 to 39 accounted for about half of the
workforce. Besides, the older age group population, age 51 to 60 and above
60 accounted for only total 20 percent of workforce; while the employees at
the middle age group ranging from age 40 — 50 made up of 29 percent of the
total workforce.
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In addition, the following chat represents the distribution of the workforce
population by gender. During the reporting period, the female population of
total workforce accounted for 65 people, which made up of 34 percent of
the total workforce, whilst the male population of total workforce account for
129 people, which made up of 66 percent of total workforce.

Total Workforce by Gender Group

34%

oy

During the reporting period, the Group did not find any cases of violation of
laws and regulations relating to the prevention of children or forced labor.

Health and Safety

The Group always places our workplace safety as our top concern, we pride
ourselves on providing a safe, effective and congenial work environment as
we believe that employees are the valuable assets of an enterprise and regards
human resources as its corporate wealth.

The Group has developed healthcare information system that offers a
comprehensive health care support for our employees to be healthier,
happier and more productive. With our adequate arrangements, training and
guidelines, we ensure the working environment is healthy and safe.

The Group is committed to maintaining a high standard of occupational
safety and health to all employees. For the employees’ own protection and
the protection of others, our employees are expected to observe all safety
regulations and precautions at all times, and report any observations of unsafe
conditions to Human Resources and Administrative Department.

All employees have the responsibility to:
o Follow all the Group's policies, procedures and instructions;
o Use of any equipment and not to misuse anything which can cause

harm to others;
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J Avoid employees who are adversely affecting their own health and
safety to others, for example, an employee who has contracted
with influenza or other contagious disease, is to apply for sick leave
immediately.

During the reporting period, the Group did not find any case of violations of
laws and regulations in relation to the health and safety of the workplace.

Staff Development Sponsorship

The Group regards its staff as the most important asset and resource of
the Group as they help to sustain its core values and culture. The Group
provides orientation training to new employees for ensuring them to have
a good understanding on the goals and vision of the Group, which also
supports them to achieve a good performance with their position in the
Group. The Group encourages staffs to attend seminars, courses and take
professional examinations in areas related to their work in order to improve
job performance, professional knowledge and technical skills. Employees are
eligible to apply for the sponsorship if he/she is a full-time employee, has
completed three full years service and with management approval.

Labor Standards

Most of staff employed by the Group is located in Hong Kong. The Group
established and implemented an “Employee Handbook” which contains the
policies relating to relevant labor laws, regulations and industry practices,
covering areas such as compensation, dismissal, promotion, working hours,
dismissal, recruitment, rest periods, diversity and other benefits and welfare.

The Group works to ensure an equal and fair working environment. The
Group has complied with labor laws, the Code, Bribery and Corruption,
offences against laws, proprietary information and government regulations
set by Hong Kong, other regions in the PRC and Singapore. No employee is
paid less than the minimum wage specified by the government regulations in
different jurisdictions. The Group strictly prohibits the employment of children
or forced labor and sets out the policies in our labor code to eradicate child
labor, juvenile workers and forced labor. The prohibition of child labor and
anticorruption practices are both set in accordance with all relevant laws and
regulations that applied in the Group’s headquarter office and its subsidiaries.
The Group has strictly complied with the all rules throughout the year ended
31 March 2017.

OPERATING POLICIES

The Group established supplier management system to ensure operations is
fully complied with Hong Kong laws and regulations in relation to social and
environment aspects in the most sustainable manner.
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Supply Chain Management

The Group understands there is potential supply chain risk associated with
our key suppliers, we established Supply Chain Risk Management team
to regularly visit and conduct assessments of risk with our suppliers and
contractors, to ensure the possibility of a supply chain disruption could be
avoided through a formal risk detection and mitigation.

In addition, we promote fair and open competition that aims to develop long-
term relationships based on mutual trust with our suppliers. We ensure that all
parties involved in the procurement process participate fairly, honestly and in
good faith. We recognize that adherence to the principles of fair and vigorous
competition is essential to the maintenance of the integrity of procurement
process.

Product Responsibility

The procurement from suppliers is conducted in a manner consistent with
the highest ethical standards. Supplier Code of Conduct helps to ensure high
products quality at all times to gain the confidences of customers, suppliers
and the public.

We respect intellectual property rights and safeguard customers’ information.
Our suppliers and employees are instructed to handle customer information
with due care. They may get information about the customer only when
there is a good reason to do so. We collect and use customer information
in a responsible and non-discriminatory manner by restricting the use of the
customer information to the purposes consistent with those identified in our
contracts.

The Group is not aware of any material non-compliance with the relevant laws
and regulations that have a significant impact on the Group relating to health
and safety, advertising, labeling and privacy matters relating to products and
services provided and methods of redress during the year.
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Anti-corruption

The Group is committed to achieving and maintaining the highest standards
of openness, probity and accountability. The Code and guidelines are
incorporated in the Employee Handbook; employees at all levels are expected
to conduct themselves with integrity, impartiality and honesty. It is every
employee’s responsibility and it is all interest of the Group to ensure that any
inappropriate behavior or organizational malpractice that compromises the
interest of the shareholders, investors, customers and the wider public does
not occur.

The acceptance of gifts with significant material value, lavish entertainment,
or other gratuities of substantial worth can raise doubts to the employee's
objectivity and could damage the reputation of the group for fair dealing.
These problems can be avoided by implementing conducts to clearly
demonstrate that the Group manages the business in an ethical manner.

During the reporting period, the Group did not find any cases that violated the
relevant laws and regulations.

COMMUNITY INVOLVMENT

As a corporate citizen, the Group is committed to participate in the
community events to the improvement of community well-being and social
services. The Group believes that by encouraging staff to participate in a
wide range of charitable events, concerns for the community will be raised
and boosted, which would inspire more people to take part in serving the
community.

During the reporting period, the Group made charitable contribution
amounting to HK$231,000 to communities; including Tung Wah Group
of Hospitals, Grace Foundation (Hong Kong) Ltd. and Vocational Training
Coundil.

SUSTAINABILITY

The Group understands the importance of achieving economic, environmental
and social sustainability for the long term success of our business. Our
sustainability guidelines lay out our principle and action for managing and
performing ethically and sustainably, throughout our operational flow. The
Group will continue to deliver safe and quality technical products served by
our enthusiastic team members, without endangering the environment. We
will also continue to provide hearty service to our customers and contribute
back to the community.
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Central, Hong Kong

To the shareholders of AV Concept Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of AV Concept
Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out
on pages 62 to 179, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 31 March 2017, and the consolidated statement of profit or
loss, the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows
for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view
of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 March 2017,
and of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows
for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA"”) and have been properly prepared in compliance with
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSAs"”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the
audit of the consolidated financial statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were
of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements
of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our
audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.
For each matter below, our description of how our audit addressed the matter
is provided in that context.
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We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s responsibilities
for the audit of the consolidated financial statements section of our report,
including in relation to these matters. Accordingly, our audit included the
performance of procedures designed to respond to our assessment of the risks
of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements. The results
of our audit procedures, including the procedures performed to address the
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matters below, provide the basis for our audit opinion on the accompanying

consolidated financial statements.

Key audit matter
BREETSEE
Estimation of fair values of investment properties

REMEQNFEEMLS

As at 31 March 2017, the Group’s investment properties
measured at fair value amounted to approximately HK$116
million, with the corresponding fair value changes recognised in
the statement of profit or loss. The valuation process is inherently
subjective, and dependent on a number of estimates such as
estimated rental value, term yield, reversionary yield, adjusted unit
price, etc. The Group has engaged an independent valuer to value
the investment properties at the end of the reporting period.
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The significant accounting judgements and estimates and
disclosures about fair values of investment properties are included
in notes 3 and 13 to the consolidated financial statements.
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How our audit addressed the key audit matter
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We evaluated the competence, capabilities and objectivity of the
independent valuer engaged by the Group. We also obtained
an understanding of the work of the independent valuer and
evaluated its work by assessing the relevance, completeness
and accuracy of the data used as inputs for the valuation, and
assessing the major assumptions and methodologies adopted
in the valuation by checking to the price or rental rate of similar
properties. We also involved our internal valuation expert to assist
us in evaluating the major assumptions and methodologies of the
valuation of certain investment properties held by the Group.
BMEdE BEEEZEZBIGHEMSESHE HEIRERH
RESEE KM THRBE(GEM TE WEBTHHEMG
EHABZEBEETHM TERER FTEBGEEM 2 IE:
AREZEOUME ZERIEE AT HEEEAZEEBRERT
EoBMMEBEABHEZIRIGE ML BEEREMFEETIREDE
ZEFEBRREET A



Independent Auditor’s Report

Key audit matter
FARETER
Investment in convertible bonds issued by IE Limited

FAIE Limited T TAIRREHF 2 RE

During the year, the Group subscribed the convertible bonds
issued by a company listed in Korea at a consideration of
US$7,500,000 (equivalent to HK$58,275,000). The convertible
bonds have a maturity period of two years and can be converted
into shares at pre-determined conversion prices after the first
anniversary of the issue date. Management has designated the
convertible bonds as financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss. Management has engaged an independent valuer to
value the convertible bonds at the end of the reporting period.
The valuation of convertible bonds requires management to
make assumptions on the expected future cash flows, credit risk,
volatility and discount rates, which involves significant judgement.
FR- BEEERE-HBEETARBTZARKES REA
7,500,000% 7t (#8%5458,275,0007 7T ) © AIRMREH AHIME « 7]
RETARE BFREATERBEEBERARKRN -BEREDHTEA
BREFSREBESEEATEEIIRZeMEE -BERECZES
SEERANIRE AR AT RRES ETEE AT RRESRETE
EEEMREPARARRSRE EERR KERREFEHRR
i Lk 28 28 5% 3 K ) o

The significant accounting judgements and estimates and
disclosures about fair value of the convertible bonds are included
in notes 3 and 37 to the consolidated financial statements.
FESHABRGFARBAAIRREFATEECREER D
RIE AR E B IS R M 523 %37 o
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How our audit addressed the key audit matter

BANESANMEEBRETER

We evaluated the competence, capabilities and objectivity of the
independent valuer engaged by the Group. We also obtained
an understanding of the work of the independent valuer and
evaluated its work by assessing the relevance, completeness
and accuracy of the data used as inputs for the valuation, and
assessing the major assumptions and methodologies adopted in
the valuation by benchmarking with market data and referring to
similar convertible bonds available in the market. We also involved
our internal valuation expert to assist us in evaluating the major
assumptions and methodologies for valuation of convertible bonds
held by the Group. We also reviewed the subscription agreement
to ensure the relevant disclosures are included in the consolidated
financial statements.

BMEdE BESEEZEZBEEEMIEHE HEIRERH
REBEE - LMME 7THRBE LA TE- WiFEBTEAER
BERAEZ BB TR T8 RER TEBL(AEM TE-
LA R EEAE 5 AT T35 BUR S 2 IR T35 RO IR E 5 - LART (A (4
BERAZFERERF L - BRMABEANLEEERBHTE &
SEMFARRES 2 FZRIEMEET L - R EHRBEH
BATEGRE M BHRRAME 2 EBREER -
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Independent Auditor’s Report

BB EHRE

Key audit matter
FREETER
Provision against inventories

FERE

As at 31 March 2017, the gross inventories balance and inventory
provision of the Group amounted to HK$86 million and HK$8
million, respectively.

RZE—+F=A=+—H  BEEFEAHRLBERTERE
% Bl %86,000,0007% 7t }.8,000,000/% 7T ©

The Group is engaged in the marketing and distribution of
electronic components and design, development and sale of
electronic products, which are subject to changing market
demands and market competition. Management judgement is
required for assessing the appropriate level of inventory provision
in light of the current challenging business environment.
EEBEFERSET BT HSHRERDHEUREFER 2K
FEMEE XMEHTREERTSHFTE - ENRBLEHRNR
KEESE ERENTEFERBAEKTREEFED HE-

The significant accounting judgements and estimates and
disclosures of the balance of inventories are included in notes 3
and 19 to the consolidated financial statements.
FESHABRGFARBEGFEARIBEERDRENGEE
B SRR M EE3 219 °

OTHER INFORMATION INCLUDED IN THE ANNUAL

REPORT

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information. The
other information comprises the information included in the Annual Report,
other than the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report

thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other
information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider
whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed,
we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information,

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

BANESHNMNEEBRETEER

We understood and evaluated the basis which management used
in estimating the level of provision for inventories by considering
the stock ageing as at 31 March 2017 and the subsequent sales
after year ended 31 March 2017. We also performed analytics on
stock holding and inventory movement data to identify products
with indication of slow-moving or obsolescence. Furthermore, we
compared the carrying amount of the inventories, on a sample
basis, to their net realisable value through review of sales of the
inventories subsequent to the year end. Where there were no
subsequent sales of the respective inventories after the year end,
we communicated with management for the realisable values
of the inventories, which were supported by sales orders from
customers or market research for sales price of similar products.

BMEEBRZERNR T —tF=-A=+—HZEFRRERHEZEZ
T+ F=ZRA=1T—HUIFERZHRHEE THRITHEEER
N FEBREKTEZEE - BMTEIMAREERFEZHH
BB LBEFHIRETRCER N RFIE B BERFE
HezFEHEBR MELRFE RaERARERFE-F
B EEFEAREBTFEHECER RMEEEREER U
EHETESHEUEREEZ TSR FFECNEREE:.

FHATMWEAER

ERAEFRAREMENEE B EHN B FRATHE
AR ETBESA MBS HRR KB FIpL 3 H R 8
BD R 5 -

HMSGEPBHRERNERL TREEMER AT
AR EMERNBERERNTANEEER -

ERMETHRAVBERETE  HANEEAHERM
AR MAELBIETR RMEEREMENEEELEGS
BRI RBMAEZABRTERNBARETR K
EEUFFEERERRL - ERNEMEETHIE
R MR R EAME R FEERERR - BIRMARS
ERFE U= RALEERHRSE -

we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors of the
Company are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors of the
Company either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations or have
no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors of the Company are assisted by the Audit Committee in
discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the Group's financial reporting
process.

AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion. Our report is made solely to you, as a body and for
no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability
to any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error
and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

B A2 EN RS

EERGaMBRRAKENER

BEATESAABRRRESRHNARRHNEEH
B RA R BB D A EOI00 B B R RS A B
B NS GANBREELABATHRB  ARE
BEERARUGAHBRETUENNBES U
AR BRETEEDNRFRHEEMERNEAR
SR -

=B
=S

ERGAMBHREN . RANEFARET
ERTALNBESEEE HE (NER) BEEE
BEMED CEREEEERIA RIRE BA

B
AERERILEEE BEXRE FIBRUZHITEBEEIER
JE - BIMERIG

BERFEEAEEZZEEMY TRITHES &EXHE
MEHEBIENEE-

%%ﬁ%%ﬁﬁé%ﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁ%%ﬁ

BB BERABEEFAVBRRABEROTFE
MR HEFS AR ME TN ERE R U BELBER
FIE R ERENIRE - RPN REEMERBREL
Btk DASNS AT (R B A 3 © S PTEA EASR S AR S
FEREMALTAERAEBEEEE-

EREZBSEAER BTRERRBEBEAE
ETMET TIEREBRTFANEREREUL - 3R
ARANRR AR - HER R EBBEREBEHBERT
AR EEREENAGAMBHMRELDOLERTE B
WAR BE R R IR -
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B Az E RS

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We

also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design
and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by
the directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained,
whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions
that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as
a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists,
we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the
related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to
cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group
audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings,
including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during
our audit.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence and
to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we determine
those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit
matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely
rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated
in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s
report is Ip Hing Lam.

Ernst & Young

Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

26 June 2017

B AZHEN RS
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss

Year ended 31 March 2017 BE =T —tF=A=+—HILFE

2017 2016
—E—+F —ERF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B 5 FET FHE T
REVENUE I = 5 1,342,399 1,037,023
Cost of sales SHE AR (1,297,955) (1,010,893)
Gross profit EF 44,444 26,130
Other income and gains H AU A R W am 5 11,778 7,782
Changes in fair value of investment BEAMERNTEBEZE
properties 13 2,345 (5,477)
Selling and distribution expenses HE RS HEH (10,908) (14,578)
Administrative expenses THER (62,902) (81,862)
Fair value gain/(losses), net: AN EER (EEB)F5E
Equity investments at fair value EREREATEEYRZ
through profit or loss A&
— held for trading —RHEER (4,093) (18,113)
— designated as such upon — RN IE RS E
initial recognition AU AER 20,485 (174)
Gain on deemed disposal of an associate  fR{EH & — B & QA 2 Wz 90,735 =
Other expenses, net Hih &R F5E (29,875) (74,255)
Finance costs Bl & R AN 7 (3,218) (5,829)
Share of profits and losses of: DGR FI R B
Joint ventures R 214,487 158,362
Associates G /N 3,118 8,771
PROFIT BEFORE TAX RR B4 A2 F 6 276,396 757
Income tax FriS i 9 (274) 1,389
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR FREF 276,122 2,146
Attributable to: AR AL :
Owners of the Company PIN/NEIEZZE DN 276,122 2,147
Non-controlling interests FEFE AR HE 2 - (1)
276,122 2,146
EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE A A FEE ABGEESREF
TO OWNERS OF THE COMPANY 11
Basic EEYiN HK35.72 cent &1l HKO0.28 cent /&l
Diluted B HK35.72 cent &1l HK0.28 cent /&1l
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
n‘/-.ﬁ/\%ﬁl'l& £ / i&"%

Year ended 31 March 2017 HE =T —+tF=A=+—HILFE

2017 2016
—E—+tfF —E—RF
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
Bt 5E FTHExT FHET
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR F g Al 276,122 2,146
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/ HttZEWBA (F8)
(LOSS)
Other comprehensive income/(loss) BRARBRERSEE
to be reclassified to profit or loss BRzEMmEEREA S
in subsequent periods: (B#E) :
Available-for-sale investments: AHEERE:
Changes in fair value NEBEEEED 148,030 (30,817)
Reclassification adjustment for impairment 5t A4R& Bz KR 2 BE
loss included in the consolidated B2 EFNDEAR
statement of profit or loss 6 - 29,888
148,030 (929)
Exchange differences on translation of REBIINER ZIER Z8
foreign operations (3,019) (586)
Release of exchange fluctuation reserve  fR{EH & — R & A &) R D
upon deemed disposal of an associate NN (401) =
NET OTHER COMPREHENSIVE BRERHBERSEE
INCOME/(LOSS) TO BE RECLASSIFIED #Ei&mzHt2EK A~
TO PROFIT OR LOSS IN SUBSEQUENT  (&18) BHRER
PERIODS AND OTHER Htp2EKBA (F8)
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/(LOSS) MR E
FOR THE YEAR, NET OF TAX 144,610 (1,515)
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FRAZEBRALE
FOR THE YEAR 420,732 631
Attributable to: LA A FE4h
Owners of the Company KRRER A 420,732 632
Non-controlling interests SRR R - (1
420,732 631
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

an (=) jﬁ%ﬁﬁ;ﬂl%‘%

31 March 2017 ZE—+F=A=+—H

2017 2016
—E—tF —E—RF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B o FERT FET
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment Y BB k& 12 39,261 40,605
Investment properties wEME 13 115,955 116,762
Goodwill Bk 14 - 10,483
Other intangible assets ﬁ‘rﬁlﬁﬁfé{F 15 3,411 4,198
Investments in joint ventures REEREZERE 16 470,321 370,153
Investments in associates EA%’S%’A RIZIRE 17 1,546 22,439
Available-for-sale investments AHEERE 18 21,627 20,891
Deposits b 21 42 466
Pledged time deposits EEAE TR 23 - 269
Non-pledged time deposits AR E BRE AR 23 3,193 =
Total non-current assets ERBEERE 655,356 586,266
CURRENT ASSETS RBEE
Inventories 78 19 78,266 69,259
Trade receivables FEWE 5 R 20 49,359 63,994
Due from associates JE L Bt 1) R RROE 17 760 12,157
Prepayments, deposits and TR FRIAE - Tﬁ/\ﬁ&
other receivables H A fE W R IE 21 21,694 10,164
Available-for-sale investment AHEERE 18 261,303
Equity investments at fair value through ~ #EBIBEIE A FEEYIEZ
profit or loss RAZE 22 102,055 72,994
Tax recoverable CIEQEE 782 484 117
Cash and cash equivalents RekERBEER 23 111,600 69,563
Total current assets B EERE 625,521 298,248
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

anm ji&;{ﬁ/\ﬂr;ﬁ

31 March 2017 ZE—+F=A=+—H

2017 2016
—E—+F —E—RHF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
BT FHExT FHET
CURRENT LIABILITIES REBEE
Trade payables, deposits received and EREZER Elize Rk
accrued expenses FERT & R 24 55,516 62,652
Interest-bearing bank borrowings Pﬁ SERITIE X 25 116,073 127,480
Finance lease payables FERERERIE 26 694 287
Tax payable FEHLIR - 185
Financial guarantee obligation MEEREE 27 14,551 12,866
Total current liabilities mENBELRTE 186,834 203,470
NET CURRENT ASSETS RBEEZRE 438,687 94,778
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT BEERRBEE
LIABILITIES 1,094,043 681,044
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FREBEE
Interest-bearing bank borrowing Bt B ERTTIE SR 25 - 8,826
Finance lease payables R sERERIE 26 1,640 610
Deferred tax liabilities RIEFIE B (& 28 14,109 14,046
Total non-current liabilities ERME B ERTE 15,749 23,482
Net assets BEFE 1,078,294 657,562
EQUITY =
Issued capital BEITRA 29 77,294 77,294
Reserves i 989,655 568,923
Equity attributable to owners of RATIHEE NELER
the Company 1,066,949 646,217
Non-controlling interests FEIE AR A = 11,345 11,345
Total equity U 1,078,294 657,562
So Yuk Kwan So Chi On
o33 BER
Director Director
EF EE
AV Concept Holdings Limited
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
EEREER

VYear ended 31 March 2017 HE =T —+F=A=+—HILFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

NG N
Avalable- Equity-
forsale settled
Share investments Asset  share-based Bxchange Non-
Issued premium Capital Other  revaluation  revaluation payment  fluctuation Retained controlling Total
capital account reserve reserve reserve reserve® reserve reserve profits* Total interests equity
AfRHE e
REEfE  BEER NROAR  ERRY
BREIRA RVEEE RARE  AtER i fhf" R e REER #8 FERER  ERER
Note HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
i3 T TiEn T TiEn T T TiEn FEL T TiEn T TiEn
At 1 April 2015 A\ZZ-REMA-R 71,29 453,469 19,484 (38,483) (1,902) 38,765 1,255 2,979 9,724 645,585 8581 654,166
Profit(loss) for the year FRiEF/ (B8 - - - - - - - = 2147 2147 0} 2,146
Other comprehensive incomefloss) for the year:  FREM2ERA/ (BE) :
Changes in fair value of available-for-sale AHHERADTEE ED.
investments, net of tax Bl - - - - (929) - - - - (929) - (929)
Exchange differences on translation of BEBINEHZERZE
foreign operations
- Subsidiares -HEAR - - - - - - - (739 - (734) - (734)
- Joint ventures -RERE - - - - - - - 2 - 2 - 2
- Associates -BERT - - - - - - - 146 - 146 - 146
Total comprehensive incomel(loss) for the year FR2ENA/ (BR) 8% - - - - (929) - - (586) 2,147 632 1) 631
Equity-settled share option arrangements RERERRERE 30 - - - - - - - - - - 2,765 2,765
At31 March 2016 RoE-AEZF=t-8 TA%  4S69* 19484 (3BABIY @83 3BIEST LSS 233 T 66T 11345 65152
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Consolidated

Year ended 31 March 2017 HE—Z

Statement of Changes in Equity

——
/ \ ll\Dn\ Eb %

—t¢ A=+—BIEFE

n‘/-ﬁ

Attributable to owners of the Company

KAAREAEE
Available- Equity-
for-sale settled
Share investments Asset share-based  Exchange Non-
Issued  premium Capital Other revaluation revaluation ~ payment fluctuation  Retained controlling Total
capital account reserve’ reserve reserve reserve’  reserve reserve profits* Total interests equity
WithE RELH
REER  HEER URBHR  EXRD
BRTRE RGEREE RARE  HURHE B e B BE  REER BE FERER  REEE
Note HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
i3 &R F#% T FHT R &R F#% T FHT R &R %
At 1 April 2016 RZE-~EmA-R 71,29 453,469* 19,484* (38,483)* (2.831)* 38,765* 1,255* 2,393* 94,871% 646,217 11,345 657,562
Profit for the year FRET - - - - - - - - a2 61 - 62
Other comprehensive incomefloss) for the year: ~ FAEMZERA/ (F58)
Changes in fair value of available-for-sale AHHERARTEE ED.
investments, net of tax B = o = = 148,030 = = = = 148,030 = 148,030
Exchange differences on translation of foreign BEBN BN ER
operations
- Subsidiaries -KEAR - = = - - - - (3422) - (3422) - (3.422)
- Joint ventures -RER% - - - - - - - A6 - A6 - U6
- Associates ~BERT - - - - - - - 157 - 157 - 157
Release of exchange fluctuation reserve upon KL E-HRE DR
deemed disposal of an associate BRERREHE - - - - ° = o (401) o (401) = (@01)
Total comprehensive income(loss) for the year ERZERA/ (BE) &% = = = = 148,030 = = (34200 276,12 420732 = 420732
Share options lapsed BANERE 30 - - - - - - (1,145) - 1,145 - - -
At 31 March 2017 R=F-t§=A=1-H 77,29 453,469* 19,484* (38,483)*  145,199* 38,765 110* (1,027)  372,138* 1,066,949 11,345 1,078,294
# Included in the balance of the capital reserve as at 31 March 2017 was a capital ~ # RIZZBE—tF=A=1+—BZRAREELEHRRDERE
redemption reserve balance amounting to approximately HK$16,142,000 (2016: o] % 8 45 842 4916,142,000/8 7T ( =& — 7<% : 16,142,000
HK$16,142,000). BT -
# The asset revaluation reserve arose from a change in use from owner-occupied — # BESHHEERESERMERAZCERRRATEET

properties to investment properties carried at fair value. In accordance with HKAS 16,
this balance was frozen and was not available to offset the current and future years’
revaluation deficits on investment properties until the retirement or disposal of these

assets.

&5 As at 31 March 2017, there was goodwill of HK$12,427,000 (2016: HK$12,427,000) HH
arising from the acquisition of subsidiaries in prior years which remained eliminated
against the consolidated retained profits.

* These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of HK$989,655,000 (2016: *
HK$568,923,000) in the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 March

2017.

RZBREME-RIEEEE

FHERIZE165% - FZIRBRERR

HETHAREHEAFERARFRERENEZERLS
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
n‘/-ﬁ Iﬁ:ﬁ/}lbi%‘%

VYear ended 31 March 2017 HE =T —+F=A=+—HILFE

2017 2016
—E—tF —E—RF
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
B o FERT FET
CASH FLOWS FROM REXEBCHAERE
OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit before tax: B 250 Bl A - 276,396 757
Adjustments for: FLATIEB (EHFAE
Finance costs Bh & B AR 7 3,218 5,829
Share of profits of joint ventures DG &1 F (214,487) (158,362)
Share of profits and losses of associates DG & N R A & B 1B (3,118) (8,771)
Depreciation e 2,491 2,823
Changes in fair value of investment BEMENTFEEBE 2L
properties (2,345) 5,477
Amortisation of other intangible assets Efhfmy & E 2 i 6 555 3,977
Impairment of trade receivables, net FEWE 5 BR R REF R 6 1,914 3,093
Recovery of bad debts Uy [B] &2 B 5 - (557)
Provision for/(recovery of) impairment of & Z R EEE, ~ (#E)
inventories 6 (3,614) 1,966
Impairment of other receivables H h fE YR 2 R B 6 7,739 311
Gain on disposal of items of HEWE  WERZEEE
property, plant and equipment 2 Wz 5 (1,376) (155)
Gain on deemed disposal of an associate  R{EHE —EEE A7 2
W= 6 (90,735) =
Provision for amount due from JE UG — B & A B SR IE B
an associate 6 6,373 -
Loss on disposal of available-for-sale HEAIHBERE 2 EE
investments 6 - 7,338
Impairment of goodwill R 2 RE 6 10,483 =
Impairment of other intangible assets E{@Eﬁ/ AEZRE 6 - 4,700
Impairment of an available-for-sale AEHERE 2 RE
investment, at fair value BAFEE 6 = 29,888
Impairment of an available-for-sale AEHERE ZRE
investment, at cost 129D N 6 = 15,540
Gain on derecognition of financial RIEERYBRERETZ
guarantee obligation g 6 (35,795) (28,799)
Impairment of investments in joint REEREZRE ZRE
ventures 6 35,795 28,799
Fair value (gains)/losses, net: R%g@ Wezk) /B
pe -]
Equity investments at fair value FiREmE AT EET R
through profit or loss 2R
— held for trading —RHEER 6 4,093 18,113
— designated as such upon initial — A R 15 TE
recognition AUt E R 6 (20,485) 174
Equity-settled share option expense i e 45 S BB AR A B <2 6 = 2,765
Dividend income from listed investments £ & 2 % B UL A 5 (188) (46)
Bank interest income R17H) B UA 5 (511) (389)
Interest income on convertible bonds BE: e N N 5 (1,147) -
(24,744) (65,529)
Decrease in amounts due from associates & U Bt <& /X &) 7 18 Jek > 5,562 8,710
Decrease/(increase) in inventories GERL () (6,241) 75,864
Decrease in trade receivables FEUWZ 5 BR FOR > 12,285 144,572
Decrease/(increase) in prepayments, i‘ﬁﬁ%’\lﬁ IR RE M E W
deposits and other receivables RIER A, () (17,664) 23,255
Decrease in trade payables, JEHT%EE/K BliEE &
deposits received and accrued expenses  FEETE AR (6,564) (42,189)
Cash generated from/(used in) operations 4% & FT 5 5/ (FRA)H®
~ page 69 5698 (37,366) 144,683
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Year ended 31 March 2017 #EZ—-F

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
Iﬁzﬁl)lbi%‘%

—tF=ZA=FT—HILFE

2017 2016
—E—tHF —E—RF
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
L FERT FET
Cash generated from/(used in) operations & & Ff15,/ (FrA)E 4L
- page 68 — %688 (37,366) 144,683
Purchases of equity investments BEERERZATER
at fair value through profit or loss HBR 2 AL E 32(c) (117,275) (23,308)
Disposal of equity investments HEFEREBEREATEER
at fair value through profit or loss 5 BR 2 IR AR B 104,606 44,959
Dividend income received from Bl —EEEEERBKA
a joint venture 116,250
Hong Kong profits tax refunded 2REEFBMEH 136 177
Overseas taxes paid B8N E (915) (340)
Net cash flows from operating activities ~— L& EEMBR S REFHE 65,436 166,171
CASH FLOWS FROM RETZHZRERE
INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Bank interest received BRI TH S 511 389
Dividends received from listed investments B4 EHRE R E 188 46
Decrease in pledged deposits BEAF TR D 269 755
Increase in non-pledged time deposits 44K 3 F BRE BUE N (3,193) =
Purchases of items of property, BEWE - KEMEEIEE
plant and equipment 32(b) (2,673) (662)
Proceeds from disposal of items HEYE  BERZEEE
of property, plant and equipment FriS 58 4,643 627
Additions to other intangible assets AREHMELEE (50) -
Proceeds from disposal of S B & B TS SRR
other intangible assets 280 -
Proceed for disposal of an associate & — B & A B AT A 493 -
Purchases of available-for-sale investments E& & ] it H &% & = (8,181)
Net cash flows from/(used in) investing wEEEBME(FRA)
activities BERE R 468 (7,026)
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VYear ended 31 March 2017 HE =T —+F=A=+—HILFE

2017 2016
—E—+E —E—RF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B 5 FET FHE T
CASH FLOWS FROM METBHZRERE
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
New bank and other borrowings FERIT R EME R - 27,517
Repayment of bank and other borrowings {E3& 817 K H b & 2k (52,031) (14,535)
Net increase/(decrease) in import and #EORETBIBEER
trust receipt loans i, Crd)iE5E 31,798 (227,084)
Capital element of finance lease BEHEHSRBELLS
rental payments 32(b) (513) (250)
Interest paid BAF B 7 (3,181) (5,807)
Interest element on finance lease BEHSEHESHENES D
rental payments 7 (37) (22)
Net cash flows used in financing activities BIE EEATAR S REFH (23,964) (220,181)
NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) ReRERRESEH LM
IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS CR2) 25 41,940 (61,036)
Cash and cash equivalents FYzHekERREER
at beginning of year 69,563 131,739
Effect of foreign exchange rate [ERE) 2 B FHE
changes, net 97 (1,140)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS FRZESRERALER
AT END OF YEAR 111,600 69,563
ANALYSIS OF BALANCE OF RERERREBALAEHBRZ
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS i
Cash and cash equivalents as stated FREMBIRARRIES
in the consolidated statement of ReRERMHBCAESR
financial position and in the consolidated % [RIR&IE B
statement of cash flows 23 111,600 69,563
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

AV Concept Holdings Limited (the “Company”) is a limited liability
company incorporated in the Cayman Islands. The registered office
address of the Company is P.O. Box 309, Ugland House, Grand
Cayman, the Cayman Islands, British West Indies and its principal place
of business is located at 6th Floor, Enterprise Square Three, 39 Wang
Chiu Road, Kowloon Bay, Hong Kong.

During the year, the Group was engaged in the following principal
activities:

o Marketing and distribution of electronic components;
o Design, development and sale of electronic products; and
° Venture capital investment

Information about subsidiaries
Particulars of the Company'’s principal subsidiaries are as follows:

e IR R AR R

31 March 2017 ZE—+F=A=+—H

RAREEER

AV Concept Holdings Limited ([A2QA]) A&
RASHEFMRIZBERAR -ARARZH
i 9% = BZ s iE AP.O. Box 309, Ugland House,
Grand Cayman, the Cayman Islands, British West
Indies” M A+ ZE E BRI N ER NEERR
B3R EE S = Hi6E -

FA AEETERNENTER:

. BFLHZTBRERASH:
s BYERIZEGHHRRHE R
. BIZBAREA

FRMEATZEN
AARZEEWBARFEMT -

Place of Issued/ Percentage of
incorporation registered equity attributable to Principal
Name and business share capital the Company activities
£ EMRIREERE  BRT/ERRE ARAEERAED L TEEK
Direct Indirect
E# Bk
AV Concept Limited Hong Kong HK$2 - 100 Trading of electronic
FRATERDA E 257 components
HK$1,000,000° BEETMH
1,000,000/ 7®
AV Concept Singapore Pte. Ltd. Singapore SGD4,000,000 - 100 Trading of electronic
3K 4,000,000% 7T components
BEEFH
AV Electronics Group Limited* British Virgin Islands/ US$40,000 100 - Investment holding
Hong Kong 40,000% 1 REER
HERAEE/BE
Signeo Design International Limited Hong Kong HK$100 - 100 Design, development and
e 1004 7T sale of electronic products
Rt HERHEETER
AVC Technology (International) Limited ~ Hong Kong HK$1 = 100 Trading of electronic
ERRE (EB)BRAH ENE 1% components and

electronic products
BEEFAREFEM
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31 March 2017 ZE—+F=A=+—H

2.1

72

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1. 2EAIREEER @)
(continued)
Information about subsidiaries (continued) EEMB AR ZER ()
Place of Issued/ Percentage of
incorporation registered equity attributable to Principal
Name and business share capital the Company activities
£18 EMRUIREERY CRT/ERRE RAREEREAEA L TEEHR
Direct Indirect
HiE M
New Concept Capital Limited British Virgin Islands/ Us$1 100 - Investment holding and
(“New Concept”)* Hong Kong (E venture capital investment
RERLHES/B5 REZRRBIFETRE
People & Semiconductor Co., Ltd. Korea KRW400,000,000 - 100 Trading of electronic
#E 400,000,0008 components
BEETH
* Not audited by Ernst & Young, Hong Kong or another member firm of the Ernst o I 3 B B A T ok B FAD 35 15 BT ok E At 2 ok BIBR AR
& Young global network BEBERZ
e Represents deferred shares issued by AV Concept Limited ® HBARBITERARBEITZIELERD
# New Concept is a venture capital organisation # New Concept/A — & All 5 48 4%
The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in the ERINTESRRERNFEERBERNEELE
opinion of the directors, principally affected the results for the year or ERAEEEEFELIEZBOZARAMBR
formed a substantial portion of the net assets of the Group. To give Al-BERA WILEMHMEBARZFHE 88
details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors, result BREEBNITR -
in particulars of excessive length.
BASIS OF PREPARATION 21 mEEE

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs")
(which include all Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong
Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations) issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA"),
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. They
have been prepared under the historical cost convention, except for
equity investments at fair value through profit or loss, certain available-
for-sale investments (including key management insurance contracts)
and investment properties which have been measured at fair value.
These consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars (“HK$") and all values are rounded to the nearest thousand
except when otherwise indicated.

AV Concept Holdings Limited
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements
of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the
“Group”) for the year ended 31 March 2017. A subsidiary is an entity
(including a structured entity), directly or indirectly, controlled by the
Company. Control is achieved when the Group is exposed, or has rights,
to variable returns from its involvement with the investee and has
the ability to affect those returns through its power over the investee
(i.e., existing rights that give the Group the current ability to direct the
relevant activities of the investee).

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less than a majority of the
voting or similar rights of an investee, the Group considers all relevant
facts and circumstances in assessing whether it has power over an
investee, including:

(@)  the contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of the
investee;

(b)  rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and
(c)  the Group's voting rights and potential voting rights.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for the same
reporting period as the Company, using consistent accounting policies.
The results of subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which the
Group obtains control, and continue to be consolidated until the date
that such control ceases.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income are
attributed to the owners of the parent of the Group and to the non-
controlling interests, even if this results in the non-controlling interests
having a deficit balance. All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity,
income, expenses and cash flows relating to transactions between
members of the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and
circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more of the
three elements of control described above. A change in the ownership
interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is accounted for as an
equity transaction.

e IR R AR R

31 March 2017 ZE—+F=A=+—H

2.1 REEXE @)

RERBEEE
HAMBRERBRBEARTREMBAR (FHE [
SEDBE_FT—tF=-A=+—"HLEFEZ
MBEHER -MBARSAARERIMEEH 2
B (ERaEBEER) - $¢@?¢L/ IR E
ELZERSHERESAZ OB REHPIRE
m%ﬁﬁ’fiéﬁ(ﬁﬂﬁéﬁ@%ﬂi%fﬁﬁ ENAEE
WIRECEERES 2B FREN) ZEZFOR
B - BVERAS 22 il -

HARRERREREER I RPRELEASZH
BRERIALEN AAEENFEEETEHE
HRBRECEZRNIREER —VRBEEERE
noBE:

(a) BERKRECEHMBERERFEAZENR
b7

(b) HMBNZHRAEEZEM:

(0 AEEZEEREREERRE

B8 A R BN A 2 M H R 2 s BRI AR R -
YHRAB—HZEHBRRER - MBERF 2 XA H

AREERSEGIE 2 G AR YRELS
AR EERERRELEZA/IE

R HEM2EARASERD ERNAKREGER
AR A RSEmB RS RME ISR & SRR
RSB BRI - BAKERE AR ME
TZRGEBIAAESEREERAE #x-
WA FAXERERENGFERAREEIKE-

HWEZERBAB R Lt =& *%‘JT’EETE%EP*
BYIA LIRS §)U AIAEEeEMIHER

% BB EDE -RN—RMBR R Z AR ﬁT’l
SEIN G @ZE%? H4E - AARRII BEER
5o
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2.1

2.2
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B HRERMEE
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BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises (i) the
assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary, (ii) the
carrying amount of any non-controlling interest and (iii) the cumulative
translation differences recorded in equity; and recognises (i) the fair
value of the consideration received, (i) the fair value of any investment
retained and (iii) any resulting surplus or deficit in profit or loss.
The Group’s share of components previously recognised in other
comprehensive income is reclassified to profit or loss or retained profits,
as appropriate, on the same basis as would be required if the Group
had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities.

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES

The Group has adopted the following new and revised HKFRSs for the
first time for the current year’s financial statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 10,
HKFRS 12 and
HKAS 28 (2011)

Investment Entities: Applying the Consolidation
Exception

Amendments to HKFRS 11 Accounting for Acquisitions of Interests in
Joint Operations

Regulatory Deferral Accounts

Disclosure Initiative

Clarification of Acceptable Methods of
Depreciation and Amortisation

Agriculture: Bearer Plants

HKFRS 14
Amendments to HKAS 1
Amendments to
HKAS 16 and HKAS 38
Amendments to
HKAS 16 and HKAS 41
Amendments to HKAS 27
(2011)
Annual Improvements
2012-2014 Cycle

Equity Method in Separate Financial Statements

Amendments to a number of HKFRSs

The adoption of the above new and revised HKFRSs has had no
significant financial effect on these financial statements and there have
been no significant changes to the accounting policies applied in these
financial statements.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

The Group has not applied the following new and revised HKFRSs,
that have been issued but are not yet effective, in these consolidated
financial statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 2 Classification and Measurement of Share-based
Payment Transactions’
Amendments to HKFRS 4 Applying HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments with

HKFRS 4 Insurance Contracts*

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments?

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and  Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor
HKAS 28 (2011) and its Associate or Joint Venture*

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers®

Amendments to HKFRS 15 Clarifications to HKFRS 15 Revenue from
Contracts with Customers?

HKFRS 16 Leases?
Amendments to HKAS 7 Disclosure Initiative'
Amendments to HKAS 12 Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets for Unrealised
Losses’
Amendments to HKAS 40 Transfers of Investment Property?
HK(FRIC) - Int 22 Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance
Consideration?
Amendments to HKFRS 1 First-time Adoption of Hong Kong Financial
included in Annual Reporting Standards*
Improvement 2014-2016
Cycle
Amendments to HKFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities’
included in Annual
Improvement 2014-2016
Cycle
Amendments to HKAS 28 Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures?
included in Annual
Improvement 2014-2016
Cycle

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2017

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018
3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019
4 No mandatory effective date yet determined but available for adoption

e PR MR
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ZE-AEE-F-NFEHZ  BARWEEYBES
FRAERIBAYHRERY £
F19% (BETK)

F-MEF-F-NFEHC  RERAMERZ

i&ﬂ?@@Zﬁ%Eﬁﬁi&%ﬁﬁ‘l i

F125% (BT A)

TE-AEE-F-NFEEHZ  REERAAREELRE

FRAED 2 BAGER ZRE?

F28% (BFI )
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ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (continued)

Further information about those HKFRSs that are expected to be
applicable to the Group is as follows:

The HKICPA issued amendments to HKFRS 2 in August 2016 that
address three main areas: the effects of vesting conditions on the
measurement of a cash-settled share-based payment transaction; the
classification of a share-based payment transaction with net settlement
features for withholding a certain amount in order to meet the
employee’s tax obligation associated with the share-based payment;
and accounting where a modification to the terms and conditions of a
share-based payment transaction changes its classification from cash-
settled to equity-settled. The amendments clarify that the approach
used to account for vesting conditions when measuring equity-
settled share-based payments also applies to cash-settled share-based
payments. The amendments introduce an exception so that a share-
based payment transaction with net share settlement features for
withholding a certain amount in order to meet the employee’s tax
obligation is classified in its entirety as an equity-settled share-based
payment transaction when certain conditions are met. Furthermore,
the amendments clarify that if the terms and conditions of a cash-
settled share-based payment transaction are modified, with the result
that it becomes an equity-settled share-based payment transaction, the
transaction is accounted for as an equity-settled transaction from the
date of the modification. The Group expects to adopt the amendments
from 1 April 2018. The amendments are not expected to have any
significant impact on the Group's financial statements.

In September 2014, the HKICPA issued the final version of HKFRS 9,
bringing together all phases of the financial instruments project to
replace HKAS 39 and all previous versions of HKFRS 9. The standard
introduces new requirements for classification and measurement,
impairment and hedge accounting. The Group expects to adopt HKFRS
9 from 1 April 2018. The Group is currently assessing the impact of the
standard upon adoption and expects that the adoption of HKFRS 9 will
have an impact on the classification and measurement of the Group's
financial assets.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG

FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 (2011) address an
inconsistency between the requirements in HKFRS 10 and in HKAS 28
(2011) in dealing with the sale or contribution of assets between an
investor and its associate or joint venture. The amendments require
a full recognition of a gain or loss when the sale or contribution of
assets between an investor and its associate or joint venture constitutes
a business. For a transaction involving assets that do not constitute a
business, a gain or loss resulting from the transaction is recognised in
the investor’s profit or loss only to the extent of the unrelated investor’s
interest in that associate or joint venture. The amendments are to
be applied prospectively. The previous mandatory effective date of
amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 (2011) was removed by the
HKICPA in January 2016 and a new mandatory effective date will be
determined after the completion of a broader review of accounting for
associates and joint ventures. However, the amendments are available
for application now.

HKFRS 15 establishes a new five-step model to account for revenue
arising from contracts with customers. Under HKFRS 15, revenue is
recognised at an amount that reflects the consideration to which
an entity expects to be entitled in exchange for transferring goods
or services to a customer. The principles in HKFRS 15 provide a
more structured approach for measuring and recognising revenue.
The standard also introduces extensive qualitative and quantitative
disclosure requirements, including disaggregation of total revenue,
information about performance obligations, changes in contract asset
and liability account balances between periods and key judgements
and estimates. The standard will supersede all current revenue
recognition requirements under HKFRSs. In June 2016, the HKICPA
issued amendments to HKFRS 15 to address the implement issues on
identifying performance obligations, application guidance on principal
versus agent and licences of intellectual property, and transition. The
amendments are also intended to help ensure a more consistent
application when entities adopt HKFRS 15 and decrease the cost and
complexity of applying the standard. The Group expects to adopt HKFRS
15 on 1 April 2018 and is currently assessing the impact of HKFRS 15
upon adoption.
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ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (continued)

HKFRS 16 replaces HKAS 17 Leases, HK(IFRIC)-Int 4 Determining
whether an Arrangement contains a Lease, HK(SIC)-Int 15 Operating
Leases — Incentives and HK(SIC)-Int 27 Evaluating the Substance of
Transactions Involving the Legal Form of a Lease. The standard sets
out the principles for the recognition, measurement, presentation and
disclosure of leases and requires lessees to recognise assets and liabilities
for most leases. The standard includes two recognition exemptions
for lessees — leases of low-value assets and short-term leases. At the
commencement date of a lease, a lessee will recognise a liability to
make lease payments (i.e., the lease liability) and an asset representing
the right to use the underlying asset during the lease term (i.e., the
right-of-use asset). The right-of-use asset is subsequently measured at
cost less accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses unless
the right-of-use asset meets the definition of investment property in
HKAS 40. The lease liability is subsequently increased to reflect the
interest on the lease liability and reduced for the lease payments.
Lessees will be required to separately recognise the interest expense
on the lease liability and the depreciation expense on the right-of-use
asset. Lessees will also be required to remeasure the lease liability upon
the occurrence of certain events, such as change in the lease term
and change in future lease payments resulting from a change in an
index or rate used to determine those payments. Lessees will generally
recognise the amount of the remeasurement of the lease liability as an
adjustment to the right-of-use asset. Lessor accounting under HKFRS 16
is substantially unchanged from the accounting under HKAS 17. Lessors
will continue to classify all leases using the same classification principle
as in HKAS 17 and distinguish between operating leases and finance
leases. The Group expects to adopt HKFRS 16 on 1 April 2019 and is
currently assessing the impact of HKFRS 16 upon adoption.

Amendments to HKAS 7 require an entity to provide disclosures that
enable users of financial statements to evaluate changes in liabilities
arising from financing activities, including both changes arising from
cash flows and non-cash changes. The amendments will result in
additional disclosure to be provided in the consolidated financial
statements. The Group expects to adopt the amendments from 1 April
2017.
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2.4

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (continued)

Amendments to HKAS 12 were issued with the purpose of addressing
the recognition of deferred tax assets for unrealised losses related to
debt instruments measured at fair value, although they also have a
broader application for other situations. The amendments clarify that an
entity, when assessing whether taxable profits will be available against
which it can utilise a deductible temporary difference, needs to consider
whether tax law restricts the sources of taxable profits against which
it may make deductions on the reversal of that deductible temporary
difference. Furthermore, the amendments provide guidance on how
an entity should determine future taxable profits and explain the
circumstances in which taxable profit may include the recovery of some
assets for more than their carrying amount. The Group expects to adopt
the amendments from 1 April 2017.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

Investments in associates and joint ventures

An associate is an entity in which the Group has a long term interest of
generally not less than 20% of the equity voting rights and over which
it is in a position to exercise significant influence. Significant influence is
the power to participate in the financial and operating policy decisions
of the investee, but is not control or joint control over those policies.

A joint venture is a type of joint arrangement whereby the parties that
have joint control of the arrangement have rights to the net assets of
the joint venture. Joint control is the contractually agreed sharing of
control of an arrangement, which exists only when decisions about the
relevant activities require the unanimous consent of the parties sharing
control.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Investments in associates and joint ventures (continued)
The Group’s investments in associates and joint ventures are stated in
the consolidated statement of financial position at the Group's share of
net assets under the equity method of accounting, less any impairment
losses. The Group’s share of the post-acquisition results and other
comprehensive income of associates and joint ventures is included
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and consolidated
other comprehensive income, respectively. In addition, when there
has been a change recognised directly in the equity of the associate
or joint venture, the Group recognises its share of any changes,
when applicable, in the consolidated statement of changes in equity.
Unrealised gains and losses resulting from transactions between the
Group and its associates or joint ventures are eliminated to the extent
of the Group's investments in the associates or joint ventures, except
where unrealised losses provide evidence of an impairment of the asset
transferred. Goodwill arising from the acquisition of associates or joint
ventures is included as part of the Group's investments in associates or
joint ventures.

If an investment in an associate becomes an investment in a joint
venture or vice versa, the retained interest is not remeasured. Instead,
the investment continues to be accounted for under the equity method.
In all other cases, upon loss of significant influence over the associate or
joint control over the joint venture, the Group measures and recognises
any retained investment at its fair value. Any difference between the
carrying amount of the associate or joint venture upon loss of significant
influence or joint control and the fair value of the retained investment
and proceeds from disposal is recognised in profit or loss.

Business combinations and goodwiill

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition method.
The consideration transferred is measured at the acquisition date fair
value which is the sum of the acquisition date fair values of assets
transferred by the Group, liabilities assumed by the Group to the
former owners of the acquiree and the equity interests issued by the
Group in exchange for control of the acquiree. For each business
combination, the Group elects whether to measure the non-controlling
interests in the acquiree that are present ownership interests and entitle
their holders to a proportionate share of net assets in the event of
liquidation at fair value or at the proportionate share of the acquiree’s
identifiable net assets. All other components of non-controlling interests
are measured at fair value. Acquisition-related costs are expensed as
incurred.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Business combinations and goodwiill (continued)

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial assets
and liabilities assumed for appropriate classification and designation
in accordance with the contractual terms, economic circumstances
and pertinent conditions as at the acquisition date. This includes the
separation of embedded derivatives in host contracts of the acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the previously held
equity interest is remeasured at its acquisition date fair value and any
resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer
is recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. Contingent
consideration classified as an asset or liability is measured at fair value
with changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss. Contingent
consideration that is classified as equity is not remeasured and
subsequent settlement is accounted for within equity.

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of the aggregate
of the consideration transferred, the amount recognised for non-
controlling interests and any fair value of the Group's previously held
equity interests in the acquiree over the identifiable net assets acquired
and liabilities assumed. If the sum of this consideration and other items
is lower than the fair value of the net assets of the subsidiary acquired,
the difference is, after reassessment, recognised in profit or loss as a
gain on bargain purchase.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any
accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is tested for impairment
annually or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying value may be impaired. The Group performs
its annual impairment test of goodwill as at 31 March. For the purpose
of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business combination
is, from the acquisition date, allocated to each of the Group's cash-
generating units, or groups of cash-generating units, that are expected
to benefit from the synergies of the combination, irrespective of
whether other assets or liabilities of the Group are assigned to those
units or groups of units.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Business combinations and goodwiill (continued)
Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable amount of the
cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating units) to which the
goodwill relates. Where the recoverable amount of the cash-generating
unit (group of cash-generating units) is less than the carrying amount,
an impairment loss is recognised. An impairment loss recognised for
goodwill is not reversed in a subsequent period.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating unit (or group
of cash-generating units) and part of the operation within that unit is
disposed of, the goodwill associated with the operation disposed of is
included in the carrying amount of the operation when determining
the gain or loss on the disposal. Goodwill disposed of in these
circumstances is measured based on the relative value of the operation
disposed of and the portion of the cash-generating unit retained.

Fair value measurement

The Group measures its investment properties, certain available-for-
sale investments and equity investments at fair value through profit
or loss at fair value at the end of each reporting period. Fair value is
the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer
a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at
the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the
presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability
takes place either in the principal market for the asset or liability, or in
the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market
for the asset or liability. The principal or the most advantageous market
must be accessible by the Group. The fair value of an asset or a liability
is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use
when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act
in their economic best interest.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Fair value measurement (continued)

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account
a market participant’s ability to generate economic benefits by using
the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market
participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the
circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to measure fair
value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising
the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in
the consolidated financial statements are categorised within the fair
value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input
that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1 - based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets
for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 - based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is observable, either directly or indirectly

Level 3 - based on valuation techniques for which the

lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the consolidated financial
statements on a recurring basis, the Group determines whether
transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by reassessing
categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the
fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual impairment
testing for an asset is required (other than inventories and investment
properties), the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. An asset's
recoverable amount is the higher of the asset’s or cash-generating unit’s
value in use and its fair value less costs of disposal, and is determined
for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows
that are largely independent of those from other assets or groups of
assets, in which case the recoverable amount is determined for the
cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount of an asset
exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing value in use, the estimated
future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-
tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time
value of money and the risks specific to the asset. An impairment loss is
charged to the consolidated statement of profit or loss in the period in
which it arises.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting period as to
whether there is an indication that previously recognised impairment
losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. If such an indication
exists, the recoverable amount is estimated. A previously recognised
impairment loss of an asset other than goodwill is reversed only if there
has been a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable
amount of that asset, but not to an amount higher than the carrying
amount that would have been determined (net of any depreciation/
amortisation) had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset
in prior years. A reversal of such an impairment loss is credited to the
consolidated statement of profit or loss in the period in which it arises.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Related parties
A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(@)  the party is a person or a close member of that person’s family
and that person

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

or

has control or joint control over the Group;
has significant influence over the Group; or

is a member of the key management personnel of the
Group or of a parent of the Group;

(b)  the party is an entity where any of the following conditions
applies:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

the entity and the Group are members of the same group;

one entity is an associate or joint venture of the other entity
(or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow subsidiary of the other
entity);

the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the same
third party;

one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other
entity is an associate of the third entity;

the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit
of employees of either the Group or an entity related to the
Group;

the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person
identified in (a);

a person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence over the
entity or is a member of the key management personnel of
the entity (or of a parent of the entity); and

an entity, or any member of a group of which it is a part,
provides key management personnel services to the Group
or to the parent of the Group.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

86

POLICIES (continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and any impairment losses. The cost of an item of property,
plant and equipment comprises its purchase price and any directly
attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working condition and
location for its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and equipment have
been put into operation, such as repairs and maintenance, is normally
charged to the consolidated statement of profit or loss in the period
in which it is incurred. In situations where the recognition criteria are
satisfied, the expenditure for a major inspection is capitalised in the
carrying amount of the asset as a replacement. Where significant
parts of property, plant and equipment are required to be replaced
at intervals, the Group recognises such parts as individual assets with
specific useful lives and depreciates them accordingly.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write off the cost
of each item of property, plant and equipment to its residual value over
its estimated useful life. The principal annual rates used for this purpose
are as follows:

Leasehold land and buildings 2% - 3%
Leasehold improvements 20% — 33'5%
Furniture, fittings and office equipment 20% - 335%
Plant and machinery 20%
Motor vehicles 20%

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different
useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated on a reasonable basis
among the parts and each part is depreciated separately. Residual
values, useful lives and the depreciation method are reviewed, and
adjusted if appropriate, at least at each financial year end.

An item of property, plant and equipment including any significant part
initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or
loss on disposal or retirement recognised in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss in the year the asset is derecognised is the difference
between the net sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant
asset.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Investment properties

Investment properties are interests in land and buildings (including
the leasehold interest under an operating lease for a property which
would otherwise meet the definition of an investment property) held to
earn rental income and/or for capital appreciation, rather than for use
in the production or supply of goods or services or for administrative
purposes; or for sale in the ordinary course of business. Such properties
are measured initially at cost, including transaction costs. Subsequent to
initial recognition, investment properties are stated at fair value, which
reflects market conditions at the end of the reporting period.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair values of investment
properties are included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss in
the year in which they arise.

Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of an investment
property are recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss in
the year of the retirement or disposal.

For a transfer from investment properties to owner-occupied properties,
the deemed cost of a property for subsequent accounting is its fair
value at the date of change in use. If a property occupied by the Group
as an owner-occupied property becomes an investment property, the
Group accounts for such property in accordance with the policy stated
under “Property, plant and equipment and depreciation” up to the
date of change in use, and any difference at that date between the
carrying amount and the fair value of the property is accounted for as
movements in the asset revaluation reserve. On disposal of a revalued
asset, the relevant portion of the asset revaluation reserve realised
in respect of previous valuation is transferred to retained profits as a
movement in reserves.

Intangible assets (other than goodwiill)

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial
recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets acquired in a business
combination is the fair value as at the date of acquisition. The useful
lives of intangible assets are assessed to be either finite or indefinite.
Intangible assets with finite lives are subsequently amortised over the
useful economic life and assessed for impairment whenever there is an
indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation
period and the amortisation method for an intangible asset with a finite
useful life are reviewed at least at each financial year end.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Intangible assets (other than goodwiill) (continued)

Club memberships

The Group's club memberships are stated at cost less any accumulated
amortisation and any accumulated impairment losses, on an individual
basis.

Trademarks and customer relationships

Trademarks and customer relationships are stated at cost less any
impairment losses and are amortised on the straight-line basis over their
estimated useful lives of five years.

Mobile application

Mobile application is stated at cost less any impairment losses and is
amortised on the straight-line basis over its estimated useful life of five
years.

Leases

Leases that transfer substantially all the rewards and risks of ownership
of assets to the Group, other than legal title, are accounted for as
finance leases. At the inception of a finance lease, the cost of the
leased asset is capitalised at the present value of the minimum lease
payments and recorded together with the obligation, excluding the
interest element, to reflect the purchase and financing. Assets held
under capitalised finance leases, including prepaid land lease payments
under finance leases, are included in property, plant and equipment,
and depreciated over the shorter of the lease terms and the estimated
useful lives of the assets. The finance costs of such leases are charged to
the consolidated statement of profit or loss so as to provide a constant
periodic rate of charge over the lease terms.

Assets acquired through hire purchase contracts of a financing nature
are accounted for as finance leases, but are depreciated over their
estimated useful lives.

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks of ownership of
assets remain with the lessor are accounted for as operating leases.
Where the Group is the lessor, assets leased by the Group under
operating leases are included in non-current assets, and rentals
receivable under the operating leases are credited to the consolidated
statement of profit or loss on the straight-line basis over the lease
terms. Where the Group is the lessee, rentals payable under operating
leases are charged to the consolidated statement of profit or loss on the
straight-line basis over the lease terms.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Leases (continued)

Prepaid land lease payments under operating leases are initially stated
at cost and subsequently recognised on the straight-line basis over the
lease terms. When the lease payments cannot be allocated reliably
between the land and buildings elements, the entire lease payments
are included in the cost of the land and buildings as a finance lease in
property, plant and equipment.

Investments and other financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss, loans and receivables or available-
for-sale financial investments, as appropriate. When financial assets are
recognised initially, they are measured at fair value plus transaction costs
that are attributable to the acquisition of the financial assets, except in
the case of financial assets recorded at fair value through profit or loss.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on
the trade date, that is, the date that the Group commits to purchase or
sell the asset. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of
financial assets that require delivery of assets within the period generally
established by regulation or convention in the marketplace.

Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on their
classification as follows:

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss include financial
assets held for trading and financial assets designated upon initial
recognition as at fair value through profit or loss. Financial assets are
classified as held for trading if they are acquired for the purpose of sale
in the near term. Derivatives, including separated embedded derivatives,
are also classified as held for trading unless they are designated as
effective hedging instruments as defined by HKAS 39.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are carried in the
consolidated statement of financial position at fair value with net
changes in fair value recognised in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss. These net fair value changes do not include any dividends
or interest earned on these financial assets, which are recognised in
accordance with the policies set out for “Revenue recognition” below.

Financial assets designated upon initial recognition as at fair value
through profit or loss are designated at the date of initial recognition
and only if the criteria in HKAS 39 are satisfied.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (continued)
Derivatives embedded in host contracts are accounted for as separate
derivatives and recorded at fair value if their economic characteristics
and risks are not closely related to those of the host contracts and the
host contracts are not held for trading or designated as at fair value
through profit or loss. These embedded derivatives are measured at
fair value with changes in fair value recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss. Reassessment only occurs if there is either
a change in the terms of the contract that significantly modifies the
cash flows that would otherwise be required or a reclassification of a
financial asset out of the fair value through profit or loss category.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed
or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market.
After initial measurement, such assets are subsequently measured
at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method less any
allowance for impairment. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into
account any discount or premium on acquisition and includes fees
or costs that are an integral part of the effective interest rate. The
effective interest rate amortisation is included in other income and gains
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss. The loss arising from
impairment is recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
in finance costs for loans and in other expenses for receivables.

Available-for-sale financial investments

Available-for-sale financial investments are non-derivative financial
assets in unlisted equity investments. Equity investments classified
as available for sale are those which are neither classified as held for
trading nor designated as at fair value through profit or loss.

After initial recognition, available-for-sale financial investments are
subsequently measured at fair value, with unrealised gains or losses
recognised as other comprehensive income in the available-for-sale
investments revaluation reserve until the investment is derecognised, at
which time the cumulative gain or loss is recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss, or until the investment is determined to
be impaired, when the cumulative gain or loss is reclassified from the
available-for-sale investments revaluation reserve to the consolidated
statement of profit or loss. Interest and dividends earned whilst holding
the available-for-sale financial investments are reported as interest
income and dividend income, respectively and are recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss as other income in accordance
with the policies set out for “Revenue recognition” below.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)
Available-for-sale financial investments (continued)

When the fair value of unlisted equity investments cannot be reliably
measured because (a) the variability in the range of reasonable fair value
estimates is significant for that investment or (b) the probabilities of the
various estimates within the range cannot be reasonably assessed and
used in estimating fair value, such investments are stated at cost less
any impairment losses.

The Group evaluates whether the ability and intention to sell its
available-for-sale financial assets in the near term are still appropriate.
When, in rare circumstances, the Group is unable to trade these
financial assets due to inactive markets, the Group may elect to
reclassify these financial assets if management has the ability and
intention to hold the assets for the foreseeable future or until maturity.

For a financial asset reclassified from the available-for-sale category,
the fair value carrying amount at the date of reclassification becomes
its new amortised cost and any previous gain or loss on that asset
that has been recognised in equity is amortised to profit or loss over
the remaining life of the asset using the effective interest rate. Any
difference between the new amortised cost and the maturity amount
is also amortised over the remaining life of the asset using the effective
interest rate. If the asset is subsequently determined to be impaired,
then the amount recorded in equity is reclassified to the consolidated
statement of profit or loss.

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or
part of a group of similar financial assets) is primarily derecognised (i.e.,
removed from the Group's consolidated statement of financial position)
when:

o the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired; or

o the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from
the asset, or has assumed an obligation to pay the received cash
flows in full without material delay to a third party under a “pass-
through” arrangement; and either (a) the Group has transferred
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the
Group has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the
risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the
asset.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Derecognition of financial assets (continued)

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from
an asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement, it evaluates
if and to what extent it has retained the risk and rewards of ownership
of the asset. When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially
all the risks and rewards of the asset nor transferred control of the
asset, the Group continues to recognise the transferred asset to the
extent of the Group's continuing involvement. In that case, the Group
also recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset and the
associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and
obligations that the Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the
transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original carrying
amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that
the Group could be required to pay.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period whether
there is any objective evidence that a financial asset or a group of
financial assets is impaired. An impairment exists if one or more
events that occurred after the initial recognition of the asset have an
impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset or the
group of financial assets that can be reliably estimated. Evidence of
impairment may include indications that a debtor or a group of debtors
is experiencing significant financial difficulty, default or delinquency
in interest or principal payments, the probability that they will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation and observable data
indicating that there is a measurable decrease in the estimated future
cash flows, such as changes in arrears or economic conditions that
correlate with defaults.

Financial assets carried at amortised cost

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the Group first assesses
whether impairment exists individually for financial assets that are
individually significant, or collectively for financial assets that are not
individually significant. If the Group determines that no objective
evidence of impairment exists for an individually assessed financial
asset, whether significant or not, it includes the asset in a group of
financial assets with similar credit risk characteristics and collectively
assesses them for impairment. Assets that are individually assessed for
impairment and for which an impairment loss is, or continues to be,
recognised are not included in a collective assessment of impairment.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Financial assets carried at amortised cost (continued)

The amount of any impairment loss identified is measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value
of estimated future cash flows (excluding future credit losses that have
not yet been incurred). The present value of the estimated future cash
flows is discounted at the financial asset’s original effective interest rate
(i.e., the effective interest rate computed at initial recognition).

The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use of an
allowance account and the loss is recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss. Interest income continues to be accrued on
the reduced carrying amount using the rate of interest used to discount
the future cash flows for the purpose of measuring the impairment
loss. Loans and receivables together with any associated allowance are
written off when there is no realistic prospect of future recovery and all
collateral has been realised or has been transferred to the Group.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the estimated impairment
loss increases or decreases because of an event occurring after the
impairment was recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss
is increased or reduced by adjusting the allowance account. If a future
write-off is later recovered, the recovery is credited to the consolidated
statement of profit or loss.

Assets carried at cost

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss has been incurred
on an unquoted equity instrument that is not carried at fair value
because its fair value cannot be reliably measured, the amount of the
loss is measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the present value of estimated future cash flows discounted at the
current market rate of return for a similar financial asset. Impairment
losses on these assets are not reversed.

Available-for-sale financial investments

For available-for-sale financial investments, the Group assesses at the
end of each reporting period whether there is objective evidence that an
investment or a group of investments is impaired.

If an available-for-sale asset is impaired, an amount comprising
the difference between its cost (net of any principal payment and
amortisation) and its current fair value, less any impairment loss
previously recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss,
is removed from other comprehensive income and recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss.
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POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)
Available-for-sale financial investments (continued)

In the case of equity investments classified as available for sale, objective
evidence would include a significant or prolonged decline in the fair
value of an investment below its cost. “Significant” is evaluated against
the original cost of the investment and “prolonged” against the
period in which the fair value has been below its original cost. Where
there is evidence of impairment, the cumulative loss — measured as
the difference between the acquisition cost and the current fair value,
less any impairment loss on that investment previously recognised in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss — is removed from other
comprehensive income and recognised in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss. Impairment losses on equity instruments classified as
available for sale are not reversed through the consolidated statement
of profit or loss. Increases in their fair value after impairment are
recognised directly in other comprehensive income.

The determination of what is “significant” or “prolonged” requires
judgement. In making this judgement, the Group evaluates, among
other factors, the duration or extent to which the fair value of an
investment is less than its cost.

Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, or loans and borrowings, as
appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case
of loans and borrowings, net of directly attributable transaction costs.

The Group'’s financial liabilities include trade payables, interest-bearing
bank borrowings, finance lease payables and financial guarantee
obligation.

Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities depends on their
classification as follows:

Loans and borrowings

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest
rate method unless the effect of discounting would be immaterial, in
which case they are stated at cost. Gains and losses are recognised
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss when the liabilities are
derecognised as well as through the effective interest rate amortisation
process.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Financial liabilities (continued)

Loans and borrowings (continued)

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or
premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the
effective interest rate. The effective interest rate amortisation is included
in finance costs in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Group are those contracts
that require a payment to be made to reimburse the holder for a
loss it incurs because the specified debtor fails to make a payment
when due in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument. A
financial guarantee contract is recognised initially as a liability at its
fair value, adjusted for transaction costs that are directly attributable
to the issuance of the guarantee. Subsequent to initial recognition,
the Group measures the financial guarantee contract at the higher
of: (i) the amount of the best estimate of the expenditure required to
settle the present obligation at the end of the reporting period; and
(i) the amount initially recognised less, when appropriate, cumulative
amortisation.

Derecognition of financial liabilities
A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the
liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the
same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing
liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification
is treated as a derecognition of the original liability and a recognition
of a new liability, and the difference between the respective carrying
amounts is recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is
reported in the consolidated statement of financial position if there is a
currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and
there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to realise the assets and
settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Cost is determined on the weighted average basis and includes all
costs of purchase and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories
to their present location and condition. Net realisable value is based on
the estimated selling prices less any estimated costs to be incurred to
disposal.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and
cash equivalents comprise cash on hand, demand deposits with banks
and other financial institutions, and short term highly liquid investments
that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash, are subject
to an insignificant risk of changes in value, and have a short maturity
of generally within three months when acquired, less bank overdrafts
which are repayable on demand and form an integral part of the
Group's cash management.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of financial position,
cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and at banks and
other financial institutions, including term deposits, which are not
restricted as to use.

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or
constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and it is probable that
a future outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation,
provided that a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the
obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount recognised for
a provision is the present value at the end of the reporting period of
the future expenditures expected to be required to settle the obligation.
The increase in the discounted present value amount arising from
the passage of time is included in finance costs in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax relating to
items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or
loss, either in other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected
to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities, based on
tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period, taking into consideration
interpretations and practices prevailing in the countries in which the
Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all temporary
differences at the end of the reporting period between the tax bases of
assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting
purposes.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Income tax (continued)
Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary
differences, except:

o when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition
of goodwill or an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a
business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects
neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

o in respect of taxable temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures, when
the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences can be
controlled and it is probable that the temporary differences will
not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary
differences, the carryforward of unused tax credits and any unused
tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it
is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences, and the carryforward of unused tax
credits and unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

o when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary
differences arises from the initial recognition of an asset or liability
in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the
time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor
taxable profit or loss; and

o in respect of deductible temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures, deferred
tax assets are only recognised to the extent that it is probable that
the temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable future
and taxable profit will be available against which the temporary
differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of
each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or
part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred
tax assets are reassessed at the end of each reporting period and are
recognised to the extent that it has become probable that sufficient
taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax
asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are
expected to apply to the period when the asset is realised or the liability
is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Income tax (continued)
Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally
enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets against current tax
liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and
the same taxation authority.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the economic benefits
will flow to the Group and when the revenue can be measured reliably,
on the following bases:

(@)  from the sale of goods, when the significant risks and rewards of
ownership have been transferred to the buyer, provided that the
Group maintains neither managerial involvement to the degree
usually associated with ownership, nor effective control over the
goods sold;

(b) interest income, on an accrual basis using the effective interest
method by applying the rate that discounts the estimated future
cash receipts over the expected life of the financial instrument to
the net carrying amount of the financial asset;

(c)  rental income, on a time proportion basis over the lease terms;

(d)  trademark licence income, when the relevant service has been
rendered; and

(e) dividend income, when the shareholders’ right to receive
payment has been established.

Share-based payments

The Company and one of its subsidiaries operate share option schemes
for the purpose of providing incentives and rewards to eligible
participants who contribute to the success of the Group's operations.
Employees (including directors) of the Group receive remuneration in
the form of share-based payments, whereby employees render services
as consideration for equity instruments (“equity-settled transactions”).

The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees for grants after
7 November 2002 is measured by reference to the fair value at the date
at which they are granted. The fair value is determined by an external
valuer using a binomial model, further details of which are given in note
30 to the consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Share-based payments (continued)

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised in employee benefit
expenses, together with a corresponding increase in equity, over the
period in which the performance and/or service conditions are fulfilled.
The cumulative expense recognised for equity-settled transactions at the
end of each reporting period until the vesting date reflects the extent to
which the vesting period has expired and the Group's best estimate of
the number of equity instruments that will ultimately vest. The charge
or credit to the consolidated statement of profit or loss for a period
represents the movement in the cumulative expense recognised as at
the beginning and end of that period.

Service and non-market performance conditions are not taken into
account when determining the grant date fair value of awards, but the
likelihood of the conditions being met is assessed as part of the Group's
best estimate of the number of equity instruments that will ultimately
vest. Market performance conditions are reflected within the grant date
fair value. Any other conditions attached to an award, but without
an associated service requirement, are considered to be non-vesting
conditions. Non-vesting conditions are reflected in the fair value of an
award and lead to an immediate expensing of an award unless there are
also service and/or performance conditions.

For awards that do not ultimately vest because non-market
performance and/or service conditions have not been met, no expense
is recognised. Where awards include a market or non-vesting condition,
the transactions are treated as vesting irrespective of whether the
market or non-vesting condition is satisfied, provided that all other
performance and/or service conditions are satisfied.

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are modified, as a minimum
an expense is recognised as if the terms had not been modified, if
the original terms of the award are met. In addition, an expense is
recognised for any modification that increases the total fair value of the
share-based payments, or is otherwise beneficial to the employee as
measured at the date of modification.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Share-based payments (continued)

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated as if it had
vested on the date of cancellation, and any expense not yet recognised
for the award is recognised immediately. This includes any award where
non-vesting conditions within the control of either the Group or the
employee are not met. However, if a new award is substituted for the
cancelled award, and is designated as a replacement award on the date
that it is granted, the cancelled and new awards are treated as if they
were a modification of the original award, as described in the previous
paragraph.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as additional share
dilution in the computation of earnings per share.

Other employee benefits

Pension schemes

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory Provident
Fund retirement benefit scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) under the
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for those employees
who are eligible to participate in the MPF Scheme. Contributions are
made based on a percentage of the employees’ basic salaries and are
charged to the consolidated statement of profit or loss as they become
payable in accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme. The assets
of the MPF Scheme are held separately from those of the Group in an
independently administered fund. The Group’s employer contributions
vest fully with the employees when contributed into the MPF Scheme,
except for the Group’s employer voluntary contributions, which are
refunded to the Group when the employee leaves employment prior to
the contributions vesting fully, in accordance with the rules of the MPF
Scheme.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which operate in Mainland
China, Singapore and Korea are required to participate in pension
schemes operated by the respective local municipal governments. These
subsidiaries are required to contribute a certain percentage of their
payroll costs to the pension schemes. The contributions are charged to
the consolidated statement of profit or loss as they become payable in
accordance with the rules of the pension schemes.

Borrowing costs
Borrowing costs are recognised as expenses in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss in the period in which they are incurred.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Dividends
Final dividends are recognised as a liability when they are approved by
the shareholders in a general meeting.

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and declared, because
the Company’s memorandum and articles of associate grant the
directors the authority to declare interim dividends. Consequently,
interim dividends are recognised immediately as a liability when they are
proposed and declared.

Foreign currencies

These consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars, which is the Company’s functional currency. Each entity in the
Group determines its own functional currency and items included in the
financial statements of each entity are measured using that functional
currency. Foreign currency transactions recorded by the entities in the
Group are initially recorded using their respective functional currency
rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions. Monetary assets
and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the
functional currency rates of exchange ruling at the end of the reporting
period. Differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary
items are recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a
foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the dates
of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair value
in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the
date when the fair value was measured. The gain or loss arising on
translation of a non-monetary item measured at fair value is treated
in line with the recognition of the gain or loss on change in fair value
of the item (i.e., translation difference on the item whose fair value
gain or loss is recognised in other comprehensive income or profit or
loss is also recognised in other comprehensive income or profit or loss,
respectively).
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Foreign currencies (continued)

The functional currencies of certain overseas subsidiaries, joint ventures
and associates are currencies other than the Hong Kong dollar. As at the
end of the reporting period, the assets and liabilities of these entities are
translated into Hong Kong dollars at the exchange rates prevailing at
the end of the reporting period and their statements of profit or loss are
translated into Hong Kong dollars at the weighted average exchange
rates for the year. The resulting exchange differences are recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated in the exchange
fluctuation reserve. On disposal of a foreign operation, the component
of other comprehensive income relating to that particular foreign
operation is recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Any goodwill arising on the acquisition of a foreign operation and any
fair value adjustments to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
arising on acquisition are treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign
operation and translated at the closing rate.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, the cash
flows of overseas subsidiaries are translated into Hong Kong dollars
at the exchange rates ruling at the dates of the cash flows. Frequently
recurring cash flows of overseas subsidiaries which arise throughout
the year are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the weighted average
exchange rates for the year.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group’s consolidated financial statements
requires management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and
liabilities, and their accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure
of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and
estimates could result in outcomes that could require a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of the assets or liabilities affected in
the future.
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3.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)

Judgements

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies, management
has made the following judgements, apart from those involving
estimations, which have the most significant effect on the amounts
recognised in the consolidated financial statements:

Operating lease commitments — Group as lessor
The Group has entered into commercial property leases on its
investment property portfolio. The Group has determined, based on
an evaluation of the terms and conditions of the arrangements, that it
retains all the significant risks and rewards of the ownership of these
properties which are leased out on operating leases.

Classification between investment properties and owner-
occupied properties

The Group determines whether a property qualifies as an investment
property, and has developed criteria in making that judgement.
Investment property is a property held to earn rentals or for capital
appreciation or both. Therefore, the Group considers whether a
property generates cash flows largely independently of the other assets
held by the Group.

Some properties comprise a portion that is held to earn rentals or for
capital appreciation and another portion that is held for use in the
production or supply of goods or services or for administrative purposes.
If these portions could be sold separately or leased out separately under
a finance lease, the Group accounts for the portions separately. If the
portions could not be sold separately, the property is an investment
property only if an insignificant portion is held for use in the production
or supply of goods or services or for administrative purposes.

Judgement is made on an individual property basis to determine
whether ancillary services are so significant that a property does not
qualify as an investment property.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of
estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that have a
significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are described
below.

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses carried
forward to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits
will be available against which the unused tax losses can be utilised.
Recognition primarily involves judgement regarding the future
performance of the particular legal entity or tax group in which the
deferred tax asset has been recognised. A variety of other factors are
also evaluated in considering whether there is convincing evidence
that it is probable that some portion or all of the deferred tax assets
will ultimately be realised, such as the existence of taxable temporary
differences, tax planning strategies and the periods in which estimated
tax losses can be utilised. The carrying amount of deferred tax assets
and related financial models and budgets are reviewed at the end
of each reporting period and to the extent that there is insufficient
convincing evidence that sufficient taxable profits will be available
within the utilisation periods to allow utilisation of the tax losses
carried forward, the asset balance will be reduced and charged to the
consolidated statement of profit or loss. The amount of unrecognised
tax losses at 31 March 2017 was approximately HK$348 million (2016:
approximately HK$318 million). Further details are contained in note 28
to the consolidated financial statements.

Estimation of fair value of investment properties

In the absence of current prices in an active market for similar
properties, the Group considers information from a variety of sources,
including:

(@  current prices in an active market for properties of a different
nature, condition or location, adjusted to reflect those
differences;

(b)  recent prices of similar properties on less active markets, with
adjustments to reflect any changes in economic conditions since
the date of the transactions that occurred at those prices; and

(c)  discounted cash flow projections based on reliable estimates of
future cash flows, supported by the terms of any existing lease
and other contracts and (when possible) by external evidence
such as current market rents for similar properties in the same
location and condition, and using discount rates that reflect
current market assessments of the uncertainty in the amount and
timing of the cash flows.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)

Estimation of fair value of investment properties (continued)

The carrying amount of investment properties at 31 March 2017 was
HK$115,955,000 (2016: HK$116,762,000). Further details, including
the key assumptions used for fair value measurement and a sensitivity
analysis, are given in note 13 to the consolidated financial statements.

Impairment of available-for-sale investments

The Group determines that available-for-sale investments are impaired
when there has been a significant or prolonged decline in the fair
value below its cost. When the fair value declines, management makes
assumptions about the decline in value to determine whether there is
an impairment that should be recognised in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss. For available-for-sale investments measured at cost,
management assesses the future prospects of these investments to
determine whether there is an impairment that should be recognised
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss. As at 31 March 2016,
impairment losses of HK$29,888,000 and HK$19,433,000 have been
recognised for available-for-sale investments measured at fair value and
costs respectively. The carrying amount of available-for-sale investments
as at 31 March 2017 were HK$282,930,000 (2016: HK$20,891,000).

Impairment of trade receivables, deposits and other receivables
The Group makes impairment provision for trade receivables, deposits
and other receivables based on an assessment of the recoverability of
these receivables. Impairment provision is made for these receivables
where events or changes in circumstances indicate that the balances
may not be collectible. The identification of doubtful debts requires the
use of judgement and estimates, including the current creditworthiness
and the past collection history of each debtor. Where the expectation
on the recoverability of these receivables is different from the original
estimate, such difference will impact the carrying value of these
receivables and impairment provision in the periods in which such
estimate has been changed. The aggregate carrying amount of
trade receivables as at 31 March 2017 was HK$49,359,000 (2016:
HK$63,994,000). The aggregate carrying amount of deposits and
other receivables as at 31 March 2017 was HK$20,216,000 (2016:
HK$9,047,000).
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)

Provision for inventories

The Group’s management reviews the inventory ageing analysis
periodically, and makes allowance for obsolete and slow-moving
inventory items identified that are no longer suitable for sales. The
Group carries out an inventory review on a product-by-product basis
at the end of each reporting period and makes allowance for obsolete
and slow-moving items through management’s estimation of the
net realisable value for such obsolete and slow-moving items based
primarily on the latest invoice prices and current market conditions. The
aggregate carrying amount of the Group's inventories as at 31 March
2017 was HK$78,266,000 (2016: HK$69,259,000).

Impairment of goodwiill

The Group determines whether goodwill is impaired at least on an
annual basis. This requires an estimation of the value in use of the cash-
generating units to which the goodwill is allocated. Estimating the
value in use requires the Group to make an estimate of the expected
future cash flows from the cash-generating units and also to choose a
suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present value of those
cash flows. The carrying amount of goodwill at 31 March 2017 was
nil (2016: HK$10,483,000). Further details are given in note 14 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Useful lives of other intangible assets

The Group amortises its intangible assets with a finite useful life on
a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives. The estimated
useful lives reflect management’s estimate of the period that the
Group intends to derive future economic benefits from the use of these
intangible assets. The carrying amount of other intangible assets at 31
March 2017 was HK$3,411,000 (2016: HK$4,198,000).

Valuation of convertible bonds

The convertible bonds have been valued based on the expected cash
flows discounted at current rates applicable for items with similar terms
and risk characteristics. The valuation requires the Group to make
estimates about expected future cash flows, credit risk, volatility and
discount rates, and hence is subject to uncertainty. The fair value of the
convertible bonds at 31 March 2017 was HK$56,631,000 (2016: Nil).
Further details are included in note 22(c) to the consolidated financial
statements.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

For management purposes, the Group is organised into business units
based on their products and services and has four reportable operating
segments as follows:

(@)  the semiconductor distribution segment engages in the sale and
distribution of electronic components;

(b)  the consumer electronic product segment engages in the design,
development and sale of electronic products;

(c)  the venture capital segment engages in the investments in
listed/unlisted equity investments with an ultimate objective of
obtaining capital gains on investee's equity listing or, in some
circumstances, prior to listing. It also includes investments in real
estate, managed funds or convertible bonds; and

(d) the others segment mainly comprises the Group’s mobile
application development business.

Management monitors the results of the Group's operating segments
separately for the purpose of making decisions about resources
allocation and performance assessment. Segment performance is
evaluated based on reportable segment profit/loss, which is a measure
of adjusted profit/loss before tax. The adjusted profit/loss before tax is
measured consistently with the Group'’s profit/loss before tax except
that bank interest income, dividend income from listed investments,
rental income, share of profits and losses of associates and joint
ventures, gain on disposal of items of property, plant and equipment,
loss on disposal of an available-for-sale investment, impairment of
available-for-sale investments, gain on deemed disposal of an associate,
changes in fair value of investment properties, provision for amount due
from an associate, impairment of other receivables, finance costs and
unallocated expenses are excluded from such measurement.

Segment assets exclude investments in joint ventures and associates, tax
recoverable, pledged time deposits, non-pledged time deposits, cash
and cash equivalents and other unallocated head office and corporate
assets as these assets are managed on a group basis.

Segment liabilities exclude tax payable, deferred tax liabilities, interest-
bearing bank borrowings, finance lease payables, financial guarantee
obligation and other unallocated head office and corporate liabilities as
these liabilities are managed on a group basis.

Intersegment sales and transfers are transacted with reference to the
selling prices used for sales made to third parties at the then prevailing
market prices.
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4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 4, REIVER @
Consumer
Semiconductor electronic Venture
distribution product capital Others Total
HEE
YERAH ETER b Htt Ch
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAT TER TAT THT TET
Year ended 31 March 2017 BE-E-tf
ZA=T+-ALEE
Segment revenue: AHKRE:
Sales to external customers MNRERHEE 1,304,911 36,755 - 733 1,342,399
Other revenue g - - 18,106 = 18,106
Total @t 1,304,911 36,755 18,106 733 1,360,505
Reconciliation: HiR:
Less: Other revenue (note) i E s (fsE) (18,106)
Revenue as presented in the consolidated  A4RAEBER 2512 K&E
statement of profit or loss 1,342,399
Segment results PHEE (3,147) (7,395) 13,838 (6,442) (3,146)
Reconciliation: HiE:
Bank interest income RITFBMA 511
Dividend income from listed investments % & Z iR B YA 188
Rental income ?ﬁé%]& 6,270
Share of profits of joint ventures HMERERERN 214,487
Share of profits of associates PEBE DR 3,118
Gain on disposal of items of property, ~ HEWE BERREEE 2
plant and equipment Wia 1,376
Gain on deemed disposal of an associate R {EHE —fEE &2 Al 2 Wa 90,735
Provision for amount due from FEN — Rl A R FUE R
an associate (6,373)
Impairment of other receivables Hth WA AE (7,739)
Changes in fair value of investment BRENEATEELED
properties 2,345
Unallocated expenses RABEZRR (22,158)
Finance costs BEKR (3.218)
Profit before tax BRAEATE A 276,396
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l‘/T\
31 March 2017 —ZZE—+F=A=+—H
4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 4. &2 IER (4
Consumer
Semiconductor electronic Venture
distribution product capital Others Total
HER
FEENH ETEM 8% Hto &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAL THL THL FAL THL
Year ended 31 March 2016 HE-Z—%
ZA=T-BLEE
Segment revenue: 7 b :
Sales to external customers MNRERHE 992,466 41,682 = 2,875 1,037,023
Other revenue ERlhen - - (18,779) - (18,779)
Total BEt 992,466 41,682 (18,779) 2,875 1,018,244
Reconciliation: Hk:
Add: Other revenue (note) m: E s (FizE) 18,779
Revenue as presented in the consolidated  F# & B &K 2512 e
statement of profit or loss 1,037,023
Segment results PHEE (38,150) (3,865) (23,809) (16,228) (82,052)
Reconciliation: HiR:
Bank interest income RITFEMA 389
Dividend income from listed investments 1 & 2 ik S4RA 46
Rental income HEWA 5,361
Share of profits of joint ventures HMeRBRERN 158,362
Share of profits and losses of associates 7B & A 51 Al R B8 8,771
Gain on disposal of items of property, — HEWE BEREEERZ
plant and equipment Wigs 155
Loss on disposal of available-for-sale HETHIEEREZER
investments (7,338)
Impairment of other receivables HthEWFIR 2 AE (311)
Impairment of an available-for-sale AHEERE 2 RE:
investment, at fair value EATEE (29,889)
Impairment of an available-for-sale A HERE 2 RE  RRA
investment, at cost (15,540)
Changes in fair value of investment RENEATEECE
properties (5,477)
Unallocated expenses KPR ZEZ (25,892)
Finance costs BEKA (5,829)
Profit before tax BRBLATR 757
Note: Other revenue in segment revenue was classified as other income and gains, Mzt : PEREAZEMBEE S BERFEEERAZ
changes in fair value of investment properties, and fair value gain/(losses) Hi A Rz REMERATFBEZEHUAR

of equity investments at fair value through profit or loss in the consolidated

statement of profit or loss.

FERBRBRATEBEIRIBRAREZ ATEE
Wz (EHE) -
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4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

4. REHIPERE @)

Consumer
Semiconductor electronic Venture
distribution product capital Others Total
HER
YEEAH ETER -1E Hity Ch
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FEL THER TER FEL TEL
Year ended 31 March 2017 BE-E-+F
ZA=t-ALEE
Segment assets PHEE 473,705 95,143 390,453 282 959,583
Reconciliation: HR:
Elimination of intersegment receivables Tfﬁiﬁ D EEERFE (291,882)
Investments in joint ventures REEREZRE 470,321
Investments in associates E/‘Eﬁﬁéﬂ Al RE 1,546
Corporate and other unallocated assets AR REM KSR EE 141,309
Total assets BELE 1,280,877
Segment liabilities FHEE 63,660 146,329 120,068 29,235 359,292
Reconciliation: Hik:
Elimination of intersegment payables }fﬁﬁ AR A (291,882)
Corporate and other unallocated ARREMKAEER
liabilities 135,173
Total liabilities BEEE 202,583
Year ended 31 March 2016 HE-T—/E
ZR=+-HILEE
Segment assets NEEE 491,086 91,121 78,969 859 662,035
Reconciliation: # EE
Elimination of intersegment receivables %fﬁiﬁ D EERFE (277,195)
Investments in joint ventures NEERECRE 370,153
Investments in associates E/\Eaﬁ BRRZIRE 22,439
Corporate and other unallocated assets A AR EMADEEE 107,082
Total assets BERE 884,514
Segment liabilities PHEE 54,251 135,630 121,844 22,289 334,014
Reconciliation: Hik:
Elimination of intersegment payables Tﬁfﬁ“*ﬁfﬁr 58 (277,195)
Corporate and other unallocated ARREMKAEER
liabilities 170,133
Total liabilities BfREHE 226,952
AV Concept Holdings Limited
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31 March 2017 —ZZE—+F=A=+—H
4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 4. K& BER (&
Other segment information: Hthn "‘Bﬁﬂ
Consumer
Semiconductor electronic Venture
distribution product capital Others Total
HEE
YERNH ETER AR Htt Ch
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAL THL THL FAT THL
Year ended 31 March 2017 BE-Z-t%
ZA=t+-ALEE
Depreciation bl 2,027 38 426 = 2,491
Amortisation of other intangible assets ~ HA B A E 2B 541 14 - - 555
Provision for/(recovery of) impairment ~ F & ZR{EEE,/ (Y[E)
of inventories (5,822) 2,208 - - (3,614)
Impairment of goodwil BEZAE 10,483 - - - 10,483
Impairment/(recovery) of EWE Z RN
trade receivables AE/ (k) (558) 2,417 = 55 1,914
Impairment of other receivables EfENFE RE 7,739
Provision for amount due from FEW — R i A R U R
an associate 6,373
Impairment of investments REEREZREZHME
in joint ventures 35,795
Capital expenditure* BARRZ 1,180 648 2,795 = 4,623
Year ended 31 March 2016 HE-ZT—F
ZA=+-HLEE
Depreciation bl 2342 24 457 = 2,823
Amortisation of other intangible assets  E At & & E 7 B i 2,080 17 - 1,880 3977
Provision for impairment of inventories 75 Z BB & 1,535 431 = = 1,966
Impairment of other intangible assets HthENEEZRE = = = 4,700 4,700
Impairment of trade receivables, net EUEZERRETFE 1,664 1,429 = = 3,003
Recovery of bad debts qmh=di (542) (15) = = (557)
Impairment of an available-for-sale REEREZRE
investment, at fair value RAYER 29,888
Impairment of an available-for-sale AEHERE ZRE R
investment, at cost 15,540
Impairment of investments REELEZREZRHE
in joint ventures 28,799
Impairment of other receivables EfENFE RE 311
Capital expenditure* BRRZ 58 - 1,308 = 1,366
* Capital expenditure consists of additions to property, plant and equipment. * BARIBRERABEDE BEL&E-
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4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

112

Geographical information

(a)

(b)

Revenue from external customers

4,

REFIER (@)
i & & R

() REIREE WS

2017 2016
—E—+tfF —E—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Hong Kong B 252,582 185,061
Singapore Fhnig 937,351 704,787
Korea [ 152,466 147,175
1,342,399 1,037,023
The revenue information above is based on the locations of the LS E R R AT E
customers.
Non-current assets (b) *RBEE
2017 2016
—E—+F —E-RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAET
Hong Kong BE 513,394 411,249
Mainland China AR (A3 91,043 91,754
Singapore 0 24,717 27,576
Korea FRE 1,340 34,061
630,494 564,640

The non-current assets information above is based on the
locations of the assets and excludes financial instruments.

Information about a major customer

For year ended 31 March 2017, no revenue from the Group's sales
to a single customer amounted to 10% or above of the Group’s total

revenue.

In the prior year, revenue of approximately HK$139,121,000 was
derived from sales by the semiconductor distribution segment to a
single customer, including sales to a group of entities which are known

to be under common control with that customer.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS 5.

Revenue represents the net invoiced value of goods sold, after
allowances for returns and trade discounts, during the year.

An analysis of revenue, other income and gains is as follows:

e IR IR AR R

31 March 2017 ZE—+F=A=+—H

Hﬂl%‘rﬁf&ﬂ&)k&l&“
bk F AR AR

LESHMEZHEERER

e HMWARWKE 2 DHOT

2017 2016
—E—+fF —E—REF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Revenue &=
Semiconductor distribution FEEE 5 1,304,911 992,466
Consumer electronic product sales HERETEMEE 36,755 41,682
Others E1 733 2,875
1,342,399 1,037,023
Other income and gains Hp g A R Uz
Bank interest income HITH B WA 511 389
Interest income on convertible bonds AR E 2 B WA 1,147 =
Recovery of bad debts i B 528 Bk - 557
Dividend income from listed investments MR & Z ix B Ug A 188 46
Gain on disposal of items of property, HEME HEMKHEIEE 2 &
plant and equipment 1,376 155
Trademark licence income from —EBE R A 2 IR RERA
an associate 389 389
Rental income HeWA 6,270 5,361
Net exchange gain M 5 Uy S EE 279 =
Others Hi 1,618 885
11,778 7,782
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31 March 2017 ZE—+F=A=+—H

6.

114

PROFIT BEFORE TAX 6. FRBIADRA
The Group's profit before tax is arrived at after charging/(crediting): REBZBRBEFNBEHNE(GEA)
2017 2016
—E—+tF —E-RF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
P 5T FET FH&T
Cost of inventories sold*** SHE R AR *** 1,300,465 989,979
Provision for/(recovery of) BEZRERE (UE) <**
impairment of inventories*** (3,614) 1,966
Depreciation e 12 2,491 2,823
Amortisation of other intangible Hh P EE 2 i~ 15
assets** 555 3,977
Impairment of other intangible HEhEREE 2 BB 15
assets* - 4,700
Impairment of trade receivables, FEUE 5 BR R 2 B S EE* 20
net* 1,914 3,093
Impairment of other receivables* H th & WK IE 2 R A * 7,739 311
Impairment of goodwill* R B> 14 10,483 =
Minimum lease payments under RIFLEMAE
operating leases IEHERE 2,820 3,563
Auditor’s remuneration Z RN & 2,758 3,851
Staff costs (including directors’ BIMA (BEESEHN
remuneration — note 8): —KIE8) -
Wages, salaries and other B e REHAM R
allowances 42,224 50,223
Equity-settled share option RIEEEERERS 30
expense* - 2,765
Pension scheme contributions RIKEET B 1,843 1,855
44,067 54,843
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BB ERRME

l‘/-F
31 March 2017 ZE—tF=A=+—H
PROFIT BEFORE TAX (continued) 6. BRBADEF (a0
2017 2016
—E—tF —E—RF
Notes HK$°000 HK$'000
B 5 FERT FHET
Fair value (gain)/losses, net: AEEE (W) EEFE:
Equity investments at fair value FiREEERATEBEIERZ
through profit or loss fRAE &
— held for trading —FHEE&E 4,093 18,113
— designated as such upon —RUNATEREIEE AL
initial recognition k=R3ll (20,485) 174
Foreign exchange differences, net ~ SME Z=58/% 58 (279) 5,000
Loss on disposal of available-for-sale % A] & 1% & 7 518 *
investments* - 7,338
Impairment of an available-for-sale ~ AJ &% & 2 E1E -
investment, at fair value* BATEE* - 29,888
Impairment of an available-for-sale At H &K E ZR(E 18(d)
investment, at cost* R AR = 15,540
Gain on deemed disposal of an RIEHE — B E R E 2 W
associate (90,735) -
Impairment of investments in REELEIREZRES
joint ventures* 35,795 28,799
Provision for amount due from FE U — P B A B FRIB R 17
an associate* 6,373 -
Gain on derecognition of financial 4R IFFERMEERETZ
guarantee obligation* Wz > (35,795) (28,799)
Direct operating expenses (include WL EMEFREL Z
repairs and maintenance,) arising BEEZERY
on rental-earning investment (BIEHERRE)
properties 925 1,184
* These balances are included in "Other expenses, net” on the face of the * ZEERTFTAGREBRRZ [EthERFE] -

consolidated statement of profit or loss.

*x This balance is included in

“Administrative expenses”

consolidated statement of profit or loss.

**%  These balances are included in “Costs of sales” on the face of the consolidated

statement of profit or loss.

on the face of the

* %

* %k Kk

EHIAGERERZ [TTRER]

FZERBRTDF AR ERERZ [HEKRA] -

AV Concept Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2017 &%

115



Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

e IR R AR B T

31 March 2017 ZE—+F=A=+—H

7.

116

FINANCE COSTS 7. ®EKA

An analysis of finance costs is as follows: RMEKARZ W
2017 2016
—E—+tF —T—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHE T
Interest on bank and other borrowings RITREAMERZFE 2,977 5,585
Interest on mortgage loans RBERZFE 204 222
Interest on finance lease MEREZFE 37 22
3,218 5,829

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION AND FIVE HIGHEST 8.

PAID EMPLOYEES

Directors’ remuneration

Directors’ remuneration for the year, disclosed pursuant to the Listing
Rules, section 383(1)(a), (b), (c) and (f) of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance and Part 2 of the Companies (Disclosure of Information
about Benefits of Directors) Regulation, is as follows:

ESFHWRAEVEFNERS 2EE

EE5M

RAE ETRA - HB R REHIE383(1)@) - (b)* ()
EROKERAR (BBEESFZER) RHIE25 5
B2FNESHMAOT

2017 2016

—E—tF —E—RF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FET

Fees we 300 300

Other emoluments: E e

Salaries, housing and other allowances, e BEREMBMUR

and benefits in kind EWH = 14,543 13,091

Pension scheme contributions BIRE IR 367 335

14,910 13,426

15,210 13,726
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e IR MR

31 March 2017 ZE—+F=A=+—H

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION AND FIVE HIGHEST 8. EEHMRIENTFMESZES

PAID EMPLOYEES (continued)

Directors’ remuneration (continued)

(@) Independent non-executive directors
The fees paid to independent non-executive directors during the
year are as follows:

()

EEHM (20

@ BUKHTES
FASZNTBIFMTESZHEMT :

2017 2016

—E—tF —E—REF

HK$'000 HK$'000

THET FET

Dr. Lui Ming Wah, sBs, P BEAEE L s AT ML 100 100
Mr. Charles Edward Chapman Charles Edward Chapman?t 4 100 100
Mr. Wong Ka Kit ERELE 100 100
300 300

There were no other emoluments payable to the independent
non-executive directors during the year (2016: Nil).

FATEEBENBIIENTES S
ZE—RNFE)

(b) Executive directors (b) BMITESE
Salaries,
housing and
other
allowances, Pension
and benefits scheme Total
in kind contributions remuneration
e BEER
H )2 hh EBRE
DR EY R = sTEIHR E 0 PR
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET FHT
2017 —E—+tF
Executive directors: WITES:
Dr. So Yuk Kwan #FIEIEL 6,428 36 6,464
Mr. So Chi On BEREE 5,295 235 5,530
Mr. So Kevin Chi Heng BEELEE 1,710 78 1,788
Mr. So Chi Sun Sunny BREREE 1,110 18 1,128
14,543 367 14,910
2016 —E—RE
Executive directors: WITES:
Dr. So Yuk Kwan BEHELT 6,339 49 6,388
Mr. So Chi On BEREE 4,695 234 4,929
Mr. So Kevin Chi Heng (note (i) B |k AE (FEE>)) 720 36 756
Mr. So Chi Sun Sunny (note (i)) BRES 2 S (PRTEEG)) 400 8 408
Mr. Ho Choi Yan Christopher (note (i) {a] B 2 55 4 (Bt &5 i) ) 937 8 945
13,091 335 13,426
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31 March 2017 ZE—+F=A=+—H
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DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION AND FIVE HIGHEST 8. EEFMEANFHMES2ES
PAID EMPLOYEES (continued) (%)
Directors’ remuneration (continued) EEFM 3
(b) Executive directors (continued) (b) #ITES (HF)
Notes: M e
(i) Directors were appointed on 2 November 2015. The disclosed (i) ZEBER_ZT—AFt+—A-HEZ
emoluments for individual director represent the emoluments received F-ABESZERBEMNEDER=-F
or receivable after the appointment of directorship on 2 November —HFT—AZAEZRERESTRIENK
2015. KBNS ©
(ii) Director resigned on 31 August 2015. (ii) ZEEFR_T—RAFN\A=+—HEE-
There was no other arrangement under which a director waived FRN BEINEEEETHNEIRBNE
or agreed to waive any remuneration during the year (2016: Nil). EREFMz At s (Z 2 —RF:8) -
Five highest paid employees IuFMESZES
The five highest paid employees during the year included four (2016: FRN AuFHEeEcBERBENLL (ZF—X
three) directors, details of whose remuneration are set out above. FZMDES EFMFBERN EX - FAERS
Details of the remuneration of the remaining one highest paid employee —fIHFMER2EE (ZE—R"F W) (Ef
(2016: two) (one of them was appointed as director for the year ended —(IREBE_T-—R"F=A=1T—HILFEEZ
31 March 2016) for the year are as follows: ERES) 2HMFBNOT:
2017 2016
—E—+tF —ZE-RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHEx TFHET
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind ¥4 2RI R EWHIZR 1,259 3,730
The number of non-director, highest paid employees whose HFMNFUTER FREIFEESREE Z AR
remuneration fell within the following bands is as follows: AT
Number of employees
EEAH
2017 2016
—E—+tF —E—RF
Nil to HK$1,000,000 = 21,000,000/ 7T - 1
HK$1,000,001 to HK$ 1,500,000 1,000,001 7T 21,500,000/ 7T 1 =
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001/% 7T 22,000,000/ 7T = -
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 2,000,001 7T £2,500,0007% 7T = -
HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000 2,500,001 7T £ 3,000,000 7T - 1
1 2
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INCOME TAX

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5% (2016:
16.5%) on the estimated assessable profit arising in Hong Kong during
the year. Taxes on profits assessable elsewhere have been calculated
at the rates of tax prevailing in the jurisdictions in which the Group

e IR IR AR R

31 March 2017 ZE—+F=A=+—H

FRiG®

ERFEHHIBRBEAFEEEBEE 2 MTER
T FIEREE16.5% (ZT—"F:16.5% )it &
Bl Ehi @ ERBEF 2 MBI IR A E B L
EEBFERZEBRERAZHESE

operates.
2017 2016
—E—+tF —E—REF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHEx FHET
Current — Elsewhere BNHER— H Ath b [&

Charge for the year REFEZH 514 95
Overprovision in prior years AT F[E BB % (287) (10)
Deferred (note 28) EIE (F3E28) 47 (1,474)
Total tax charge/(credit) for the year REFZHELL (Bh)BE 274 (1,389)

A reconciliation of the tax charge/(credit) applicable to profit before tax
at the statutory rate for the jurisdictions in which the Company and the

RAAD R REAHS KB A AR AR 2
SRR B2 AT R 2 B

majority of its subsidiaries are domiciled to the tax charge/(credit) at the () BRERBEAEIBEIL(HE2)
effective tax rate is as follows: ZHEERMAT
2017 2016
—E—tF A
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHT

Profit before tax B 5 A A 276,396 757
Tax at the statutory tax rate of 16.5% BEEME16.5%

(2016: 16.5%) (ZZ—"F:16.5%)

STECHIE 45,605 125

Effect of different tax rates Htha ZEEHEERE s H &

in other jurisdictions 489 (720)
Profits and losses attributable B2 R A A A (G R A

to joint ventures and associates &8 (35,905) (27,577)
Adjustments in respect of current tax of B RIA L HARHE B AT B 2 AT

previous periods (287) (10)
Income not subject to tax BAERBIA (20,585) (1,349)
Expenses not deductible for tax EE k5 5,845 10,223
Tax losses not recognised RER < HIEEE 7,413 17,367
Tax losses utilised from previous periods FAETEEBIEERE (1,854) =
Others H At (447) 552
Tax charge/(credit) for the year AEFZRERY, (HR) 274 (1,389)
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31 March 2017 ZE—+F=A=+—H

10.

11.

120

INCOME TAX (continued) 9. BH @
The share of tax attributable to joint ventures and associates DEEELERBERRCEGRES A
amounting to HK$42,425,000 (2016: HK$31,370,000) and nil (2016: 42,425,000/ 7T ( —F — 7<% : 31,370,000/% 7T )
HK$910,000), respectively, is included in “Share of profits and losses of REBT(ZFT—/XF:910,000%7T) ' E&t A
joint ventures and associates” in the consolidated statement of profit or FaBaRZ [DhELErERBE R AEN R
loss. BRI A
DIVIDEND 10. K&
2017 2016
—E—+tE —E—RX
HK$’000 HK$'000
THT FHT
Proposed final dividend EAEAR S
— HK$0.02 (2016: Nil) per ordinary share ~ — & & EA%0.02/8 7T
(ZB—REF:8) 15,459 -
At the Board meeting held on 26 June 2017, the Board resolved to RZTE—tEFARAAZTRARTZEESSH
recommend the payment of a final dividend of HK$0.02 per share for FEEERREFREBE_ST—+tF=A
the year ended 31 March 2017. The proposed final dividend is not =+ —HIEFEZRERESTR0.028E T - i
reflected as dividend payable in the consolidated financial statements REARBAERRA AR R EERRBEFRE L8t
until it is approved by the shareholders at the forthcoming annual BB TEREREVBRRARBRBEMARS -
general meeting of the Company.
EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO M. ARFHEBEABEERER

OWNERS OF THE COMPANY

The calculation of the basic earnings per share amounts is based on
the profit for the year attributable to owners of the Company, and the
weighted average number of ordinary shares of 772,944,419 (2016:
772,944,419) in issue during the year.

The calculation of the diluted earnings per share amounts is based on
the profit for the year attributable to owners of the Company. The
weighted average number of ordinary shares used in the calculation is
the number of ordinary shares in issue during the year, as used in the
basic earnings per share calculation, and the weighted average number
of ordinary shares assumed to have been issued at no consideration
on the deemed exercise or conversion of all dilutive potential ordinary
shares into ordinary shares.

No adjustment has been made to the basic earnings per share amount
presented for the year ended 31 March 2016 in respect of a dilution as
the impact of the share options outstanding had an anti-dilutive effect
on the basic earnings per share amount presented.
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31 March 2017 ZE—+F=A=+—H

11. EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO M. ZRFHEBEABGLGERER (20
OWNERS OF THE COMPANY (continued)
The calculation of basic and diluted earnings per share is based on: BRERNRESRBR TIRBIATEEAE
2017 2016
—E—tF —E—REF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FHET
Earnings BF
Profit attributable to owners of the AUGTEERERREERR 2
Company, used in the basic and diluted 22 A1 A A FE {5 7
earnings per share calculation 276,122 2,147
Number of shares
R EE
2017 2016
—E—tF —E—RF
Shares gl
Weighted average number of ordinary AU EERERBIZFR
shares in issue during the year used in B BT mARNE T 8
the basic earnings per share calculation 772,944,419 772,944,419
Effect of dilution — weighted average BEyE - LTER
number of ordinary shares: InwEFg 8
Share options AR A 27,406 =
772,971,825 772,944,419
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31 March 2017 ZE—+F=A=+—H

12. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

12. Y% BEKRKE

Leasehold Land and Furniture,
land and buildings fittings
buildings (outside Leasehold and office Motor Plant and
(Hong Kong)*  (Hong Kong)* improvements equipment vehicles machinery Total
THRETF
HETHR (BB BE B 2ER
BF(FE) HE)* NEREE RAERE AE BEREE EH
HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
TR TiEx TiEn TiER TEx TR TR
31 March 2017 “Z2-tf=H=1-A
At 31 March 2016 and 1 April 2016: RZE-R"E=A=+-HkK
ZE2-R¥MA-E:

Cost [ 39,567 11,996 7326 7,107 11,559 - 71,555

Accumulated depreciation 2ithE (10,207) (3,297) (6,867) (6,831) (9,748) = (36,950)

Net carrying amount REFE 29,360 8,699 459 276 1,811 - 40,605
At 1 April 2016, net of RZE-~§mA-R"

accumulated depreciation N 23T E 29,360 8,699 459 276 1811 - 40,605
Additions "B - - 10 40 3,925 648 4,623
Disposals HE - (2,606) - (15) (646) = (3,267)
Depreciation provided during the year ~ FR&E 2 T E (Hizk6)

(note 6) (923) (738) (139) (166) (493) (32) (2,491)
Exchange realignment BN AR - 212) - W) 10 = (209)
At 31 March 2017, net of W_E—+#=A=+—-H"

accumulated depreciation R EGIE 28,437 5,143 330 128 4,607 616 39,261
At 31 March 2017: RZF—LFZA=1-H:

Cost R 39,567 8,562 6,942 6,657 13,333 648 75,709

Accumulated depreciation 2ithE (11,130) (3419) (6,612) (6,529) (8,726) (32) (36,448)

Net carrying amount REFE 28,437 5,143 330 128 4,607 616 39,261
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12. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)

e IR IR AR R

31 March 2017 ZE—+F=A=+—H

12. E -BERRZRE @

Leasehold Land and Furniture,
land and buildings fittings
buildings (outside Leasehold and office Motor
(Hong Kong)* Hong Kong)*  improvements equipment vehicles Total
THRET
HELHR (BHBLASN HE  KHCRER
BF(FH) WE)* NEKE HNA e At
HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
FiET T FiET FiEn FiET FiEn
31 March 2016 ZE-AEZB=1-H
At 1 April 2015: RZE-R§MA—-A:

Cost KA 39,567 11,905 7333 7,04 12,83 78,845

Accumulated depreciation ZHTE (9,284) (2,568) (6,773) (6,660) (11,065) (36,350)

Net carrying amount REFE 30,283 9,337 560 544 1771 42,495
At 1 April 2015, net of RZZ-R5MA-R"

accumulated depreciation R 2:IE 30,283 9,337 560 544 1771 42,495
Additions RE - = 52 6 1,308 1,366
Disposals & - - - (1) (461) (472)
Depreciation provided during the year FRBENE (fi6)

(note 6) (923) (677) (153) (262) (808) (2,823)
Exchange realignment EXAE - 39 - (1) 1 39
At 31 March 2016, net of RZE-~E=ZA=1+-H"

accumulated depreciation R 2:IE 29,360 8,699 459 276 1811 40,605
At 31 March 2016: RZZ-R"F=ZA=1+—H:

Cost A 39,567 11,99 7,326 7,107 11,559 77,555

Accumulated depreciation 2ithE (10,207) (3,297) (6,867) (6,831) (9,748) (36,950)

Net carrying amount REFE 29,360 8,699 459 276 1811 40,605

#

As the land lease payments cannot be allocated reliably between the land and
buildings elements, the entire lease payments are included in the cost of the

land and buildings as a finance lease in property, plant and equipment.

The net carrying amount of the Group’s property, plant and equipment
held under finance leases included in the total amount of motor vehicles

at 31 March 2017 was HK$2,415,000 (2016: HK$657,000).

# MR AENREEE LB RETH SR SE
e Bt 2 BEENREF AL REFR
KAERME BMERRFERERE -

R_E—+tF=ZA=+—H AEZHEBEBEXN
SEREREEESEZYVE BERZBEZE
M F %62,415,0009 70 (= — 7S : 657,000
JL) °
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31 March 2017 ZE—+F=A=+—H

13.

124

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

13. REWE

2017 2016

—EB—+F —E—RF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FHET

Carrying amount at beginning of year FUZEESRE 116,762 121,891

Changes in fair value of investment REMELNTEBEZEY

properties 2,345 (5,477)
Exchange realignment PE 5 % (3,152) 348
Carrying amount at end of year FRIZEERSE 115,955 116,762

The Group's investment properties consist of one residential property
in Hong Kong, four office properties and several serviced apartments in
Mainland China and one residential property in Singapore. The directors
of the Company have determined that the investment properties consist
of three classes of asset, i.e., residential properties, office properties
and serviced apartments, based on the nature, characteristics and risks
of each property. The Group’s investment property in Hong Kong was
revalued on 31 March 2017 based on valuation performed by Roma
Appraisals Limited, an independent professionally qualified valuer,
at HK$6,000,000. The Group's investment properties in Shenzhen
and Chengdu were revalued on 31 March 2017 based on valuations
performed by Roma Appraisals Limited, independent professionally
qualified valuer, at HK$67,688,000 and HK$23,352,000, respectively.
The Group's investment property in Singapore was revalued on
31 March 2017 based on valuation performed by THEO Property
Consultants Pte. Ltd., independent professionally qualified valuer, at
HK$18,915,000. Each year, the Group's chief financial officer decides
to appoint which external valuer to be responsible for the external
valuations of the Group's properties. Selection criteria include market
knowledge, reputation, independence and whether professional
standards are maintained. The Group's chief financial officer has
discussions with the valuers on the valuation assumptions and valuation
results when the valuations are performed for annual financial
reporting.
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13.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

The investment properties are leased to third parties under operating
leases, further summary details of which are included in note 34(a) to
the consolidated financial statements.

At 31 March 2017, the Group's investment properties with a carrying
value of HK$67,688,000 (2016: HK$86,250,000) were pledged to
secure general banking facilities granted to the Group (note 25(i)).

Further particulars of the Group’s investment properties are included on
page 180.

Fair value hierarchy
The following table illustrates the fair value measurement hierarchy of
the Group's investment properties:

e IR IR AR R

31 March 2017 ZE—+F=A=+—H

BEWE @)
BEME RS ERERTE=S E—5H
TR IE RS A B R K 5E34()

RZE—+tF=A=+—H A5EEKEE
67,688,000/ 7T ( —Z —7<4F : 86,250,000/ 7T )
ZIREMEE TER EARTAEE 2 —HKR
TEEZER (HsE250)) °

BRAEERAMELE—SHERNE180E -
AFEESRRE

TRINFAEEREMEZ R EEFESH
®:

Fair value measurement
as at 31 March 2017 using
R-EB—tF=A=1+-B2AVEEFERER

Quoted Significant Significant

prices in active observable unobservable

markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total

ERTS EXTEBE EAFTTEE

ZHE BAE BWAE
(5—-8) (5=8) ($=8) ast
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000
TER TER TER TER

Recurring fair value measurement for: THREZ LT
AFEEHE:

Residential properties FEME - - 24,915 24,915
Office properties MREME - - 67,688 67,688
Serviced apartments RBEAAE - - 23,352 23,352
- - 115,955 115,955
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13.
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INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)
Fair value hierarchy (continued)

BEWE @)
AT EESERESE (H)

Fair value measurement

as at 31 March 2016 using
RIB-—REZA=+—-BZRAVEEHERER

Quoted Significant Significant
prices in active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
REET 5 BEXABE EBEAMAEE
ZHE AR AR
(F—E) (=) (=) CH
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET TAT FET
Recurring fair value measurement for: THREZ LB
AFEEFE:
Residential properties FEME - - 25,025 25,025
Office properties E/NEL ) S - - 66,375 66,375
Serviced apartments RBEAAE - - 25,362 25,362
- - 116,762 116,762

During the year, there were no transfers of fair value measurements
between Level 1 and Level 2 and no transfers into or out of Level 3
(2016: Nil).

AV Concept Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2017 &%

FREF-RE_ELATFEEFECHLEE
B BZENECABAREL (ZT—XF:
=) -



13.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

e IR IR AR R

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

Fair value hierarchy (continued)

Reconciliation of fair value measurements categorised within Level 3 of

31 March 2017 ZE—+F=A=+—H

BEWE @)
AFLEESRES (®)
PREANTEBESHEBE =2 ATEEI=

the fair value hierarchy: AR
Residential Office Serviced
properties properties apartments
Ty MAEYE BRHEXAE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FHT FHET
Carrying amount at 1 April 2015 RZZE—RFMA—HZ
RE S 31,516 65,000 25,375
Net gain/(loss) from a fair value EM?E\E#?EWBE%’ p
adjustment recognised in the NEEEFAE W
consolidated statement of (518) 5%
profit or loss (6,839) 1,375 (13)
Exchange realignment b H AR 348 - -
Carrying amount at 31 March 2016 E/\\_f RNE=ZA=+—8K
and 1 April 2016 T-XFMA—BZ
Eﬁﬁ/ﬁgg 25,025 66,375 25,362
Net gain from a fair value adjustment E/\\Zﬁ/—\% mR AR
recognised in the consolidated N EEARNRFE
statement of profit or loss 569 1,313 463
Exchange realignment ME 5, 58 2L (679) = (2,473)
Carrying amount at 31 March 2017 R=-Z—t&=A=+—HZ
REEH 24,915 67,688 23,352
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13.

128

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

13. REWE @)

Fair value hierarchy (continued) AT EEERES ()

Below is a summary of the valuation techniques used and the key inputs WEYEMGEFA 2 ERTREZEH ABRR
to the valuation of investment properties: PUNNE

Valuation Significant Value/Range
techniques unobservable inputs (weighted average)
fh B 1l EAXTUBRGAE BE EE (EF)
Residential property situated Market comparison Adjusted unit price HK$11,173
in Hong Kong approach (per square foot) (2016: HK$9,590)
URBEEZEETHE Wi BUE RFHEEN(ER 11,1733 7T
(Tr?iﬂﬂ) (ZZ—RF:9,590%7T)

Residential property situated
in Singapore

RIRAF I 2 (EEM

Office properties situated
in Mainland China
CL AR B A 2 R B3

Serviced apartments situated
in Mainland China

NRPEALZ REXRE

AV Concept Holdings Limited
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Market comparison
approach

[EE 142975

Market comparison
approach

[EE 142975

Income approach

WA

Adjusted unit price
(per square meter)

RFHEEN(ER
(GF75K)

Adjusted unit price
(per square meter)

165 B B A (B AR
( FFHK)

Estimated rental value
(per square meter and
per month)

Term yield

Reversionary yield

st E
(BFEHKEEA)

FH R
ER Y

SGD18,378

(2016: SGD18,649)
18,378% 7T

(ZZ—7X%F :18,649% 1)

RMB59,954
(2016: RMB53,059)
)\Eﬁ%w 9547T
(ZZB—R%F:
AR #53,0597T)

RMB65 to RMB75
(2016: RMB65 to RMB94)

3.5% (2016: 3.5%)

4.0% (2016: 4.0%)
ARB6STTE ARKETSTT
(ZZB—R%F:
ARM65TE ARM94T)
35% (ZE—"F:3.5%)
40% (ZZT—"F:4.0%)
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INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

Fair value hierarchy (continued)

Under the income approach, the properties are valued by taking into
account the current rents passing or the hypothetical rents and the
reversionary potential of the tenancies if the properties have been or
would be leased to tenants.

The duration of the cash flows and the specific timing of inflows and
outflows are determined by events such as rent reviews, lease renewal
and related reletting, redevelopment or refurbishment. The appropriate
duration is driven by market behaviour that is a characteristic of
the class of property. The periodic cash flow is estimated as gross
income less vacancy, non-recoverable expenses, collection losses,
lease incentives, maintenance costs, agent and commission costs and
other operating and management expenses. The series of periodic
net operating income, along with an estimate of the terminal value
anticipated at the end of the projection period, is then discounted.

A significant increase (decrease) in the estimated rental value would
result in a significant increase (decrease) in the fair value of the
investment properties. A significant increase (decrease) in the term yield
and reversionary yield in isolation would result in a significant decrease
(increase) in the fair value of the investment properties. Generally,
a change in the assumption made for the estimated rental value is
accompanied by a directionally similar change in the term yield and
reversionary yield.

Under the market comparison approach, the properties are valued on
the market basis assuming sales in their existing state with the benefit
of vacant possession and by making reference to comparable sales
evidence as available in the relevant markets. Comparison is based on
prices realised in actual transactions or asking prices of comparable
properties. Appropriate adjustments are then made to account for the
differences between such properties in terms of age, time, location,
floor level and other relevant factors.

e IR IR AR R

31 March 2017 ZE—+F=A=+—H

BEYE @)

AT EESRERS (H)

RIS MYLDERBEEEATES W
LeNHERTHSABEAS U RASERE
Nk T E -

ﬁ%//\bﬁﬁﬁﬁlf/{&/ﬂb //Ihﬁzﬁ HTF%}EEE%EQ
BE BEELAMBRE ERNEESERE
EBEEHRREMEMBER 2 TIBIT R

E-EHHERERGWAREER A kM
Sﬂﬁ‘”ﬁl@i@ﬁ‘i HE R wEXA RERA
ERANREMEEREEERGE - BETEH
BB SRR IR N IR B A R A Z (A 5T
REHZRIR

B EERZE LA (TR SEBRENERT
EBEEZ LT (TE) - FHKE R ES RS 1E5)
BELA(TRRAEZEBRENELTEER
ETE (L) - — R E - AAEERRZED
EEBEUST Rz R am R ERKRSEES-

BRETISLEE DERTSELEETHE &
PREBEARAZEHE W2 RIBAT 5 EF
ZABLBIHERE LBIABRR5HBB2E
REAMELBYE cUERER - EHEBERER
FHEE HE Uit RMEER BR GE 2
EREMBAEAREER-
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14.
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GOODWILL 14. BE
2017 2016
—E—+F —E—REF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FH&T
At beginning of year: F9):
Cost &N 32,780 32,780
Accumulated impairment EEFRIE (22,297) (22,297)
Net carrying amount AREHER 10,483 10,483
At beginning of year, F4 - Mk ReHRE
net of accumulated impairment 10,483 10,483
Impairment during the year (note 6) FRRE (FisE6) (10,483) =
At end of year, F - MR REHRE
net of accumulated impairment - 10,483
At end of year: F
Cost BXAR 32,780 32,780
Accumulated impairment REHRE (32,780) (22,297)
Net carrying amount REERR - 10,483

Impairment testing of goodwill and other intangible
assets

Goodwill and other intangible assets acquired through business
combination are allocated to the cash-generating unit (“CGU") of
the semiconductor distribution business and the mobile application
development business for impairment testing.

Semiconductor distribution business

At 31 March 2016, the recoverable amount of the CGU has been
determined based on a value in use calculation using cash flow
projections based on financial budgets covering a five-year period
approved by senior management. The discount rate applied to the cash
flow projections is 10.0%. The growth rate used to extrapolate the
cash flows of the semiconductor distribution business beyond the five-
year period is 3.5%. This growth rate is based on the relevant industry
growth forecasts and the average long-term growth rate for the
relevant industry.

AV Concept Holdings Limited
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14. GOODWILL (continued)

Impairment testing of goodwill and other intangible
assets (continued)

Semiconductor distribution business (continued)

During the year ended 31 March 2017, the semiconductor distribution
business related to CGU has been ceased. The directors have
consequently determined to recognise an impairment loss on goodwill
directly related to the semiconductor distribution business amounting to
HK$10,483,000 (2016: Nil) during the year.

Mobile application development business

The recoverable amount of the CGU has been determined based on a
value in use calculation using cash flow projections based on financial
budgets covering a six-year period approved by senior management and
was assessed to be nil.

The discount rate applied to the cash flow projections is 20.0%. The
growth rate used to extrapolate the cash flows of the mobile application
development business beyond the six-year period is nil. Nil growth rate
was used to extrapolate the cash flows because management expected
that the growth of the CGU will be stable after the six-year period.

The directors determined to recognise an impairment loss on other
intangible assets directly related to the mobile application development
business amounting to HK$4,700,000 during the year ended 31 March
2016. The main factor contributing to the impairment was the decrease
in profit forecasts of the mobile application development business
estimated by the directors of the Company.

Key assumptions

Assumptions were used in the value in use calculation of the
semiconductor distribution business and mobile application
development business for 31 March 2017 and 31 March 2016. The
following describes each key assumption on which management has
based its cash flow projections to undertake impairment testing:

Budgeted gross margins — The basis used to determine the value
assigned to the budgeted gross margins is the average gross margins
achieved in the year immediately before the budget year, increased or
expected efficiency improvements, and expected market development.

Discount rates — The discount rates used are before tax and reflect
specific risks relating to the relevant units.

The values assigned to the key assumptions on budgeted gross margins
and discount rates are consistent with external information sources.

e IR R AR R

31 March 2017 ZE—+F=A=+—H

14. HE @)

BEKAEMELEERENR (8

YERAHEK (H)
RBE-_T—+HE=A=+—HItEE BESL
FEﬁﬁﬁﬁZ%gF“%ﬁﬁaﬂﬁﬂﬂo
FR EFEBATHEREL SRS HEBEE
ﬁﬁz%%ﬂ@EEmA%ﬁ%%E(fzfﬁ
FE) o

FHREREAMNRER
ReELBN 2 RO RO REBEEABESE
FARRERBRAEZ A AFHMBRESER
SHzRZRERAETE YA AE-

HemERRMABZHER20.0%  FHIAHE

NEHRERZ FREARAFERTRSREL

BERST HNERERENRSELEEM 218

ERANFHRRSER TR SUEE RS RER
RZBEERT-

REBEE-_Z—XR"F=-A=1+—RHLLFE BFR
mﬁﬁmﬁ%%ﬁﬁﬁkt%ﬁ%%ﬂ‘%é%ﬁﬁf%ﬁ@
T4 B R (B 584,700,000 7T - BEURE 2 =
S YSFIN/N T%%ﬁﬁ%%ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁit%ﬁ;ﬂ%ﬁ%
2w R TR A o

IE@%

BB T —+tF=A=+—HERZZT—RF=
ﬁ T-R¥ BB HEBRFRERREAME
XSG EREEREERRZ  TXHLEEE
BUELRERSRETRAAETREINR 2 &8
FERRKR:

fég%ﬁ?*iﬁﬁiﬁ ENEESEBEMBZ
ERERBEFEN —FANBZFHERN
ER xﬁ(%ﬁ&i’@z%jﬁ,ﬁﬂu&?E,Hﬁﬁi%%‘él?&°

HHF - PRI R AT A RIRA B AL 2 1
FRER

BEEMELRBRETIZHRRES R 2 BEESIN
BB MR B
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31 March 2017 ZE—+F=A=+—H

15. OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS 15. HthERLEE
Club Customer Mobile
memberships Trademarks  relationships application Total
g8 51 EFEFR FHREAEA it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR THER T#Rr TR
31 March 2017 —E-tE=f=1+-H
At 31 March 2016 and 1 April 2016: RZE-"E=ZA=+—-Ak
“Z-REMA-A:
Cost A 4,799 87 24,703 9,400 38,989
Accumulated amortisation and 2 EHELRE
impairment (1,127) (73) (24,191) (9,400) (34,791)
Net carrying amount REFE 3,672 14 512 - 4,198

Cost at 1 April 2016, net of accumulated R=Z—~EFMA—H"

amortisation and impairment TR IR RSB RRE 3,672 14 512 - 4,198
Additions NE 50 - - - 50
Disposal HE (280) = = = (280)
Amortisation provided during the year AR {2 % 5 (i 536)

(note 6) (30) (14) (511) - (555)
Exchange realignment L (1) = (1) = Y]
At 31 March 2017 RZZ—+$=A=+-H 3411 - - - 3,411
At 31 March 2017: RZZ—tF=A=1—-H:

Cost KA 3,837 87 24,931 9,400 38,255

Accumulated amortisation and ZEEBRAE

impairment (426) (87) (24,931) (9,400) (34,844)

Net carrying amount REFE 341 - - - 3411
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31 March 2017 ZE—+F=A=+—H

15. OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued) 15. HEFEE @)
Club Customer Mobile
memberships Trademarks relationships application Total
2F [ RPHE  FHERER A&t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FAx FET FET Fhx
31 March 2016 “E-RNE=fA=1-H
At 1 April 2015; RZE-REMA—-R:
Cost A 4788 87 24,940 9,400 39,215
Accumulated amortisation and B EERAE
impairment (1,079) (56) (22,315) (2,820) (26,270)
Net carrying amount REFE 3,709 31 2,625 6,580 12,945

Cost at 1 April 2015, net of accumulated R=ZF—REWA—H"

amortisation and impairment TR MR RS EE A 3,709 31 2,625 6,580 12,945
Amortisation provided during the year 4 P& {8 2 # 34 (Fif7%6)

(note 6) (34) (17) (2,046) (1,880) (3,977)
Impairment during the year (note 6) FRRME (Mi6) - = = (4,700) (4,700)
Exchange realignment R 3) = (67) = (70)
At 31 March 2016 RZZB-RE=A=1+-H 3,672 14 512 - 4,198
At 31 March 2016: R-E-RE=ZA=t—-R:

Cost A 4,799 87 24,703 9,400 38,989

Accumulated amortisation and RHBHERAE

impairment (1,127) (73) (24,191) (9,400) (34,791)

Net carrying amount REFR 3,672 14 512 = 4,198
The Group recognised an impairment of mobile application of REBEEZT—R"F=A=1+—HILFE HLE
HK$4,700,000 for the mobile application development business for RATE ASEFFHERREAREEBHRER
the year ended 31 March 2016 because of the decline in operating FHrERRER 2R E4,700,0008 7T « BERH 2
performance. Details of the impairment testing are detailed in note 14 HEHN A B RERM T4 -

to the consolidated financial statements.
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16.

134

INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES 16. REELEZRE
2017 2016
—EB—+F —E—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THExT FHT
Share of net assets HIHEEFRE 455,770 357,287
Financial guarantees provided (note 27) RIEF B ER (H5E27) 14,551 12,866
470,321 370,153
Particulars of the material joint venture are as follows: BEREELEFBEOT:
Percentage of
Aot
Place of
Issued incorporation  Ownership Voting Profit  Principal
Name shares capital and business interest power sharing  activities
M AL R
£ BRITRA EXNE BEEER REE SRR EEER
AVP Electronics Limited* 120,000,000 Hong Kong 75 50 75  Trading of electronic
ordinary shares components
RIEER AR * 120,000,000 f& EE BEE Tt
TR
* Not audited by Ernst & Young, Hong Kong or another member firm of the Ernst & I 3 B B A Tk B 7 AD 35 75 BT ok H At 2 ok B BR AR

& Young global network

The above joint venture has a financial year end of 31 December.
The consolidated financial statements are adjusted for the material
transactions between 1 January and 31 March.

AVP Electronics Limited and its subsidiaries (collectively, “AVPEL
Group”), which are considered a material group of joint ventures of the
Group, are accounted for using the equity method.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES (continued)

The following table illustrates the summarised financial information
of AVPEL Group adjusted for any differences in accounting policies
and reconciled to the carrying amount in the consolidated financial

16.

e IR IR AR R

31 March 2017 ZE—+F=A=+—H

REEBLEZRE @)
TRARABEE Y MEEHEE (BHAAS

.ﬁﬂzﬁ%?ifﬂlj SR ) AR AR A B R A AR
SRR

statements:
2017 2016
—E—+F ZE—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FHET
Cash and cash equivalents ReRkERBELIER 517,346 354,906
Other current assets Hit w8 & E 3,104,151 2,607,949
Current assets mEEE 3,621,497 2,962,855
Non-current assets EREEE 26,346 27,076
Financial liabilities, excluding cRBaE
trade and other payables (T BEEENESERR
H A e 5RIE ) (2,172,252) (2,378,972)
Other current liabilities HEiREaE (867,756) (129,525)
Current liabilities RBEE (3.040,008) (2,508,497)
Non-current liabilities FEnEatE (142) (142)
Non-controlling interests FEERRE R - (4,910)
Net assets attributable to owners of RIEARAREAE ABLEEFE
AVP Electronics Limited 607,693 476,382
Reconciliation to the Group's interests EAEEREEDREL
in the joint ventures: e AR
Proportion of the Group's ownership $%%§ﬁﬁ§ttf§ﬂ 75% 75%
Group's share of net assets attributable AEESERIEERAREAR A
to owners of AVP Electronics Limited JE1E & EFE 455,770 357,287
Financial guarantees provided TR B TS PR 14,551 12,866
Carrying amount of the investments KRERESRE 470,321 370,153
Revenue W g 20,039,162 15,357,236
Interest income FEWA 68 68
Depreciation neE (1,539) (1,542)
Interest expenses FEEA (68,434) (44,930)
Tax A (56,567) (41,826)
Profit for the year F N A 286,563 212,868
Other comprehensive income for the year & R E fb 2 E U A 329 2
Total comprehensive income for the year ~ F A2 E U A 258 286,892 212,870
Dividends received B B 155,000 =
AV Concept Holdings Limited
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INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES

17. REBEERT2RE

2017 2016

—E—tF T—RF

HK$'000 HK$ 000

FHET FET

Share of net assets DMhEEFE 1,546 22,439
Due from associates JE Y B 42 N m) FRIE 760 12,157
2,306 34,596

Less: Current portion B mENE (760) (12,157)
Non-current portion EmENE S 1,546 22,439

The balances due from associates are unsecured, interest-free and have
no fixed terms of repayment. The carrying amounts of the balances due
from associates approximate to their fair values.

During the year 31 March 2017, an impairment loss of HK$6,373,000
(2016: Nil) was recognised for amount due from an associate because
the associate has been making losses and the amount was not expected
to be recovered.

All associates have a financial year end of 31 March, which is
coterminous with that of the Group, except for Me2on Co., Ltd.
("Me2on") which is an associate of the Group incorporated in Korea
and has a financial year end of 31 December. The Group's consolidated
financial statements are adjusted for the material transactions of Me2on
between 1 January and 31 March.

During the year ended 31 March 2017, the Group's equity interest in
an associate, Me2on, has been diluted and the Group no longer had
significant influence over it. As such, the Group's investment in Me2on
was reclassified from investments in associates to available-for-sale
investments, and the Group ceased to account for Me2on using the
equity method. The reclassification was accounted for as disposal of the
entire interest in Me2on and re-acquisition of the retained interest at its
fair value. As a result, a net gain on deemed disposal of an associate of
HK$90,735,000 (2016: Nil) was recognised in the profit or loss for the
current year.

The Group has discontinued the recognition of its share of losses of
certain associates, namely Xocial Limited and Signeo Venture Limited
because the share of losses of associates exceeded the Group's interests
in these associates and the Group has no obligation to take up further
losses. The amounts of the Group's unrecognised share of losses of
these associates for the current year and cumulatively were nil (2016:
HK$1,271,000) and HK$3,109,000 (2016: HK$3,109,000), respectively.
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Bt % A FMe2on Co., Ltd. ([Me2on |) 7 Bf B 4F
EEERAAT-_A=T—R -AKB2HGE0K%
wEREFHEMe2on A —A—BE=A=+—HEM
ZERZHIELAE-

REBE-Z—+F=A=+—HLFE H5H
REE RN RIMe2onZ RANE =W EE - REET
BEHETEESRAYEN A A& B R Me2on
ZHREARBENRZREAEN B AHEE
®E BAREBTHEREREEMe2on AR
&Iﬁé%ﬁ"*ﬁuﬁjﬁMeZon DR AESETIE A
FEEBRBREBEZZFRNAR FL - RI1E
& — FE B & 1 B 2 W s F R 49 /90,735,000/%
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17. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued)

The following table illustrates the aggregate financial information of the

18.

e PR R

31 March 2017 ZE—+F=A=+—H

17. REBEE QT 2RE (®)
TRINRAEEFEBIWTAEAN ZHE N T 2P

Group's associates that are not individually material: BR4AE -
2017 2016
—E—+tfF ZE—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAET
Share of the associates’ profit 1B & A B F W A
for the year 3,118 8,771
Share of the associates’ total DM E A E 2 EEA
comprehensive income PR 3,275 8,917
Aggregate carrying amount of AEERBERRZ
the Group's investments HRERE AR
in the associates 1,546 22,439
AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS 18. AIHHERE
2017 2016
—E—tF ZE—RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FER FHET
Unlisted equity investments, EETRAIRE KR
at cost (note a) (HMt5Ea) 3,893 3,893
Listed equity investment, ETRAEKRE RN T EE
at fair value (note b) (Mt5ED) 261,303 -
Key management insurance contracts, FEERASRREL
at fair value (note ¢) BAFEE (MisEc) 21,627 20,891
Convertible promissory note, AR R R - iR
at cost (note d) (Mt5Ed) 15,540 15,540
Impairment (notes a and d) BB (Misrakd) (19,433) (19,433)
282,930 20,891
Analysed for reporting purpose as: PRS-
Current assets MENEE 261,303 =
Non-current assets ERMBEE 21,627 20,891
282,930 20,891

The above investments consist of investments in unlisted equity
investments, listed equity investment, key management insurance
contracts and convertible promissory note, which were designated
as available-for-sale investments and have no fixed maturity date or

coupon rate.

PR EREIEEEAIHREEREZIFLET
BAKRE EWRARE TEEEAESRRE
HRARBAR R BEEEINHAXNEE R
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31 March 2017 =ZE—+F=HA=+—H

18. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS (continued)

During the year, the gross profit in respect of the Group’s available-for-
sale investments recognised in other comprehensive income amounted
to HK$148,030,000 (2016: gross loss of HK$30,817,000).

138

Notes:

(a)

As at 31 March 2017, certain unlisted equity investments with a carrying
amount of HK$3,893,000 (2016: HK$3,893,000) were stated at cost less
impairment because the range of reasonable fair value estimates is so significant
that the directors are of the opinion that their fair values cannot be measured
reliably. The Group does not intend to dispose of them in the near future.

At the end of the reporting period, a full provision for impairment
of HK$3,893,000 (2016: HK$3,893,000) was made for available-for-
sale investments with an original carrying value (before impairment) of
HK$3,893,000 (2016: HK$3,893,000) because they have been making loss for
years and had deficiency in assets at the end of the reporting period.

As disclosed in note 17 to the consolidated financial statements, the investment
in Me2on is reclassified from investments in associates to available-for-sale
investments measured at fair value. During the year, the gross gain in respect of
the Group's equity investment at fair value recognised in other comprehensive
income amounted to HK$147,294,000. The market value of the Group's
listed equity investment at the date of approval of the consolidated financial
statement was approximately HK$290,956,000.

As at 31 March 2017, the insurance contracts represented life insurance
plans with investment elements relating to two key management personnels
of the Group. The total sum insured is US$15,800,000 (approximately
HK$122,800,000) (2016: US$15,800,000 (approximately HK$122,800,000))
with an annual minimum guaranteed return of 2% (2016: 2%).

As at 31 March 2017, if the Group withdrew from the insurance contracts,
the accounts value, net of surrender charges of US$386,848 (approximately
HK$3,006,000) (2016: US$396,973 (approximately HK$3,084,000)), would
be refunded to the Group. The amount of the surrender charges decreases
over time and is no longer required from the 19th year of contract conclusion
onwards.

At 31 March 2016, a key management insurance contract of HK$6,745,000
classified as an available-for-sale investment was pledged as security for certain
of the Group’s interest-bearing bank borrowings (note 25(iii)). The bank
borrowings was repaid during the year ended 31 March 2017 and no available-
for-sale investment was pledged at 31 March 2017.

The Group held a convertible promissory note with a principal amount of
US$2,000,000 (equivalent to HK$15,540,000) (the “PN") which was issued by a
private company.

The PN is unlisted, interest-bearing at 8% per annum and issued for a
maturity term of 6 months from 26 November 2014 to 25 May 2015 which
is indefinitely extendible for another 6 months at the issuer’s discretion. The
Group has the right to convert the PN into 49% of equity interest of the private
company.

The PN was designated as an available-for-sale investment which was stated
at cost less impairment because the range of reasonable fair value estimates is
so significant that the directors are of the opinion that its fair value cannot be
measured reliably. The Group does not intend to dispose of it in the near future.

At the end of the reporting period, a full provision for impairment of
HK$15,540,000 (2016: HK$15,540,000) was made for the PN as in the opinion
of the directors, the PN is not expected to be recovered.
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19. 78

2017 2016

— 2+ —E—RF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FTHET FHEIT

Finished goods BUAK G 78,266 69,259

TRADE RECEIVABLES

PR B 5 BR X

2017 2016

—E—tF —T-RF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FET

Trade receivables FEWE Z R 55,707 70,466
Impairment BB (6,348) (6,472)
49,359 63,994

The Group’s trading terms with customers vary with the type of
products supplied. Invoices are normally payable within 30 days of
issuance, except for well-established customers, where the terms are
extended to over 60 days. For customer-specific and highly specialised
items, deposits in advance or letters of credit may be required prior
to the acceptance and delivery of the products. Each customer has a
maximum credit limit. The Group seeks to maintain strict control over
its outstanding receivables and has a credit control policy to minimise
credit risk. A credit committee consisting of senior management and the
directors of the Company has been established to review and approve
large customer credits. In view of the aforementioned and the fact that
the Group's trade receivables relate to a large number of diversified
customers, there is no significant concentration of credit risk. The
Group does not hold any collateral or other credit enhancements over
these balances. Trade receivables are non-interest-bearing. The carrying
amounts of the trade receivables approximate to their fair values.

AEBEEFIIVZRXS 1*?&?%?@@2%&19*5
RlImAR AR BRFBEAENBEERLE30AA
I HERYRAEBBERZERS ZRERIR
EEIBE0R - BB HAIEERBAEMZ
BH EEMNTERINERZAAIREEERNIEZ
CHFAIERE - SERFLHUREEELR ZJS
SEHAEH RO ERIBE BRI
%‘Jmﬁ/ﬁé%ﬂﬂzﬁ NREREEERR EEZJS
RAZBHBRERERESHEHK 2 EEZEEES
BN ABRBI R MR R P RBEEE RN LA
M- ARAEEZEREZEFAAERZAD
HMzEFPER ALTESERAEFEERR K
SEVARZSESPFATAERRIEMEE
RAY - -EBREFES T”r?’FIJg EKE SRR
ZEEASERE N EARS
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20. TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued)

An aged analysis of the trade receivables as at the end of the reporting

20.

EWE SRR (@)

RIBMNREEA  ReEHRERE 2BEE S

period, based on the payment due date, is as follows: BRRZ BRI AMTIAT
2017 2016
—E—tF A
HK$'000 HK$'000
THExT FHEIT
Current BN HR 22,678 52,288
1 to 30 days 1£230H 20,148 3,896
31 to 60 days 31260H 2,149 432
Over 60 days HBiE60H 10,732 13,850
55,707 70,466
The movements in provision for impairment of trade receivables are as BWE SRR REREZS T :
follows:
2017 2016
—E—+tHF —E—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THExT FHET
At beginning of year F1) 6,472 5,316
Impairment losses recognised (note 6) BRERZREERE (Hite) 1,914 3,093
Amounts written off as uncollectible YE AN B] YR 3] 30 I8 i 88 (2,074) (1,895)
Exchange realignment VE % A% 36 (42)
At end of year FR 6,348 6,472
The above provision is for individually impaired trade receivables, o Ty B R E (KR EBEEN) R

with a carrying amount before provision of HK$6,348,000 (2016:
HK$6,472,000), which related to customers that were in financial

difficulties and the receivables are not expected to be recovered.
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20. TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued) 20. EL&EEEE/TA
The aged analysis of the trade receivables that are not individually nor WIR AW EMEB K HERRE L EBKE SERZER
collectively considered to be impaired is as follows: BT :
2017 2016
—E—+tF —E—RE
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Neither past due nor impaired 280 BR R 3 A% R (B 22,678 52,288
Less than 1 month past due BE L RE A 20,148 3,896
1 to 3 months past due w1 =318 A 2,149 278
Over 3 months past due 0 HR R iA31E A 4,384 7,532
49,359 63,994
Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relate to a large AN B R I ORE 2 R WK IE B R BUR % B 5 BY
number of diversified customers for whom there was no recent history ZEPEB REOBAWEERGDE-
of default.
Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate to a number of EaBETERE EEFERETEARE
independent customers that have a good track record with the Group. BEBERUERCHZBYRFER - IRIBEUAEL
Based on past experience, the directors of the Company are of the B ARAEZRADARZSHERIELRER
opinion that no provision for impairment is necessary in respect of these H REASEEERYESEREY BZSEHR
balances as there has not been a significant change in credit quality and UEEY=EIE¥ ¢ {E
the balances are still considered fully recoverable.
PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER 21. EARIE RERHEMBERRK

21.

RECEIVABLES

2017 2016
—E—tF —E—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FET
Prepayments SEENE 1,520 1,583
Deposits and other receivables ?Eé‘c\&ﬁﬂﬂfg%lm 20,216 9,047
21,736 10,630

Portion classified as non-current: DEAIERB 2D
Other deposits Hibiz & (42) (466)
Current portion mEnE o 21,694 10,164

None of the above assets is either past due or impaired. The financial
assets included in the above balances relate to receivables for which
there was no recent history of default. The carrying amounts of deposits
and other receivables approximate to their fair values.

P EESEAHRSRE Di&REEZ2R
BESAHYBERIHEZRKFIBEH - RE
REMERFIAZ ROSHEEL N TEERS -
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22. EQUITY INVESTMENTS AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

142

22. FBBESEAFEEIERZEA
®’E

2017 2016

—E—+tF —E-REF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHExT FHET

Investment in an associate (Note a) R—E#BE AR 2%E (Kita) - 55,559

Investment in a joint venture (Note b) R—EeErEZERE (MsEb) 30,000 =

Investment in convertible bonds (Note ¢) R A[#EREA 2 & E (Miztc) 56,631 =

Listed equity investments, at market value _EHAIEE - ZTH{E 15,424 12,427
Equity linked debt securities, RERAERBS  EHTHE

at market value - 5,008

102,055 72,994

The above equity investments with a carrying amount of HK$4,495,000
(2016: HK$17,435,000) at 31 March 2017 were classified as held for
trading.

Notes:

(a)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group held a 2.71% (2016: 14.24%)
equity interest in IE Limited (“IEL"). The investment in IEL was previously
classified as an investment in an associate as Mr. So Chi On, a director of the
Company, was also the director, the chairman and co-representative of IEL.
Due to significant decrease in equity interest in IEL from 14.24% to 2.71%,
the Group lost significant influence over the financial and operating policies
of IEL in the current year. Therefore, the listed equity investment in IEL of
HK$10,929,000 was reclassified as and included in listed equity investment at
fair value as at 31 March 2017.

On 21 December 2016, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company entered
into a sales and purchase agreement with an independent third party to
acquire 50% equity interest in the shares of J-Tex Holdings Limited (“J-Tex") at
a consideration of HK$30,000,000. The acquisition was completed in February
2017. The investment in J-Tex was classified as an investment in a joint venture
as the Group exercises joint control over the financial and operating policies of
J-Tex.

As this joint venture is held as part of venture capital organisation’s investment
portfolio, it is carried in the consolidated statement of financial position at
fair value. This treatment is permitted by HKAS 28 (2011) “Investments in
Associates and Joint Ventures” which requires investments held by venture
capital organisations to be excluded from its scope where those investments
are designated, upon initial recognition, as at fair value through profit or loss
and accounted for in accordance with HKAS 39, with changes in fair value
recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss in the period of
change.

On 8 June 2016 and 3 November 2016, the Group has subscribed the
convertible bonds issued by IEL with aggregate principals of approximately
HK$19,425,000 and HK$38,850,000, respectively. The bonds are interest-
bearing at a fixed rate of 4% per annum and repayable within two years since
their respective issuance dates, which can be convertible into common shares
of IEL, at exercise prices of KRW500 and KRW819 per share, respectively, at any
time after one year from their respective issuance dates.
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23. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND TIME 23. BeREFABRESEBREHRER

DEPOSITS
2017 2016
— 2+ —E—RF
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
P 5E FERT FAET
Cash and bank balances BRe RIRITET 111,174 52,691
Non-pledged time deposits R R BRTE AR 3,193 =
Deposits with other financial REA & B E 2 75K
institutions 426 17,141
Less: Pledged time deposits B BRI B
Pledged for interest-bearing BT BIRITER
bank borrowings {EH K 25(ii) = (269)
114,793 69,563
Less: Non-pledged time deposits B RESRREIEH
with original maturity of HiE+_EAz
more than twelve months R E BER
when acquired (3,193) -
Cash and cash equivalents RekZERRFEER 111,600 69,563

At the end of the reporting period, the cash and bank balances of the
Group denominated in Renminbi (“RMB") amounted to approximately
HK$4,183,000 (2016: HK$6,207,000). The RMB is not freely convertible
into other currencies, however, under Mainland China’s Foreign
Exchange Control Regulations and Administration of Settlement, Sale
and Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations, the Group is permitted
to exchange RMB for other currencies through banks authorised to
conduct foreign exchange business.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily bank
deposit rates. Short term time deposits are made for varying periods of
between one day and three months depending on the immediate cash
requirements of the Group, and earn interest at the respective short
term time deposit rates. The balances are deposited with creditworthy
banks and other financial institutions with no recent history of default.

RRERERE AEBUAREHEZERS
NIRRT 174 54,183,000/ 7T (— T — /N &
6,207,000 7T) - AR ERALBAHME
B R ARAR AP B b 2 SN 2 {15 K A EE
EERNEEERT AEEM S RERERETT
INEXEBZRITBARER B AEMER -

FRARROTZREBRBERTZIEAFTRME 1%
FBHERDAME - EREHEFZINTF—HE=
BATE NRIAEEZANFRESTERMmE
WiRE B 2 58 E R FRFEERRA L &7 T
TFHRNEBRI < RITROHY B R RE 2 H
fto & BAHEAE o
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24.

144

TRADE PAYABLES, DEPOSITS RECEIVED AND
ACCRUED EXPENSES

24. BNEZRNR EREERETER

2017 2016

—E—+tF ZE—RF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FAET

Trade payables FEfT B 5 BRI 25,920 37,644
Deposits received [=Ee & 16,338 10,897
Accrued expenses EstE A 13,258 14,111
55,516 62,652

An aged analysis of the trade payables as at the end of the reporting
period, based on the payment due date, is as follows:

BRENFRIHE NEEPRERTZIENES

MR BRI D AT A0 T -

2017 2016
—E—tF —E—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FHET

Trade payables: JERTE 5 RN
Current BN ER 22,581 29,110
1 to 30 days 1£230H 707 6,381
31 to 60 days 31260H 255 -
Over 60 days B0 H 2,377 2,153
25,920 37,644
The trade payables are non-interest-bearing and are normally settled EBREBEZERDTEE  —H&MN30E908 A&
between 30 and 90 days. The carrying amounts of the trade payables H-ENESRRACEESBEAANFEMEME

approximate to their fair values.
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31 March 2017 —ZF—tF=HA=+—H
25. INTEREST-BEARING BANK BORROWINGS . fERITHER
2017 2016
ZE-tf —E-XE
Effective Effective
annual annual
interest interest
rate Maturity HK$'000 rate Maturity HK$'000
BERER=% HEA TEL ERERIZ il THL
Current ik |
Import and trust receipt loans - unsecured O REFREET-EKE  220% - 2.87% 2017 63,273 1.80% - 2.40% 2016 31475
2.20%%2.87% B-tE 180%%2240%  —T—1F
Bank loans - secured ROTER-BHA 2.35% - 2.82% 2017 52,800 1.68% - 4.66% 2016 96,005
2.35%%2.82% ZE-tfF 1.68%24.66% —E-RE
116,073 127,480
Non-current ¥R
Bank loans - secured BTER-EEM N/A N/A - 4.98% 2017-2027 8,826
- _tﬁ
116,073 136,306
2017 2016
—E2E—+tHF —E-RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Analysed into: DA
Bank loans repayable: RTFIERAER 2 BITER:
Within one year or on demand —FRNHIREK 116,073 127,480
In the second year FZFR - 637
In the third to fifth years, inclusive FE-FEFERF
(BEEMFREERN) - 2,145
Over five years R8T F = 6,044
Total A&t 116,073 136,306
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25.

26.

146

INTEREST-BEARING BANK BORROWINGS

(continued)

Except for certain bank loans which bore interest at rates ranging from
2.87% to 4.66% per annum as at 31 March 2016, all the Group's bank
borrowings bore interest at floating rates at the end of the reporting
period. The carrying amounts of the Group's interest-bearing bank
borrowings approximate to their fair values.

At the end of the reporting period, certain of the Group’s bank loans
are secured by:

(i) mortgages over the Group’s investment properties, which had
an aggregate carrying value at the end of the reporting period of
HK$67,688,000 (2016: HK$86,250,000) (note 13);

(i)  pledge of certain of the Group’s time deposits amounting to nil
(2016: HK$269,000) (note 23); and

(i)  pledge of an available-for-sales investment amounting to nil
(2016: HK$6,745,000) (note 18(c)).

FINANCE LEASE PAYABLES

The Group leases certain of its motor vehicles for the Group’s marketing
and distribution business. These leases are classified as finance leases
and have remaining lease terms ranging from one to five years.
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26. FINANCE LEASE PAYABLES (continued)

At 31 March 2017, the total future minimum lease payments under
finance leases and their present values are as follows:

26. ENRERERE @)

R-ZT—tF=ZA=+—H0 REBEEEZR

R EEEFRBEEBNMERENT

Present Present
value of value of
minimum minimum
Minimum lease ~ Minimum lease lease lease
payments payments payments payments
2017 2016 2017 2016
BEHE REHEE
BEHERE SEBEERE REZRE = IEZIEE
—E—+t& —T-RF —E—+#& —T-RF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET TET TER FTAT
Amounts payable: RT3 B FE A+ 2 3R -
Within one year —FR 805 325 694 287
In the second year EF-FA 671 278 607 250
In the third to fifth years, inclusive FE=ZERF
(ERMEBREEAN) 1,073 374 1,033 360
Total minimum finance lease payments EBEREFERE 2,549 977 2,334 897
Future finance charges ARBEER (215) (80)
Total net finance lease payables ERNRERERETFREE 2,334 897
Portion classified as current liabilities SBEARBBELHES (694) (287)
Non-current portion EDEIE B 1,640 610
The carrying amounts of the Group's finance lease payables AEEENREHAERBE  RESHEEELNTE
approximate to their fair values. EAEE -
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27.

28.

148

FINANCIAL GUARANTEE OBLIGATION

During the year, the Group has provided financial guarantees to joint
ventures in relation to the bank lending facilities granted to those joint
ventures, and the Group will make payments to reimburse the lenders
upon failure of the guaranteed entity to make payments when due.

As at 31 March 2017, the carrying amount of financial guarantee
obligation of the Group was HK$14,551,000 (2016: HK$12,866,000),
based on the valuation from an independent professionally qualified
valuer engaged by the Group, less cumulative amortisation. The method
used in determining the fair value of these guarantees was by reference
to the recovery rate and key financial ratio of the guaranteed entity.

DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES

The movements in deferred tax liabilities during the year are as follows:

27. MIREREE
FR AEERGECEERZBETEREER
ZECECERBMBER WXERZERBLE
FIHRRREER  AEEBRABEFENERK-
R-ZZTE—+tF=A=+—H0 BELAEEZE>
BUBXSERGEMZ BRI EHETE
AEEMBERET ZEEDS%EA14,551,000%8
Jo(ZZT— 754 112,866,000 7T) - R E F I
SERATFEBEZFENZEZER2EE M
R K BRI -

28. FEIERHIEEE

FRBEERBREBEZEBHNT

Depreciation

allowance
in excess of Revaluation
depreciation of properties Total
BBFEZ
WERE MEE &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET FHET
At 1 April 2015 R-ZE—RFMNA—H 1,963 13,582 15,545
Deferred tax charged/(credited) to FRMBE (GTA)
the consolidated statement of RABRRCELENIE
profit or loss during the year (note 9) (PH3E9) (1,815) 341 (1,474)
Exchange realignment M 5 R (25) = (25)
At 31 March 2016 and 1 April 2016 R-E—REZA=+—8BxK
—ET—-R"FMA—H 123 13,923 14,046
Deferred tax charged/(credited) to FRHKRE/ (5tA)
the consolidated statement of REBRRZELERE
profit or loss during the year (note 9) (PH3E9) (123) 170 47
Exchange realignment BE 5 R - 16 16
At 31 March 2017 R-E-tF=ZA=+—8H - 14,109 14,109
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31 March 2017 ZE—+F=A=+—H

DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES (continued) 28. EEHRIREE @)
The Group has estimated tax losses arising in Hong Kong of AEBRBBELE KT REESEEA
HK$332,976,000 (2016: HK$285,546,000) that are available 332,976,000 JT ( —F — /X 4F : 285,546,000/
indefinitely for offsetting against future taxable profits of the companies )R EREAEEESZEEER ARG ZR
in which losses arose. The Group also has unrecognised tax losses JKFE RBEF c NEER E bt 5 E £ 2 KRHE
arising elsewhere of HK$15,076,000 (2016: HK$32,607,000) that will RFIEE B 515,076,000 T (Z T — N F:
expire during 2017 to 2022 (2016: 2016 to 2021) for offsetting against 32,607,000 7T) R _T—+FEZ_FT -
future taxable profits. Deferred tax assets in respect of these losses (ZE—RE: ZT—RFE2-T=—F) 38
have not been recognised as they have arisen in subsidiaries that have A AR S R R FE AR B0 A1 3 M B 54 S5 S 1R HE
been loss-making for some time and, in the opinion of the directors, it RELERIREE HRSEERIDHEHGEEE—
is not considered probable that sufficient future taxable profits will be BEBcHMBAREA EFUTRAKAE
available against which the tax losses can be utilised. 78R 2 AR R FE AR T a A A B TR B 1R HE 8 o
At 31 March 2017, there was no significant unrecognised deferred tax RZBE—tF=A=+—B #ELEEZMBER
liability (2016: Nil) for taxes that would be payable on the unremitted A BEARIRAEREREL BT 2 ENTIE
earnings of the Group's subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures. mMe UEEARERECEHBEEE(ZT—X
FiE) -
There are no income tax consequences attaching to the payment of PIN/N I 1m) L AR BRI A AR BT E AR AT AR o
dividends by the Company to its shareholders.
SHARE CAPITAL 29. R
Shares iz 1
2017 2016
—E—+tF —E—REF
HK$’000 HK$'000
THET FHET
Authorised: ERE
2,000,000,000 (2016: 2,000,000,000) 2,000 000,0008%
ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each —E—REF:
z,ooo,ooo,oooﬂx)
EFRAEE0.10B T &Rk 200,000 200,000
Issued and fully paid: BEITRERE:
772,944,419 (2016: 772,944,419) 772,944 419H§
ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each —Z— N5 1 772,944,4190%)
BREE10E T ZE B 77,294 77,294
There is no movement in share capital during the years ended 31 March BARBEZZTE—R"ER_FT—tF=A
2016 and 2017. =T—BIEFETEES-
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Annual Report 2017 & % 149



Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

=
I%IT/\

= B R R AR MR

31 March 2017 ZE—+F=A=+—H

29.

30.

150

SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

Share options

Details of the share option schemes of the Company and one of its
subsidiaries and the share options issued under these schemes are
included in note 30 to the consolidated financial statements.

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

Share option scheme adopted by the Company

The Company operates a share option scheme (the “AV Scheme"”) for
the purpose of providing incentives and rewards to eligible participants
who contribute to the success of the Group's operations. Eligible
participants of the AV Scheme include the Company’s directors,
including the independent non-executive directors, other employees of
the Group, suppliers of goods or services to the Group, customers of
the Group, any person or entity that provides research, development
or technological support to the Group, any non-controlling interests in
the Company'’s subsidiaries, any advisor or consultant to any area of
business or business development to the Group and any other group or
class of participants who have contributed or may contribute by way of
joint venture, business alliance or other business arrangements to the
Group. The AV Scheme became effective on 3 August 2012 and, unless
otherwise cancelled or amended, will remain in force for 10 years from
that date.

AV Concept Holdings Limited
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

30. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)

Share option scheme adopted by the Company
(continued)

The maximum number of unexercised share options currently permitted
to be granted under the AV Scheme is an amount equivalent, upon
their exercise, to 30% of the ordinary shares of the Company in issue
at any time. The total number of ordinary shares which may be issued
upon exercise of all share options to be granted under the AV Scheme
(excluding any which have lapsed) and any other schemes of the
Company must not, in aggregate, exceed 10% of the ordinary shares of
the Company in issue as at the date of the adoption of the AV Scheme.
The maximum number of shares issuable under share options to each
eligible participant in the AV Scheme within any 12-month period
is limited to 1% of the shares of the Company in issue at any time.
Any further grant of share options in excess of this limit is subject to
shareholders’ approval in a general meeting.

Share options granted to a director, chief executive or substantial
shareholder of the Company, or to any of their associates, are subject
to approval in advance by the independent non-executive directors.
In addition, any share options granted to a substantial shareholder or
an independent non-executive director of the Company, or to any of
their associates, in excess of 0.1% of the shares of the Company in
issue at any time or with an aggregate value (based on the price of the
Company'’s shares at the date of grant) in excess of HK$5 million, within
any 12-month period, are subject to shareholders’ approval in advance
in a general meeting.

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted within 28 days
from the date of the offer, upon payment of a nominal consideration of
HK$1 in total by the grantee. The exercise period of the share options
granted is determinable by the directors, and commences after the
vesting period and ends on a date which is not later than the expiry
date of the AV Scheme.

The exercise price of share options is determinable by the directors, but
may not be less than the higher of (i) the Stock Exchange closing price
of the Company'’s shares on the date of offer of the share options; and
(i) the average Stock Exchange closing price of the Company’s shares
for the five trading days immediately preceding the date of the offer.

Share options do not confer rights on the holders to dividends or to
vote at shareholders’ meetings.

e PR MR

31 March 2017 ZE—+F=A=+—H

30. BARAESTE (@)

RAFRMzBRETE (8

B AFRBAVET SR 2 MR T R BB A 1T
ERARBZBRNHHME RETEEAERAFARN
ERERZE#HITERBRZ30% - RIFAVEHE K
AR BEAIE AR B TR B Z a8 BEE (1
BREEMDRRE) BTEREN TEITZEER
BY - S HNBBBARRNERMAVEE B HE
BITEBRZ210% ° AVEH Bl Z BREERBEE
PMEA+ {8 A B AT B AR RS Rl 1T 2
REROHBE  ERVARQRPMERERE 22 %#
TR Z1% - W — SR LBBZRBBR
R BIZERBRRAS ERE R E-

MARARIESE HaTHRABREERFENXEE
AT AR N ERE ARG B IENITE
FZERBE AN MRER+ZE R HER
MARBEERRIBIIFNTESH RS ZF
ABMBARE 2 EREATRE 2RO E HBA
RABREAREZ BBITRG 20.1% S4B E
(RBEARARORBZEBRZERTE)BR
5,000,000 7T - BIZERA IR A& _EEVS AR F5E
BOAE©

REBREZZ2HRELN B HE28A NE
W EREARAZBNE BT ZREAK
E-EREBREZTEMIHEZEE NE
BRI YR NERAVEEIE R B2 B ¥
R

BhugzoEERESEE EABLR: ()X
NEIR DR EBRER OB RER Mz W HE
HNARARONBEZZN A AER S HAE
R PR mERER RS E -

BRESYER THAARRBESNERAE £
TR ZHBER
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SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)
Share option scheme adopted by the Company

(continued)

The following share options were outstanding under the AV Scheme

during the year:

30. BERRERTE (m)
KD FERE 2 BB R AEST & ()

FR-RAVETEIR T RTTRE ZBRBENT

Number of share options
BREYA
The
Company's
Exercise Exercise share price
Name or At Granted lapsed ~ Exercised  Cancelled Expired At Date of period of price at grant
category of 1 April during during during during during 31 March grant of share ofshare date of share
participant 2016 the year the year the year the year the year 2017 share options options options options
RERE
RZB-AE RZ%-tf REAHZ
SHEERANER BA-B  REREE RERZE RERERE REASHE REAER ZAZt-8 BRERNLAS BREZOEE  BREZGRE ALIRGER
(both dates HKS HKS
inclusive) per share per share
(AEERRR) AT AT
(8R) (8R)
(Note a) (Note b) (Note )
(Mska) (ith) (titc)
Director
g2
S0 Yuk Kwan 600,000 - - - - - 600,000 13 March 2013 13 March 2013 to 0435 0415
12 March 2018
i) “E-#ZAt=H “F-=¥=At=R%
-%-/\§2F1-8
Employees
&8
In aggregate 7,110,000 - (7,110,000 - - - - 12 December 2014 12 December 2014 to 0519 0495
11 December 2016
A “F-WET-ATZA “T-WET-ATCRE
ZB-RETZAT-R
Total 7,710,000 - (7,110,000) = - - 600,000
At

AV Concept Holdings Limited
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30. ERRERTE (m)
KD RERA 2 BB R AEST & ()

30. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)

Share option scheme adopted by the Company
(continued)

Notes: PfaE -
The vesting period of the share options is from the date of grant until the a. BERE BB AL B BETE ARG 2 HifE
commencement of the exercise period.
The exercise price of the share options is subject to adjustment in the case of b. BB 2 ITEEARERIBITAR KA QA
rights or bonus issues, or other similar changes in the Company’s share capital. ARAS IR E b SRS B T AT ©
The price of the Company's shares disclosed as at the date of grant of the share c. B AARRGORBRER L AR ZERA
options is the Stock Exchange closing price on the date of grant of the options. REERRER A AT AP 2 T (B o
2017 2016
e et S
Weighted Weighted
average Number average Number
exercise price of options exercise price of options
MEFLTHE BREHE METHTRE EREHE
HK$ '000 HK$ ‘000
B3 4 BT 6
per share per share
(BR) (BR)
At beginning of year F4 0.512 7,710 0.512 7,110
Lapsed during the year RERKK (0.519) (7,110) - -
At end of year FR 0.435 600 0.512 7,710
AV Concept Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2017 & % 153



Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

72 N

e R MR

31 March 2017 ZE—+F=A=+—H

30.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)

Share option scheme adopted by the Company
(continued)

The share options lapsed during the year ended 31 March 2017 is
amounted to HK$1,145,000 and the whole amount is reversed from
equity-settled share-based payment reserve to retained profits.

The fair value of equity-settled share options granted was estimated
as at the date of grant using a binomial model, taking into account
the terms and conditions upon which the options were granted. The
following table lists the inputs to the model used on each date of grant:

30.

BB &l ()
KD RERE 2 BB R AEST & ()

REBEE-_ZT—t+F=A=+—RILFELRZE
A& HE /201,145,000 70 * 2 BB BB A H AR
D Rk R B AR B AR A

ERbzEESERBREQATFEEDRELAY
BOEARLGE WEFRREFER D BERE
ZARR B - TRBIIN B R A MR AR
RAzBAE:

12 December 2014 13 March 2013

—EFmF —E=F

+—A+=H =A+=H

Dividend yield (%) % B2 (%) 0.000 1.032

Expected volatility (%) 8 B R 18 (%) 63.513 56.939

Risk-free interest rate (%) 4 [ e 1) 2= (%) 0.499 0.229

Expected life of options (years) TAETERERBFH (F) 2.000 2.500
Weighted average share price MEFEHRE (BRET)

(HK$ per share) 0.495 0.435

The expected life of the options is based on the historical data over the
past three years and is not necessarily indicative of the exercise patterns
that may occur. The expected volatility reflects the assumption that the
historical volatility is indicative of future trends, which may also not
necessarily be the actual outcome.

No other feature of the options granted was incorporated into the
measurement of fair value.

At the end of the reporting period, the Company had 600,000 share
options outstanding under the AV Scheme. The exercise in full of the
outstanding share options would, under the present capital structure of
the Company, result in the issue of 600,000 additional ordinary shares
of the Company and additional share capital of HK$60,000 and share
premium of HK$201,000 (before issue expenses).

At the date of approval of these consolidated financial statements,
the Company had 600,000 share options outstanding under the AV
Scheme, which represented approximately 0.1% of the Company’s
shares in issue as at that date.

AV Concept Holdings Limited
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STEAVEERLEE BRI ZBREZ £tk

RBEHRE LRI AR B RAVATEIE T 2 kR
1TEEERESE B 2600,00017 ° FEANA AR 2 %
REBET  BEITEMARTEZBRERESHA
REHNEE17600,000/% A8 A B A% + W EE 460,000
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SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)

Share option scheme adopted by a subsidiary

On 5 August 2013, Koocell Limited (“Koocell”) adopted a share option
scheme (the ‘Koocell Scheme”). Under the Koocell Scheme, Koocell
may grant options to any of its full-time employees and directors and
any eligible persons as defined therein to subscribe for the respective

ordinary shares of Koocell.

e IR IR AR R

31 March 2017 ZE—+F=A=+—H

30. BERRERTE (m)
— B B D B B AN 2 B AR A T &

RZZ—=9F/\AAH Koocell Limited
(Koocell | ) FE#n 5 Ax 5T &I ([Koocellzt &) ©
1R KoocellzH &l - Koocell 8] [A] E E A & B 2 B &
EE LA K Koocellst EIFT R E 2 AR A& ERALE

i B AR - LASREE AR FE 2 KoocellE AR

The following share options were outstanding under the Koocell FR-

Scheme during the year:

M Koocell5t #18 T RTT 2 LT

Number of share options
BhREHE
Exercise Exercise
Name or At Granted Lapsed Exercised Cancelled Expired At Date of period of price
category of 1 April during during during during during 31 March grant of share of share
participant 216 the year the year the year the year the year 2017 share options options options
RZ§-RE RIB-t§
SEENAAER BA-H RERRE  RERXN  RERERRE  REREE  RERER  ZA=1-A BRERH RS BRECTES BREZARE
(both dates HK$
inclusive) per share
(BEERRX) AT
(8k)
(Note a)
(Kta)
Director of Koocell and
the Company
Koocel AT 2 EZ
So Chi Sun Sunny (note b) 220,000 - - - - - 220,000 5 August 2013 6 September 2015 to 80
5 August 2023
&g (Hib) ZT-ZE\AER ZZ-REAAREE
“B_=£)\ARA
Employees of Koocell 45,000 - - - - - 45,000 5 August 2013 6 September 2015 to 80
5 August 2023
KoocellZ B & “F-=%\AAA Z? RENANRE
“R=5N\ALA
Total 265,000 - - - - - 265,000
A
Notes: PsE -
a. The vesting period of the share options is from the date of grant until the a. BERE 2 R AL B BETE ARG 2 HifE -
commencement of the exercise period.
b. Mr. So Chi Sun Sunny was appointed as a director of the Company on 2 b.

November 2015.

MERLEEN-_T-AF+—A-REZEARE
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SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued) 30. BERRERTE (m)

Share option scheme adopted by a subsidiary
(continued)

— BB RAERMN 2 ERETE ()

2017 2016
—E—+F —ERE

Weighted Weighted
average Number average Number
exercise price of options exercise price of options
MEFHTEE BREHE METHIRE mIREE R
HK$ ‘000 HK$ ‘000
B T BT T

per share per share

(BR) (88)
At beginning and end of year RET RFRL 8.0 265 8.0 265

The fair value of the share options granted during prior years
was HK$12,453,000, of which no share option expense (2016:
HK$2,765,000) was recognised by the Group since all share options
granted had been vested during prior years.

AV Concept Holdings Limited
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30. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)

31.

Share option scheme adopted by a subsidiary
(continued)

The fair value of equity-settled share options granted was estimated as
at 1 October 2013, being the date when the Group obtained control
over Koocell, using a binomial model, taking into account the terms and
conditions upon which the options were granted. The following table
lists the inputs to the model used:

e IR IR AR R

31 March 2017 ZE—+F=A=+—H

30. BARAESTE (@)

— BB L RAERMN 2 ERETE ()

ERHcRELEBREATBEDIR-E—=
F+A—H (BAEERBKoocelliZHliEZH)
BROBRNERGE YO RZEERHERE
ZIERRGE S TRBINZER AR 28 A
&:

1 October 2013

—ET—=%+HA—H
Dividend yield (%) % B2 (%) 0.000
Expected volatility (%) T’Eﬁﬂfgﬂﬁ(%) 75.500
Risk-free interest rate (%) % 1 2K (%) 2.092
Expected life of options (years) TE qu,ﬁ\%Hx%ﬁxﬁ(E H () 10
Weighted average share price (HK$ per share) n#EFHRE (FRET) 49.379

The expected life of the options is not necessarily indicative of the
exercise patterns that may occur. The expected volatility was determined
by using the historical volatility of comparable companies’ share prices
corresponding to the terms of options from the valuation date, which
may also not necessarily be the actual outcome.

No other feature of the options granted was incorporated into the
measurement of fair value.

At the end of the reporting period, Koocell had 265,000 share options
outstanding under the Koocell Scheme. The exercise in full of the
outstanding share options would, under the present capital structure
of Koocell, result in the issue of 265,000 additional ordinary shares
of Koocell and additional share capital of HK$2,120,000 (before issue
expenses).

At the date of approval of these financial statements, Koocell had
265,000 share options outstanding under the Koocell Scheme, which
represented approximately 37.3% of Koocell’s shares in issue as at that
date.

RESERVES

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the movements therein for
the current and prior years are presented in the consolidated statement
of changes in equity on pages 66 to 67 of the consolidated financial
statements.

31.

TR REA R FHW AR RAIGEHIE 2 TR
X FRHKEAERAAT AL R AR R EERES
%fﬁElﬁﬁﬁ_E’]ﬁxﬁliHﬂﬁﬁﬁzﬁﬁFﬁZHﬂ Y
tREE  TAURRERER

EED
o

FEERIEE BN 2 BRE A

R & B S 4% R B - KoocellX Koocell5T &1 18 T
2 MARTT IR RS B /265,000 £ Koocell
B2 RAZRET  BEATEE M ARITE 2 AR 4
15 58 8 78 58 SN 3% 17265,0004% Koocel | & 3 f% - I
B 42,120,000 7T 2 BEINR A (IR FEITH X
AT o

RHE AR BE 3R R & B Koocel A Koocell5t 2118
T2 M ARTTE B AR 2 2 B A265,00015  HE R
Koocell A 3% H B /TR 1D 4937.3% °

(E3i]
ARBAEER - FEZBAELERENED
SHIRGA N BREF66H EH6TE 2 GAMER
Z‘i@%
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32.

33.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
CASH FLOWS

Major non-cash transactions

(@ In the current year, the increase in investments in joint
ventures amounting to HK$1,685,000 (2016: decrease of
HK$1,599,000) was attributable to the recognition of financial
guarantee obligation of HK$37,480,000 (2016: HK$27,200,000)
and the derecognition of financial guarantee obligation of
HK$35,795,000 (2016: HK$28,799,000).

(b) In the current year, the Group entered into a finance lease
arrangement in respect of an addition of an item of property,
plant and equipment with a total capital value at the inception of
the lease of HK$1,950,000 (2016: HK$704,000).

(c)  During the year, the Group’s shareholding of Me2on has been
diluted and the Group no longer had significant influence over it.
As a result, the investments in associates of HK$114,009,000 was
reclassified to available-for-sale investments.

(d) In the prior year, the consideration for disposal of an available-
for-sale investment amounting to HK$23,768,000 was settled by
an equity investment at fair value through profit a loss with a fair
value of HK$23,768,000.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

At the end of the reporting period, contingent liabilities not provided for
in the consolidated financial statements are follows:

32.

33.

RERTREBRME

FEIRERS

(@ RAFE REeE2tEEZERESEM
1,685,000/ L (=& — XF /P
1,599,000/ 7T ) * Jy W HE R B 7% &
RE 37,480,000 L (=T — R F:
27,200,000/ 70 ) R IERMBERET
35,795,000 7T ( == — /<4 : 28,799,000
PETC)FTEL e

(b)y RAFE AEBRFE ERAHERKE
&R 4818 51,950,000 7T (—T— /N
704,000/ 7)) 2 BRE REFEHEIEE T
VEERE L

(© RERN - AEBEMMe2onZ 15 2 H#EE -
AEBTBHETEEAZEN At R
B A R 2 & 114,009,000 L E EFH D
HAUHHERE-

d RE—FE HEM@HBIEREZAR
8 523,768,000 L LA FEEA
23,768,000 T2 B BERIE AT EET
iR 2 AR E R -

HAREE
RBE AR REARBRRAKERE
ZRRBEMT

2017 2016
—ZE—tF —FNF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FAT
Guarantees given to banks in connection #IEF AL E
with facilities granted to joint ventures EERETRITZER 1,934,058 2,287,356

As at 31 March 2017, the bank lending facilities granted to joint
ventures subject to cross-guarantees given to the banks by the Group
were utilised to the extent of approximately HK$1,934,058,000
(2016: HK$2,287,356,000). For the financial guarantees provided to
joint ventures in relation to the bank lending facilities granted, the
Group has recognised the financial guarantee obligation amounting to
HK$14,551,000 (2016: HK$12,866,000) as a liability as at 31 March
2017 which was disclosed in note 27 to the consolidated financial
statements.
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34. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS

(a)

(b)

e IR IR AR R

31 March 2017 ZE—+F=A=+—H

3. EXMERH

As lessor (@) EREBEA
The Group leases its investment properties (note 13) under AEEREBEEMELHEHAEETRE
operating lease arrangements, with leases negotiated for terms W (MsE13)  SEFcHEFBHNF—
ranging from one to ten years. The terms of the leases generally ETFE-HEZBERX—RATGERLBEEX
also require the tenants to pay security deposits and provide for NRFEE WA EHRBESHETTR
periodic rent adjustments according to the then prevailing market HESELAR-
conditions.
At 31 March 2017, the Group had total future minimum lease RZZB—+F=A=+—H FAEEREH
receivables under non-cancellable operating leases with its HEF L2 AR BUBE (HEER T5IFH
tenants falling due as follows: BB RR R E WA E RIEEFEAOT
2017 2016
—E—iF A
HK$'000 HK$'000
THExT FHEIT
Within one year —FR 1,986 5,232
In the second to fifth years, FE_EZFERF
inclusive (BEMFEREERN) - 6,712
1,986 11,944
As lessee (b) ERAEBA

The Group leases certain of its office premises, staff quarters
and warehouses under operating lease arrangements. Leases
for properties are negotiated for terms ranging from one to two
years.

At 31 March 2017, the Group had total future minimum lease
payments under non-cancellable operating leases falling due as
follows:

AEBIRBEERE ?Tiﬁﬂﬁﬁﬁi\%?##
EVME - BITERER BRWELE
ZHEFHEN T —ZEME-

RZE-—EF=A=+—H AEERE
NETBUHE X HEN TFIFERE 2 KoK
RIEEEFIRLREMT

2017 2016
—E—tF —E—REF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Within one year —FRN 936 1,108
In the second to fifth years, E_EERF
inclusive (EEMEBEEN) - 828
936 1,936
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35. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

160

(a)

SIS ERR MR

tF=A=1+—H

35. ERAEALIRS

In addition to the transactions detailed elsewhere in these (a) F?B’\$?u?(:.\ﬁ7ﬁ%¥&i€ﬁﬁﬂ% DRl 2 X5
consolidated financial statements, the Group had the following SN REBPFENEGBEEATET T
material transactions with related parties during the year: TEARRXS:
2017 2016
—ZE—+HF —E—RF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
BT FET FET
Associates: iRl
Sales of products HEEM (i) 1,710 866
Purchases of products BEESR (i) 696 638
Trademark licence income PEEREW A (ii) 389 389
Joint venture: BEE:
Sales of products HEEm 0) 4,472 7,065
Dividend income f% 2 A (iii) 116,550 =
Related companies: BREEQR:
Sales of products HEEm (i) - 8
Rental expense visheal i (iv) = 311
Notes: B &
(i) The sales to an associate, a joint venture and a related company and (i) m—HEBEE AR — e ¥ER—ME

purchases from an associate were made with reference to the cost of

products.

(ii) The trademark licence income from an associate was made with
reference to the actual costs incurred.

(iii) The dividend was declared by the joint venture of the Group for the
interim dividend for six months ended 30 June 2016 and year-end
dividend for years ended 31 December 2015 and 31 December 2016.

(iv) The rental expense was charged in accordance with the respective
tenancy agreement. The related company is controlled by Dr. So Yuk

Kwan, a director of the Company.
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35. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued) 35. BREALRS @)

(b) Other transaction with a related party (b) E—FEBREATETZHMBRS
During the year, the Group acquired a subsidiary, AA Lend FA - AEERART —BEFTWHENE
Limited, from a director of the Company at a cash consideration A RAA Lend Limited " S &R EA1HB T
of HK$1, based on the net asset value at approximately BREEFELN640008 T8 EEXE
HK$64,000 and results in a gain on bargain purchase of B UHE 2 W2 £964,00078 7T ©
approximately HK$64,000.

() Compensation of key management personnel of (0 TEETXTEEBEABZHE
the Group
The Group's key management personnel are the executive REBZTEERBABRERRABIZHITE
directors of the Company, and further details of their emoluments E HARSHe 2 —PHBHEREE
are included in note 8(b) to the consolidated financial statements. BF 7% ¥R < P 518(b) °

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 36. RITAZSE

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial instruments ERNeRMITARRE MRS RE ZEmSEO

as at the end of the reporting period are as follows: S8

2017 —E—tf

Financial assets ctRMEE

Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss
EBEZEATERIE
ZEREE
Designated Available-
as such for-sale
Loans and upon initial Held for financial
receivables recognition trading assets Total
BAR  RAOSRIR A E
EWFE BE HEEE SREE At
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
M FHT FHRT FaR FET FAT

Due from associates ¢ d=UNT b 17 760 - - - 760

Available-for-sale investments AHRLERE 18 - - - 282,930 282,930

Trade receivables EKE SRR 20 49,359 - - - 49,359

Financial assets included in prepayments, FABRTE R

deposits and other receivables HitERHE eRMEE 21 20,216 - - - 20,216

Equity investments at fair value through FRBREATEETIR

profit or loss RARE 2 - 97,560 4,495 = 102,055

Cash and bank balances RBe RRTER 23 11,174 - - - 111,174

Deposits with other financial institutions REM S BEE 2 TN 23 426 - - - 426

Non-pledged time deposits with original REGRREIEA

maturity more BBT=EAZ
than twelve months when acquired BEREHEN 23 3,193 - - - 3,193
185,128 97,560 4,495 282,930 570,113
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36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 36.

162

(continued)

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial instruments

EMIEz9HE @

BRI MITA

R HRARE 2 BRE SR

as at the end of the reporting period are as follows: (continued) T (8)
2017 —E—tHF
Financial liabilities cRERs
Financial
liabilities
at amortised
cost
2 18 88 B A 51 BR
ZE@mBaE
Notes HK$'000
BT FET
Trade payables ERE SRR 24 25,920
Interest-bearing bank borrowings B B ERTTIE 5K 25 116,073
Finance lease payables ENsERERIE 26 2,334
Financial guarantee obligation MEEREE 27 14,551
158,878
2016 —E—RF
Financial assets cREE
Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss
BBBREATEETR
SREE
Designated Available-
as such for-sale
Loans and upon initial Held for financial
receivables recognition trading assets Total
Xk RAYSRRE At E
FER IR BT RIFEE SREE At
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
(i3 FHET FHET THT THT THT
Due from associates JE B D R FOR 17 12,157 - - - 12,157
Available-for-sale investments AHPERE 18 = = = 20,891 20,891
Trade receivables JEW R 5 R0 20 63,994 - - - 63,994
Financial assets included in prepayments, FABRMRE RE K
deposits and other receivables MFELISZ AIEZ%ﬁﬂﬁfx 21 9,047 = = = 9,047
Equity investments at fair value through FRBARATEEISY
profit or loss ﬂxZM“é 2 - 60,567 12,427 = 72,994
Cash and bank balances BeERIBITET 23 52,691 = = = 52,691
Deposits with other financial institutions REMEBEEZER 23 17,141 = = = 17,141
155,030 60,567 12,427 20,891 248,915
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36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 36. ERITAZSE
(continued)
The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial instruments SHEAemTARREHEERF 2 EmSEN
as at the end of the reporting period are as follows: (continued) T (#&)
2016 —ET—RF
Financial liabilities cRAas
Financial
liabilities
at amortised
cost
RE A A IR
ZEBMAE
Notes HK$'000
Bt 5E FHET
Trade payables FERE SRR 24 37,644
Interest-bearing bank borrowings B B ERTT I 5K 25 136,306
Finance lease payables ENsERERIE 26 897
Financial guarantee obligation MBEREE 27 12,866
187,713
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37.

164

FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The carrying amounts and fair values of the Group’s financial
instruments, other than those with carrying amounts that reasonably
approximate to fair values, are as follows:

7. ERTANFEERAFEESR

£
AEELRMTA (RASREQXTEES RN
HEBIN ZERSBLAFEEWT:

Carrying amounts Fair values
RESHE ATEE
2016 2017 2016
—E—+tf i S NGS —E—+F i S NS
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AT TR FHBT
Financial assets CRMEE
Available-for-sale investments measured BATEEMEZ
at fair value AHHERE 282,930 20,891 282,930 20,891
Non-current deposits FrRens 466 42 466
Non-pledged time deposits EERTHER - 3,193 =
Pledged time deposits BEERTEHER 269 - 269
Equity investments at fair value EREREATERSE
through profit or loss RAEZE 102,055 72,99 102,055 72,994
388,220 94,620 388,220 94,620
Financial liabilities cREE
Interest-bearing bank borrowings Wt S RITIER 116,073 136,306 116,073 136,306
Finance lease payables EARERAETER 897 2,334 897
118,407 137,203 118,407 137,203

Management has assessed that the fair values of cash and cash
equivalents, amounts due from associates, trade receivables, financial
assets included in prepayments, deposits and other receivables (other
than non-current deposits and non-pledged time deposits), trade
payables and financial guarantee obligation approximate to their
carrying amounts largely due to the short term maturities of these
instruments.

The Group's finance department headed by the finance manager is
responsible for determining the policies and procedures for the fair
value measurement of financial instruments. The finance manager
reports directly to the chief financial officer and the audit committee. At
each reporting date, the finance department analyses the movements
in the values of financial instruments and determines the major inputs
applied in the valuation. The valuation is reviewed and approved by the
chief financial officer. The valuation process and results are discussed
with the audit committee twice a year for interim and annual financial
reporting.
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37. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are included at
the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in a current
transaction between willing parties, other than in a forced or liquidation
sale. The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the
fair values:

The fair values of non-current deposits, pledged time deposits, non-
pledged time deposits, finance lease payables and interest-bearing
bank borrowings have been calculated by discounting the expected
future cash flows using rates currently available for instruments with
similar terms, credit risk and remaining maturities. The Group’s own
non-performance risk for finance lease payables, and interest-bearing
bank borrowings as at 31 March 2017 was assessed to be insignificant.

The fair values of listed equity investments at fair value through profit or
loss are based on quoted market prices. The fair value of an investment
in convertible bonds measured at fair value through profit or loss has
been estimated with reference to discount rates and volatility of share
prices of comparable listed companies. The fair value of an investment
in a joint venture measured at fair value through profit or loss has been
estimated with reference to discount rate based on credit rating of the
party who provides income source to the joint venture. The fair value of
a listed available-for-sale equity investment is based on quoted market
price. The fair value of unlisted available-for-sale equity investment
measured at fair value in prior years had been estimated with reference
to multiples of comparable listed companies, such as average of the
enterprise value (“EV")/earnings before interest and tax (“EBIT").
The fair values of key management insurance contracts classified as
available-for-sale investments are based on the account values less
surrender charges, quoted by the vendors. The directors believe that
the estimated fair values resulting from the valuation technique, which
are recorded in the consolidated statement of financial position, and
the related changes in fair values, which are recorded in profit or loss
or other comprehensive income, as appropriate, are reasonable, and
that they were the most appropriate values at the end of the reporting
period.

The fair values of the unlisted available-for-sale equity investments
and convertible promissory note measured at cost were not disclosed
because they cannot be reliably measured as the probabilities of the
various estimates within the range cannot be reasonably assessed and
used in estimating fair values.

37.

e IR MR

31 March 2017 ZE—+F=A=+—H

EMITAATFEERATFEESER
3 @)

SRMEERABI AVEENEEIARAER
S (MERBFBEARE)ENIH T 2AR
SEBAE- T ERBRIANGEEATE
& :

FRBEE  BERMEHFR  BERERER
N mMERSRBEUALMERTERZ 2AFEE
T RABRUGK EERRESTIHAE 2T
AZBRMESEARARBSRBMRBEMAE
R-TF—tEF=ZA=t—H AKERENRE
TR E R LA R Bt B3R 1T 8 3R M 2 A 2 B A R BR
FERALPEK-

ERBHERATEEIR ETRAKRE 2R
EBEDREMEHENE - BBRERATEE
HEZARRESREZATEEDZETEL
BRETRARZMRERKRERBGE - FEREE
BRATEEFAEZ - BaELEREZATFEE
D2ERBRELLETRKRAZ ALHEER
REEZHRERGEE - EHAHEERAKREZ
RNFEEDREARTESE REEFERA
FEEFEZFLETAHEERARE ZATFE
BEN2EANELBR T AR ZEH (AIMEXE
B/ B8 RBENEN ([REBAATN]))F
BEEE - DBERATHEEREZIEZERAR
Ra Oz A FEETKRRERS EERERER
(AMETRE)FE -EFRE AHERTF
2 EF A FHEE (RERMBHRNKRLE) ha
FEEABEY (RNERIEBZEBA (H
BR)ANCE) G RAE  WARE HEERE R
R PA L

BRAF 823 E A b ERARE KA
AR RE 2 N HEBERTGE R T E AT
B RAERBEARNZAMG ZAUEETESE
WA R AR R A FEE
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B HRERMEE

tF=A=1+—H

37. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF

37. SRTAAFEERAFEESFR

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 28 m
Below is a summary of significant unobservable inputs to the valuation CRITAEMER_Z—+tFR_T—-REF=F
of financial instruments together with a quantitative sensitivity analysis E—%* HZEBANAIBREGABERTEEHEE
as at 31 March 2017 and 2016: DTt T
Valuation Significant Sensitivity of
technique unobservable input Value fair value to input
fhER M EXATABRBGAE HE AFEEHBABZRBE
Unlisted available-for-sale Market approach EV/EBIT 30.5x 0.1x increase (decrease) in EV/EBIT would
equity investment result in no change in fair value
as at 31 March 2016
R-ZZE—XE=A=+—H0 W% BE/THEBA  305x CEEE/TREBA
2 3F ETR B RR AR B’%‘J AR EF (TRE)0.1x
g BRRELATEES
Key management insurance N/A Account values HK$24,633,000 5% (2016: 5%) increase (decrease)
contracts classified (2016: HK$23,976,000)  in account values would result in
as available-for-sale increase (decrease) in fair value by
investments HK$1,232,000 (HK$1,232,000)
(2016: HK$1,199,000
(HK$1,199,000))
HEATHEEREY TEA RPEE 24, 633 OOO}%TE EE}EFTEL?HTM)S%
FTEEBABRBAN (ZZ—RF: (ZB—RF:5%)

Investment in convertible
bonds classified as equity
investments at fair value
through profit or loss

DEREREREATEE
B8R 2 RAIRE 2 FTHR
BHERE

Investment in a joint
venture classified as equity
investments at fair value
through profit or loss
PERBEBERERATER
FIER 2 R AR E 2
—RAELERE
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Binomial option
pricing method

IR HE
EBTA

Discounted cash
flow model

ERBLREE

Surrender charges

Discount rates

BhR K

Discount rate

BB

23,976,000/ 7T )

HK$3,006,000
(2016: HK$3,085,000)

3,006, ooo?pfr‘c
(ZZ2—R%F:
3,085,0007& 7T.)

11.13% to 11.24%

11.13%£11.24%

16.18%

16.18%

BB AT EELMCRD)
1, 232 L0003 7T (1,232,000 7T)
(== —75% 11,199,000 7T
(1,199,0007&75) )

5% (2016: 5%) increase (decrease) in
surrender charges would result in
decrease (increase) in fair value by
HK$150,000 (HK$150,000)
(2016: HK$154,000 (HK$154,000))

3&1%E%Lﬁ (FB&)5%
(ZE—RE:5%)
KEBAFEERD (Fmn)
150,0005% 7t (150,000 7T.)
(ZZ—7XF : 154,000 T
(154,000 7T) )

100 basis point increase (decrease)
in discount rates would result in
decrease (increase) in fair values by
HK$652,000 (HK$667,000)
BEIR R EA (TRBE)1001EE B 58 B
AT EERD (3h0)652,0004 7T
(667,000/7T)

10 basis point increase (decrease) in
discount rate would result in
decrease (increase) in fair values by
HK$200,000 (HK$200,000)

BEIRE EF (TR 1

(200,000 7T)

OfE £ B 18 B 3
AEEERD () 200,000 T
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Fair value hierarchy

37. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF

The following tables illustrate the fair value measurement hierarchy of

the Group's financial instruments:

Assets measured at fair value:

As at 31 March 2017:

31 March 2017 =& —

tF=A=1+—H

SMTAAFEERDFEESR

8 (m)

A EESRERE
THRIIRHEAEES BT AATFEEY ZRE
Ty

BAVEENBIEE:

R-FE—tF=ZA=+—H:

Fair value measurement using

HEAFRERER
Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
SER ™ & BERABE EBATUEE
ZHRE BAE BAE
(5—-18) (=) ($=8) ast
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000
TER TER TER TER
Available-for-sale investments At HERE 261,303 = 21,627 282,930
Equity investments at fair value BRBHERATEEIEZ
through profit or loss PR A& 15,424 - 86,631 102,055
276,727 - 108,258 384,985
As at 31 March 2016: RZFE—ANF=H=+—H:
Fair value measurement using
FEATEERER
Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
EETS BEXABE EATAEE
ZHE BAE BAE
(F—FB) (F=8) (=) A5t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET FET FAET
Available-for-sale investments ARHERE - - 20,891 20,891
Equity investments at fair value ERBERRATEESIE
through profit or loss MR A& 67,986 5,008 = 72,994
67,986 5,008 20,891 93,885
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37. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF 37. ERMITAAFEERATFEESFR
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) £ A0 )
Fair value hierarchy (continued) AT EESERESE (H)
Assets measured at fair value: (continued) EE'/}$1“{E*—I'§Z§E D ()
The movements in fair value measurements within Level 3 during the EX-E= AT EBESE T BEHOT
year are as follows:
2017 2016
=2+ —ZE—RF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FTHET FHET
At beginning of year F9) 20,891 74,633
Total gains/(losses) recognised REM 2R AR Z K,
in other comprehensive income (B#E) Bz (908) (30,817)
Purchases BE 88,275 8,181
Disposals HE - (31,106)
At end of year FL 108,258 20,891

The Group did not have any financial liabilities measured at fair value as
at 31 March 2017 and 31 March 2016.

During the year, there were no transfers of fair value measurements
between Level 1 and Level 2 and no transfers into or out of Level 3 for
both financial assets and financial liabilities (2016: Nil).

Assets for which fair values are disclosed:

RZE—tE=A=+t—HR-ZE—KF
=t—B AREHRETCARLFEENE
BEE-

N
K o

FRNE-RE_EBEATEEAEZHLESH
ﬁ?&%%ﬁ‘iéﬁﬁﬁé E=ENEEMEARE
HZZ—RF8)-

BRBEAVEEZEE:

As at 31 March 2017: R-E—tE=F=+—H:
Fair value measurement using
FEATEERER

Quoted prices Significant Significant

in active observable unobservable

markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total

] EXTEBE EAFTER

ZHE BAE BAE
(%—8) (=) (%=FE) At
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR THET THER THER
Non-current deposits EREEE - - 42 42
Non-pledged time deposits EERTEHER - 3,193 - 3,193
- 3,193 42 3,235
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37. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF 37.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Fair value hierarchy (continued)
Assets for which fair values are disclosed: (continued)

As at 31 March 2016:

SMTAAFEERDFEESR

8 (m)

DNPEEFRER (B
BELAFEEZEE: ()

R-FE—NF=ZH=+—H:

Fair value measurement using
HEATFEENER
Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
BT BRABE  BERIIUER
ZRE BAE BWAE
(%) ($5=B) (=) CE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FET FET FHET
Non-current deposits b = = 466 466
Pledged timed deposits BERATHER = 269 = 269
= 269 466 735
Liabilities for which fair values are disclosed: HEATEEZAE:
As at 31 March 2017: R-FE—tEFE=F=+—A:
Fair value measurement using
FEATEERER
Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
SER ™ & BERUTEE EBAFTAUEE
ZHE BAE BAE
(5-18) (5=8) ($=8E) Ast
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000
TER TERT TER TER
Interest-bearing bank borrowings K EERITIE R - 116,073 - 116,073
Finance lease payables ERNRERERE - 2,334 = 2,334
= 118,407 = 118,407
AV Concept Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2017 & % 169



Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

e IR R AR B T

31 March 2017 ZE—+F=A=+—H

37. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Fair value hierarchy (continued)

Liabilities for which fair values are disclosed: (continued)

As at 31 March 2016:

37.

EMIENTFEERAFEESER
g @

D EESRERSE (B
REAVEEZRE: (5)

R-IE—NF=ZH=+—H:

Fair value measurement using
HEATEERER

Quoted prices Significant Significant

in active observable unobservable

markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total

BT BRAHE  BAIIER

ZHE BAE BAE
(F—E) (F=E) (=) GE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FHET
Interest-bearing bank borrowings KT BRI R - 136,306 - 136,306
Finance lease payables ERMERERE = 897 = 897
- 137,203 - 137,203
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38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

AND POLICIES

The Group's principal financial instruments comprise interest-bearing
bank borrowings, finance lease payables, cash and bank balances, and
deposits with other financial institutions. The main purpose of these
financial instruments is to raise finance for the Group’s operations. The
Group has various other financial assets and liabilities such as trade
receivables and trade payables, which arise directly from its operations.
The Group is also exposed to market price risk in respect of equity
investments at fair value through profit or loss, listed equity investment
classified as available-for-sale investments and key management
insurance contracts comprising investment and insurance elements
classified as available-for-sale investments.

The main risks arising from the Group'’s financial instruments are interest
rate risk, foreign currency risk, credit risk, liquidity risk and market price
risk. The board of directors reviews and agrees policies for managing
each of these risks and they are summarised below.

Interest rate risk
The Group's exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates
relates primarily to the Group's interest-bearing bank borrowings with
floating interest rates.

The Group’s funding policy is to use short term interest-bearing debts
to finance its working capital requirements and interest-bearing debts
over one year or internally generated resources to finance its capital
investments. The Group borrows mainly at floating interest rates.
Interest-bearing debts over one year will only be considered for capital
investments and under favourable market conditions.

38.

e PR R

31 March 2017 ZE—+F=A=+—H

MEEERE B ERBER

AEEZTIZ2oMTABEMRBRTEN BN
MEHEFIE R LRTHET ARREME
REB R - ZFERTAZEIERBHRA
SEZ2ERE -AKBEEHEMZHESREERE
B PIMEREZERIRENEZRR AR
SEHEEEREL ASETRBEBERRAF
EBEINRZBARE DELAAIHEEREZ
TMRAKRENTBERAERREY (BEKRE
NRBES Yo RARHEERE) D
EE

AEBESHIAFMEAZ EERKR AT ERER -
SNER - EERR  RBESRRETERR -
EXgRMIREEHER SRR ZBOR R
MR o

R @
AREBRM SN LS MEER 2 RAREZEAE
BIF BN R B 2B RITERER

AEE 2 ESHEAAE BN B BN EEE
A2BE WA—FULEZHBREBRALESLE
BRBNEEARE AEEZERETERTH
MEHE EEREARRERERN ZWR T
EEBE—FUALEZMBER-
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38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (continued)
Interest rate risk (continued)
The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible
change in interest rates, with all other variables held constant, of the
Group's profit/loss before tax (through the impact on floating rate
borrowings).

38.

B E R SR B REBER (®)

*Uﬁﬂlﬁ(%i)

%@Zﬁﬂﬁﬁu/ﬁﬁﬁ |/ 18 (iﬁﬂﬁe,_ Féﬁk E/‘i)
HMEOREHR 2 A BB 2 HEE -

Increase/

(decrease) in Increase/(decrease)

basis points in profit before tax

HE BRB AR R

#in, () #in, ()
HK$'000
FET
2017 —E—+t#F
Hong Kong dollars BT 10 (116)
Hong Kong dollars BT (10) 116
Increase/

(decrease) in Increase/(decrease)

basis points in profit before tax

A B Bt AR

Em, CR) #mn, CRd)

HK$'000

FHET

2016 —E—RF

Hong Kong dollars BT 10 (115)
Hong Kong dollars BT (10) 115
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38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

AND POLICIES (continued)

Foreign currency risk

The Group has no significant foreign currency risk because its business
is principally conducted in Hong Kong and most of the transactions are
denominated in Hong Kong dollar or United States dollar. Since the
Hong Kong dollar is pegged to the United States dollar, the Group’s
exposure to foreign currency risk is considered to be minimal.

Credit risk

The Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy third parties,
an associate, a joint venture and a related company. It is the Group's
policy that all customers who wish to trade on credit terms are subject
to credit verification procedures. In addition, receivable balances are
monitored on an ongoing basis and the Group's exposure to bad debts
is not significant.

The credit risk of the Group’s other financial assets, which comprise
cash and bank balances, non-pledged time deposits, deposits with other
financial institutions, amounts due from associates, available-for-sale
investments, equity investments at fair value through profit or loss, and
deposits and other receivables, arises from default of the counterparty,
with a maximum exposure equal to the carrying amounts of these
instruments.

Since the Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy third
parties, an associate, a joint venture and a related company, there is no
requirement for collateral. Concentrations of credit risk are managed by
customer/counterparty, by geographical region and by industry sector.
There are no significant concentrations of credit risk within the Group
as the customer bases of the Group’s trade receivables are widely
dispersed in different sectors and industries.

Further quantitative data in respect of the Group’s exposure to credit
risk arising from trade receivables are disclosed in note 20 to the
consolidated financial statements.

38.

e PR R

31 March 2017 ZE—+F=A=+—H
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TEE AUBEAERR -EERREREIIR
BEF/ZHF RHBRRRITEER -BRA
SEHEWESERZEFPERTIERD BN E
EBRTE ARAEEYESEET ZEER

)
v

FRAKERERE ZERMEE 2 EERRZ
P EEDTEBIER IR E B ISR M 208

5o

AV Concept Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2017 &%

173



Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

e IR R AR

31 March 2017 ZE—+F=A=+—H

38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (continued)
Liquidity risk
The maturity profile of the Group's financial liabilities as at the end of
the reporting period, based on the contractual undiscounted payments,

38.

RENE & E
AEE 2 S BB MR RS BRI A R AT AR A

BN B HERAT

RSB EREBEER (®)

is as follows:
2017
—E-tf
More than More than
Within 1 year but 2 years
1 year or on less than  but less than Over
demand 2 years 5 years 5 years Total
—ERg —ENk REN L
REREE BORME BYREF RENRE CH
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TER TER TEx ThR
Trade payables ERE SRR 25,920 - - - 25,920
Interest-bearing bank borrowings MT BRITER 116,354 - - - 116,354
Finance lease payables ERRERSHE 805 671 1,073 - 2,549
Guarantees given to banks in connection  $RFALLEY
with facilities granted to joint ventures S EREFHTZER 1,934,058 - - - 1,934,058
2,077,137 671 1,073 - 2,078,881
2016
I G
More than More than
Within 1 year but 2 years
1 year oron less than but less than Over
demand 2 years 5 years 5 years Total
—FR% —ENE REL L
REKER BARAF BAREE RFELE Ch
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHL TET TAR FHL FAT
Trade payables B8 SR 37,644 - - - 37,644
Interest-bearing bank borrowings M B RIT AR 128,096 670 2,258 6,361 137,385
Finance lease payables ENRERENR 325 278 374 = 977
Guarantees given to banks in connection ¥R FAELE 2
with facilities granted to joint ventures  EEIREF BT 2 ER 2,287,356 = = = 2,287,356
2,453,421 948 2,632 6,361 2,463,362
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31 March 2017 ZE—+F=A=+—H

38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 38. MEEEERFERBER #)
AND POLICIES (continued)
Market price risk ™ B = b
Market price risk is the risk that the fair values of equity securities miE Hﬁ?%ﬂx$%a§5l& ERFFEBEKTZEE
decrease as a result of changes in the levels of equity indices and the %iﬁlﬂx$“ AREBETEZEAR - AEERR
value of individual securities. The Group is exposed to market price —tFE=ZA=T—HOBERBEERAKREZ
risk arising from individual equity investments classified as trading 1I%Jﬁx$?x§(ﬁ11?22) PERAEHEREZ
equity investments (note 22), listed equity investments classified as ETRAEE (MF18) RO B AAIHEERE
available-for-sale investments (note 18) and key management insurance ZEEZEBEBEABRRBEL (M18) MEEETE
contracts classified as available-for-sale investments (note 18) as at 31 BB REEKRED ETIRE TR BB IR
March 2017. Most of the Group's listed investments are listed on the BEIARSHEME B ERE R ([32E R
Hong Kong Stock Exchange and Korean Securities Dealers Automated Ew ) bW WERNRERRERFEMRTE
Quotations ("KOSDAQ") and were valued at quoted market prices at FTEME.
the end of the reporting period.
The market equity indices for the Hong Kong Stock Exchange and RBEHEERSFARERL RS AL ERHE
KOSDAQ, at the close of business of the nearest trading day in the year ERE REBBIARERBTER 2THER
to the end of the reporting period, and their respective highest and RIEE URBEER B 2ENHE S L RERH
lowest points during the year are as follows: N
31 March High/low 31 March High/low
2017 2017 2016 2016
—E—tfF —E-t% NS NS
=A=+-H Bs/&E =A=t1+-H &/ &IE
Hong Kong - Hang Seng Index BEAE-BLEER 24,112 24,593/ 20,777 28,443/
19,694 18,320
Korean Securities Dealers REEFRFHEHE 619.28 710.42/ 688.38 782.64/
Automated Quotations BERERLS 573.54 608.45
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31 March 2017 ZE—+F=A=+—H

38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBIJECTIVES 38.
AND POLICIES (continued)

Market price risk (continued)

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to every 5%
change in the fair values of the equity investments at fair value
through profit or loss, listed equity investments classified as
available-for-sale investments and key management insurance contracts
classified as available-for-sale investments with all other variables held
constant, of the Group’s profit/loss before tax and the Group's equity,
based on their carrying amounts at the end of the reporting period.

B E R SR B REBER (®)

T E R b (8)
TRIWKREMEEMESBERTIEZBRT &
MEHEERF 2 EASENE EBEEED
TEBRIIERZBRAEE DEAHEEREZ
TR EERSEAAHENEREZFEERE
AERBREHNZAFEETEES5% NEBRE
AER, BERAEBEES CHQBE -

Increase/
decrease Increase/
Carrying in profit decrease
amount before tax in equity*
BB A 32 R *
RESE # mWD 2,/ w D>
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTET BT FERT
2017 —E—tF
Equity investments at fair value BRBERRATEEES
through profit or loss RAKE 102,055 5,103 -
Listed equity investments classified as HEATHEERE Y
available-for-sale investments ETRAEKE 261,303 - 13,065
Key management insurance contracts HEATHEERE Y
classified as available-for-sale investments FEZEBAERRBED 21,627 - 1,081
Increase/
decrease Increase/
Carrying in profit decrease
amount before tax in equity*
B 750 BT 4 A T~
REeE o, m #m/m
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTAT FTAT FHAT
2016 —T-RE
Equity investments at fair value BRBSERTEETIRZ
through profit or loss MR E 72,994 3,650 =
Key management insurance contracts DERAMHEEREY
classified as available-for-sale investments TEEBAERBED 20,891 = 1,045
S Excluding retained profits o NEIERE % T
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38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

AND POLICIES (continued)

Capital management

The primary objectives of the Group's capital management are to
safeguard the Group's ability to continue as a going concern and to
maintain healthy capital ratios in order to support its business and
maximise the shareholders’ value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to
it in light of changes in economic conditions. To maintain or adjust
the capital structure, the Group may adjust the dividend payment to
shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue new shares. The
Group is required to comply with certain capital requirements set out
in the bank lending facilities. No changes were made in the objectives,
policies or processes for managing capital during the years ended 31
March 2017 and 31 March 2016.

The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is net debt
divided by the total capital. The Group’s policy is to maintain the
gearing ratio at less than 75%. Net debt includes trade payables,
interest-bearing bank borrowings, and finance lease payables, less cash
and cash equivalents and equity investments at fair value through profit
or loss. Capital represents total equity.

The gearing ratios as at the end of the reporting periods are as follows:

38.

e IR R AR R

31 March 2017 ZE—+F=A=+—H

B S E B B TR B A2 R BUR (@)

EXER

AEBERER T EABRRREASEFEL
BN UHEFBREIERLE AXRHHEE
BRFREANZBREE-

AEBRBEBERAZEEERHLENERE N
Wﬁ%% AEBEREEEARARRIKE Z K

(AR EBEEEAREITHRARSHFHREE
$ B o $¢@ML¢ﬁﬂEmP%%§Z%¥
BEARE-NBE_T—tF=ZA=+—-BKZ
E-RF=ZA=+— Etir REFHERER
ZBER BERIEFHEEE-

AEENAEABBLR (EBFHERNERL
BEREA-AEEZBRDEEAAFLE
BRRIS%NAT -BEHFRREBRNESERN
|3ﬁgfﬁfﬂﬁiﬂu)}ﬂ’éﬁmﬁﬁfﬁ‘%% ORERE R

SRARSHB AREBBRRBEAFEEIIRZR
$$x§ BRI BT

NBEMEERE ZERNBBELRWT

2017 2016

—E—+tHF —E—RF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FAT

Trade payables FERT B SRR 25,920 37,644

Interest-bearing bank borrowings B B ERTTIE K 116,073 136,306

Finance lease payables FE AR ERIEA 2,334 897

Less: Cash and cash equivalents BReMERBEEIER (111,600) (69,563)
Less: Equity investments at fair value BB BEERATEEYRZ

through profit or loss AL E (102,055) (72,994)

Net (cash) debt (Re)EBERE (69,328) 32,290

Total capital BB 1,078,294 657,562

Gearing ratio BXRBELE N/ATiE F 5%
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31 March 2017 =ZE—+F=HA=+—H

39. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE

COMPANY

Information about the statement of financial position of the Company

RATF 2 BRI K

BRAARR BT AN RN R E R SRS ZER

at the end of the reporting period is as follows: N
2017 2016
—E—+tfF —E—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE
Investments in subsidiaries RSB RARZEE 460,044 472,459
CURRENT ASSETS RBEE
Due from subsidiaries g NI B 1,062 614
Prepayments TET IR 54 87
Cash and cash equivalents ReRkERBELIER 751 935
Total current assets MEEERE 1,867 1,636
CURRENT LIABILITIES REBAE
Accrued expenses FEETE R 2,064 2,475
Financial guarantee obligation S EREM 14,551 12,866
Total current liabilities MBI ARERRE 16,615 15,341
NET CURRENT LIABILITIES RBEEEE (14,748) (13,705)
Net assets BESFE 445,296 458,754
EQUITY fEm
Issued capital BEEBITRA 77,294 77,294
Reserves (note) & (M) 368,002 381,460
Total equity T ah R 445,296 458,754

AV Concept Holdings Limited
178 Annual Report 2017 &%



39. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE

40.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

e IR R AR R

COMPANY (continued)

Note:

A summary of the Company’s reserves is as follows:

31 March 2017 =& —

GEE

ARATZ EEERNT :

39. XAT ZB#EARRE (@)

tF=A=1+—H

Equity-
settled
Share share-based Capital
premium payment redemption Accumulated
account reserve reserve losses Total
REFZHN
RAEEE ROAREE RIBEEEE R EB At
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T T AT T T
At 1 April 2015 RZZE—RFMNA—H 453,469 1,255 16,142 (71,301) 399,565
Total comprehensive loss for the year FRZEEERE - - - (18,105) (18,105)
At 31 March 2016 and at 1 April 2016 RZE—"F=A=+—-HK
R=Z-"EMA—A 453,469 1,255 16,142 (89,406) 381,460
Total comprehensive loss for the year FREABELE - - - (13,458) (13,458)
Share options lapsed B KA EE R - (1,145) = 1,145 =
At 31 March 2017 R-E—tF=A=+-H 453,469 110 16,142 (101,719) 368,002

In accordance with the Companies Law (2004 Revision) of the Cayman
Islands, the Company’s share premium account is distributable in certain
circumstances.

APPROVAL OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL 40.

STATEMENTS

The consolidated financial statements were approved and authorised for
issue by the board of directors on 26 June 2017.

RERASHEERRE (ZTTWF
Az EERES T

mEMBHR &

Kiu?(:l\ﬁﬁ%iﬁ?%aﬁé:
ExettERRENE

BEE) AR
BRATAFD

K

AV I NV

o
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List of Investment Properties

REYV=BE

31 March 2017 ZE—+F=A=+—H

Approximate Effective equity
Address gross areas Lot number Lease expiry interest to the Group ~ Usage
AEEEN

3t BHAERE R R R ERkRE B2

HONG KONG

B

Flat 302, 3/F, Block G, Telford Gardens, 603.00 sq.ft. NKI 5744 2047 100%  Residential
No. 33 Wai Yip Street, Kowloon Bay, Kowloon

NENEEEFERRERTECEIE0E 603.00F 7 R NKI 5744 “EELF 100% %

MAINLAND CHINA

HRERE

Units A-D, 25/F, Noble Center, 1006 Fu Zhong San Road, 1,000.77 sq.m. N/A 2053 100%  Office
Futian District, Shenzhen City, Guangdong Province

BERE R TEH BB =5 10065 1,00077F 5% @R ZTR=F 100%  HRE
HEHD2EAZDE

The whole of 28th Floor, Tower One, Neptune Center, 1,088.42 sq.m. N/A 2048 100% Services
Gaoxin District, Chengdu City, Sichuan Province apartments

m)I| &R BT EHEEF DL —HeiERE 1088425k  TiEA “EONE 100%  RBEARE

SINGAPORE

F 03K

219 Henderson Road, #10-01, 185.00 sg.m. N/A Freehold property 100% Residential
Henderson Industrial Park, Singapore

185.00F 75K TEm KAREME 100% A%
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